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For over three decades now, our clients have 
relied on us to architect, design and deliver 
modern technology solutions that have improved 
the lives of millions of citizens and customers. 
All this is creating a positive business impact. 
With digital solutions constituting circa 48% of 
our business, we are emerging as one of the 
Enterprise Digital Transformation Leaders.

Not surprisingly, our next milestone is to make 
100% of our business digital!

As you know, we specialise in building, 
maintaining and managing bespoke digital 
solutions for clients in Government, Health, 
Retail and Financial Services.

Our clients rely on us to enable strategic, 
future-critical applications where the 
challenges are not well-defined. These 
are generally areas where they aim to stay 
ahead of traditional competitors and the 
nimbler e-commerce upstarts, through 
innovative, highly differentiated 
approaches.

Which is why, our applications tend to have 
dynamically evolving requirements that are 
difficult to pin down and specify clearly. They 
also tend to be complex, and sometimes very 
large, requiring multiple points of integration 
with the clients’ enterprise applications 
landscape.

Some clients may want to delight their digitally 
savvy citizens and customers who expect to 
be served through a channel of choice — web, 
smartphone, voice call, chat or video, at a time 
of day/day of week convenient to them. While 
others may be enabling straight- through 
processing, bringing new efficiencies and higher 
levels of quality to internal operations, they may 
want to mine data in real time – to generate 
new customer insights. By their very nature, 
these areas need specialised, bespoke 
applications and not off-the-shelf packages. 
These are the applications that fall within our 
sweet spot.

MASTEK HAS BEEN A 
TRUSTED PARTNER FOR 

AGILE, DIGITAL 
TRANSFORMATION 
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WHAT HELPS US TO BE 
THE ORGANIZATION OF 

CHOICE FOR COMPANIES 
LOOKING TO FACE THE 

CHALLENGES OF DIGITAL 
TRANSFORMATION?





9



Sudhakar Ram
Managing Director & Group CEO 
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Managing Director  
& Group CEO 

Non-Executive Chairman 
and Independent Director



Map showing location of the venue of 34th Annual General Meeting of  
Mastek Limited to be held on Monday, 25th July, 2016

VENUE
Ahmedabad Management Association,
H.T. Parekh Hall, AMA Complex, ATRA,
Dr. Vikram Sarabhai Marg, Ahmedabad 380015.
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MASTEK LIMITED
Regd. Office: 804/805, President House, Opp. C. N. Vidyalaya, Near Ambawadi Circle, Ambawadi, Ahmedabad - 380 006

CIN: L74140GJI982PLC005215; Website: www.mastek.com; Phone: +91-79-2656-4337; Fax: +91-22-6695 1331; E mail: investor_grievances@mastek.com

NOTICE TO MEMBERS
NOTICE is hereby given that the Thirty Fourth Annual General Meeting of 
MASTEK LIMITED will be held on Monday, July 25, 2016 at Ahmedabad 
Management Association, H.T. Parekh Hall, AMA Complex, ATRA. 
Dr. Vikram Sarabhai Marg, Ahmedabad 380015 at 11.00 a.m. to transact 
the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:
1. To receive, consider and adopt the Profit and Loss Account for the 

year ended March 31, 2016, the Balance Sheet as on that date 
together with reports of the Directors and the Auditors thereon and 
the Consolidated Financial statements for the year ended March 
31, 2016 along with the Auditors’ Report thereon.

2.  To confirm the first Interim Dividend of ` 1.50 and the second 
Interim Dividend of ` 1/-, in aggregate ` 2.50 per Equity Share of 
` 5/- each, as dividend for the year 2015-16.

3.  To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Ashank Desai (DIN 00017767), 
and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

4. To ratify the appointment of M/s. Price Waterhouse Chartered 
Accountants LLP, (Firm Registration No. 012754N), as Auditors of 
the Company under Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

SPECIAL BUSINESS:
5. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), 

the following resolution as a Special Resolution:
 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 5 and 14 

of Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), Schedule I made thereunder, 
read with the Companies (Incorporation) Rules, 2014 and all other 
applicable provisions, if any, of the Act (including any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in 
force), the new set of regulations contained in the Articles of 
Association and submitted to this meeting be and are hereby 
approved and adopted in substitution, and to the entire exclusion, 
of the regulations contained in the existing Articles of Association 
of the Company.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving full effect 
to this resolution, the Board be and is hereby authorized on behalf 
of the Company to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things 
as it may, in its absolute discretion, deem necessary, expedient, 
proper or desirable and to settle all questions, difficulties or doubts 
that may arise in this regard at any stage without requiring the 
Board to secure any further consent or approval of the Members of 
the Company to the end and intent that they shall be deemed to 
have given their approval thereto expressly by the authority of this 
resolution. 

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors or the Key 
Managerial Personnel of the company be and are hereby severally 
authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things as may be required 
to give effect to the above resolution(s).”

NOTES:
1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO VOTE AT THE MEETING IS 

ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE 
INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF AND SUCH A PROXY NEED 
NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY.

 Proxies, in order to be effective, must be deposited at the 
Registered Office of the Company not less than forty eight hours 
before the commencement of the Meeting.

2. The relative Explanatory Statement, pursuant to Section 102 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of Special Business to be 
transacted at the Annual General Meeting is annexed hereto.

3. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company 
will remain closed from July 18, 2016 to July 25, 2016 (both 
days inclusive). 

4. The Board of Directors of the Company has declared and paid 
First Interim Dividend @30% i.e. ` 1.50 per Equity Share of 
` 5/- each and Second Interim Dividend @20% i.e. ` 1/- per 

Equity Share of ` 5/- each for the year 2015-16. The Board of 
Directors of the Company did not recommend any further dividend 
for the year 2015-16. 

5. a. With effect from April 04, 2016 all the share tranfers and 
related operations, so far handled by Sharepro Services India 
Pvt. Ltd., have been transferred to Karvy Computershare 
Pvt. Ltd.

 b. Members are requested to immediately notify any change 
in their address and E-mail IDs to the Registrar and Share 
Transfer Agent of the Company at the following address:

  Karvy Computershare Private Limited
  Karvy Selenium Tower-B, 

 Plot No. 31 & 32, Financial District, Nanakramguda,   
 Serilingampally Mandal, Hyderabad - 500 032.
 Phone: Tel: +91 40 6716 1500  Fax: +91 40 2331 1968 

  E-Mail: einward.ris@karvy.com

6. The Unclaimed Final Dividend for the financial year ended June 30, 
2008 & Interim dividend for the financial year 2008-09 has been 
transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) 
as per provisions under section 205C of the Companies Act, 1956. 

7. Members who have not yet en-cashed their Final Dividend warrants 
for the financial year ended June 30, 2009 and thereafter are 
requested to make their claims to the Company/Registrar and 
Share Transfer Agent.

8. Members are requested to bring the duly filled admission slips 
along with their copy of the Annual Report at the time of attending 
the Meeting. Please note that Annual Report copies shall not be 
available/distributed at the AGM Hall. 

9. Members are requested to join the Company in supporting the 
Green Initiative taken by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) to 
effect electronic delivery of documents including Annual Report and 
other documents to the members at the e-mail address registered 
for the said purpose. We request the members to register their 
e-mail address with their Depository Participant or with Karvy 
Computershare Private Limited, Registrar and Share Transfer Agent 
of the Company, for sending various notices, Annual Report and 
other documents through Electronic Mode.

10.  Members may note that Annual Report for 2015-16 including Notice 
of the Thirty fourth Annual General Meeting will also be available 
on the Company’s website www.mastek.com for their download.

11.  Pursuant to Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, Rule 20 of 
the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, 
as amended and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company is 
pleased to provide the facility to Members to exercise their right to 
vote on the resolutions proposed to be passed at AGM by electronic 
means. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of 
Members / list of Beneficial Owners as on Monday, July 18, 2016, 
i.e. the date prior to the commencement of book closure, are 
entitled to vote on the Resolutions set forth in this Notice. The 
members may cast their votes on electronic voting system from 
place other than the venue of the meeting (remote e-voting). The 
remote e-voting period will commence at 9.00 a.m. on Thursday, 
July 21, 2016 and will end at 5.00 p.m. on Sunday, July 24, 
2016. In addition, the facility for voting through electronic voting 
system shall also be made available at the AGM and the Members 
attending the AGM who have not cast their vote by remote e-voting 
shall be eligible to vote at the AGM. The Company has appointed 
Mr. Abhishek Bhate, Practising Company Secretary, to act as the 
Scrutinizer, to scrutinize the entire e-voting process in a fair and 
transparent manner. The Members desiring to vote through remote 
e-voting are requested to refer to the detailed procedure given 
hereinafter. 

PROCEDURE FOR REMOTE E-VOTING 
I.  The Company has entered into an arrangement with M/s. Karvy 

Computershare Private Limited for facilitating remote e-voting for 



NOTICE 

 (a)  In case of Members receiving an e-mail from 
M/s. Karvy Computershare Private Limited : 

 (b)      In case of Shareholders receiving physical copy of 
the Notice of AGM and Attendance Slip 
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Name of Director Mr.  Ashank Desai

Mastek Limited

Dinesh Kalani 

NOTICE 

ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE 
EXPLANATORY STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF THE SPECIAL BUSINESS PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 IS 
GIVEN BELOW.
ITEM NO. 5

Mastek Limited

Dinesh Kalani 



REGISTRATION / UPDATING OF EMAIL IDs & BANK DETAILS
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BANKERS

ICICI Bank Limited

Standard Chartered Bank

COMPANY SECRETARY

Dinesh Kalani

AUDITORS

Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants, LLP

REGISTERED OFFICE

804 / 805, President House, Opp C N Vidyalaya, 

Near Ambawadi Circle, Ahmedabad – 380006

Gujarat, India

Tel : +91-79-2656-4337; Fax: +91-22-6695 1331

E-mail : investor_grievances@mastek.com

Website: www.mastek.com

REGISTRAR AND  SHARE TRANSFER AGENT

Karvy Computershare Private Limited

Karvy Selenium Tower-B, 

Plot No. 31 & 32, Financial District, 

Nanakramguda, Serilingampally Mandal, 

Hyderabad - 500 032.

Phone: Tel: +91 40 6716 1500  Fax: +91 40 2331 1968 

E-Mail: einward.ris@karvy.com

CORPORATE IDENTIFICATION NUMBER (CIN)

L74140GJI982PLC005215

MASTEK LIMITED



PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS OF MASTEK GROUP

2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16

GROUP TOTAL REVENUE & NET PROFIT
(` Cr) 

745 693 
934 1030 

544 

1 34 

52 
18 

14 

2011-12 
(9 months) 

Income Net Profit 

 

352 325 432 528 

506 

324 308 419 405 

 57 50 71 80 21 

Europe North America Rest of the World 

GEOGRAPHICAL SPREAD OF REVENUE
(` Cr) 

 
 

 

2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-162011-12 
(9 months)

 

BOOK VALUE PER SHARE
(`) 

 
 

198.71 
216.30 

252.80 
265.60 

138.86 

 
2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-162011-12 

(9 months) 

of Mastek Limited into “Majesco Limited” effective April  01, 2014.
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PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS OF MASTEK GROUP (Contd.)

 

3,083 3,214 3,123 
3,352 

1,298 

GROUP EMPLOYEES STRENGTH (NUMBERS)
 

 

 
2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-162011-12 

(9 months) 

 

0.1 

6.0 

9.2 

3.0 

4.3 

RETURN ON NETWORTH (%)

2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-162011-12 
(9 months)

CURRENT INVESTMENTS AND 
CASH & BANK BALANCES

(` Cr) 
 
 

138 
159 

171 

214 

120 

2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-162011-12 
(9 months)

of Mastek Limited into “Majesco Limited” effective April  01, 2014.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF MASTEK LIMITED

To the Members of Mastek Limited 

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial 
Statements 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Opinion

Other Matter

` `
`

` `

`
` `

` `
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF MASTEK LIMITED

Pradip Kanakia 



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2016
(All amounts in ` 

Note
As at 

March 31, 2016
EQUITY & LIABILITIES
Shareholders’ funds

3  1,149.86 
 30,783.08 
 31,932.94 

Non-current liabilities
 17.79 
 97.07 

 493.06 

Current liabilities
 -   

 949.86 
 8,752.56 

11  550.62 

Total  42,793.90 

ASSETS
Non-current assets

 4,351.79 
 2,222.55 

 13.70  131.11 
13  1,877.31 

 1,444.81 
 4,963.97 

 256.92 

Current assets
 3,114.11 
 9,713.19 
 8,870.53 
 1,573.84 
 4,391.18 

Total  42,793.90 

Pradip Kanakia Sudhakar Ram

S. Sandilya 

Dinesh Kalani
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Note
Year ended

March 31, 2016

 52,693.23 

 1,738.82 

Total revenue  54,432.05 

 28,112.50 

 50.31 

 1,605.31 

 22,760.78 

Total expenses  52,528.90 

 1,903.15 

 254.28 

 1,648.87 

 1,648.87 

 673.99 

 95.81 

 (495.39)

 1,374.46 

 -   

 -   

 -   

 1,374.46 

31

` ` 6.02  `

`  ` 5.62 `

Pradip Kanakia Sudhakar Ram

S. Sandilya 

Dinesh Kalani

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016
(All amounts in ` 



CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016
(All amounts in ` 

Pradip Kanakia Sudhakar Ram

S. Sandilya 

Dinesh Kalani

 Year ended  
March 31, 2016 

 1,903.15 

 (255.40)
 86.47 
 15.38 
 16.52 

 1,867.41 
 9.58 

 (227.57)
 380.49 
 (13.45)

 (428.07)
 (161.26)

 -   
 3,193.25 

 (40.46)
 1,226.05 
 (462.13)
 3,916.71 
 (461.83)
 3,454.88 
 (305.15)
 3,149.73 

 78.70 
 (1,271.70)

 392.80 
 161.26 

 1,755.00 
 (2,171.75)

 2,435.16 
 1,379.47 

 180.49 
 1,559.96 

 552.07 
 -   
 -   

 (57.02)
 (920.39)

 (16.52)
 (441.86)

 114.76 

 4,382.59 
 12,412.44 

 (10,058.12)
 6,736.91 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016
(All amounts in ` 

1 General Information :            

 2.1 Basis of preparation    

 



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016 (Contd.)
(All amounts in ` 

 2.2 Use of estimates     

 2.3 Tangible assets and depreciation             

                  

 2.4 Intangible assets and amortization              

                  

 2.5 Impairment of assets              

 2.6 Investments              

 2.7 Foreign currency transactions and translation          



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016 (Contd.)
(All amounts in ` 

ANNUAL REPORT 2015-2016

 2.8 Interest in Joint Venture      

 2.9 Derivative instruments and hedge accounting   

 

            

 



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016 (Contd.)
(All amounts in ` 

 2.11 Revenue recognition   

 2.12 Other income              

 2.13 Leases              

 2.14 Earnings per share   

 2.15 Income Taxes              



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016 (Contd.)
(All amounts in ` 
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 2.16 Segment Reporting   

 2.17 Accounting for Employee Stock Options            

 2.18 Provisions and Contingent Liabilities    

3 Share capital 

 As at 
March 31, 2016

`  2,000.00 

`  2,000.00 

 4,000.00 

`  1,149.86 

 1,149.86 

(a) Reconciliation of the number of shares 

As at 
March 31, 2016

 No. of shares  Amount 

 22,546,672  1,127.33 

 450,602  22.53 

 22,997,274  1,149.86 



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016 (Contd.)
(All amounts in ` 

(b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares

`

(c) Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company

As at 
March 31, 2016

` No. of shares % of holding

 3,099,552 13.48%

 2,791,680 12.14%

 2,519,100 10.95%

 1,275,000 5.54%

 1,445,800 6.29%
       

(d)  Shares reserved for issue under options

 As at 
March 31, 2016

 2,739,627 

(e) Shares bought back (during 5 years immediately preceding March 31, 2016)

March 
31, 2016

 -   
             

4 Reserves and surplus  

 As at 
March 31, 2016

Capital reserve
 21.44 
 21.44 

Capital redemption reserve account  1,538.87 

Securities premium account
 545.16 

 6.40 

 529.54 
 1,081.10 

Employee stock options outstanding account
 131.75 

 33.38 
 (84.07)

 (6.40)

 74.66 
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(All amounts in ` 
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 As at 
March 31, 2016

General reserve
 2,777.83 

 (2,415.67)
 -   

 362.16 

Hedging reserve account  1,880.91 
 (594.64)
 (187.96)
 1,098.31 

Foreign currency translation reserve  8,643.45 
 (8,570.76)

 1,828.47 
 1,901.16 

 42,918.78 
 (18,940.12)

 1,374.46 

` `  (577.08)
`  -   

 (70.66)
 -   

 24,705.38 

Total  30,783.08 
      

` `
` `

 As at 
March 31, 2016

 -   
 17.79 

Total  17.79 
           

                

4 Reserves and surplus (Contd.)  



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016 (Contd.)
(All amounts in ` 

6 Other long-term liabilities               

 As at 
March 31, 2016

 97.07 
 -   

 97.07 
           

7 Long-term provisions 

 As at 
March 31, 2016

 467.71 

 25.35 
 493.06 

              

 As at 
March 31, 2016

 -   
 -   

             

9 Trade payables

 As at 
March 31, 2016

 949.08 
 0.78 

 949.86 
               

10 Other current liabilities   

 As at 
March 31, 2016

 30.23 
 1,745.29 

 -   
 38.62 

 0.48 

 1,381.20 
 2,444.73 

 -   
 24.59 

 3,087.39 
 8,752.53 

 0.03 

Total  8,752.56 
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(All amounts in ` 
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11 Short-term provisions               

 As at 
March 31, 2016

 550.62 

 -   
 -   

`
`

 -   

 -   
 550.62 

12 Fixed assets

 (i)  Tangible assets

Gross Block (at cost) Depreciation Net Block
As at Mar 
31, 2016

As at Mar 
31, 2016

As at Mar 
31, 2016

 4,748.91  1,708.23  3,040.68 
 2,545.46  2,194.17  351.29 

 3.13  2,720.58  2,562.87  157.71 
 4,457.81  4,073.19  384.62 

 245.97  131.00  114.97 
 1,591.20  1,466.93  124.27 

 16,309.93  12,136.39  4,173.54 
 7.31  7.31  -   

Total  ( A )  24,211.14  937.30  (8,069.19)  13.51  (775.52)  16,317.24  18,174.20  989.86  (6,283.37)  9.67  (746.66)  12,143.70  4,173.54  6,036.94 

 226.00  159.74 
 334.23  -   

 78.79  18.51 
Total ( B )  1,197.48  11.51  (245.60)  -    (146.12)  817.27  651.71  109.13  (12.09)  -    (109.73)  639.02  178.25  545.77 

Total ( A + B )  25,408.62  948.81  (8,314.79)  13.51  (921.64)  17,134.51  18,825.91  1,098.99  (6,295.46)  9.67  (856.39)  12,782.72  4,351.79  6,582.71 

 (ii)  Intangible assets

As at Mar 
31, 2016

As at Mar 
31, 2016

As at Mar 
31, 2016

 1,889.94  -    1,889.94 
 3,759.55  3,426.94  332.61 
 5,649.49  3,426.94  2,222.55 

 2.61  2.61  -   
Total   28,071.96  2,407.07 (23,831.32)  (28.06)  (967.55)  5,652.10  6,767.64  768.42  (3,171.52)  32.56  (967.55)  3,429.55  2,222.55  21,304.31 



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016 (Contd.)
(All amounts in ` 

12 Fixed assets for previous year ended March 31, 2015

 (i)  Tangible assets

Gross Block (at cost) Depreciation Net Block

Total  ( A )  23,239.89  1,406.00  (466.59)  31.84  24,211.14  16,652.34  1,916.52  (423.54)  28.88  18,174.20  6,036.94  6,587.55 

Total ( B )  1,228.37  0.42  (31.63)  0.32  1,197.48  564.17  112.21  (24.99)  0.32  651.71  545.77  664.20 

Total ( A + B )  24,468.26  1,406.42  (498.22)  32.16  25,408.62  17,216.51  2,028.73  (448.53)  29.20  18,825.91  6,582.71  7,251.75 

 (ii)  Intangible assets

Total   23,900.72  3,410.05  -    761.19  28,071.96  5,070.54  1,690.78  -    6.32  6,767.64  21,304.31  18,830.18 

13 Non-current investments  

 As at 
March 31, 2016

 389.41 
 (387.62)

 1.79 

 148.57 
 -   

 (146.78)
 1.79 

 -   

 -   
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(All amounts in ` 
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 As at 
March 31, 2016

 1,877.31 

 

 1,877.31 
             

14 Deferred tax assets 

 As at 
March 31, 2016

 51.34 
 878.56 
 352.42 
 162.49 

 1,444.81 
              

15 Long-term loans and advances 

 As at 
March 31, 2016

 71.51 
 102.26 

 2.25 

 57.80 
 2,286.75 
 2,436.59 

 0.78 
 4,957.94 

 6.03 
 4,963.97 

              

16 Other non-current assets  

 As at 
March 31, 2016

 256.92 
             



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016 (Contd.)
(All amounts in ` 

17 Current investments 

 As at 
March 31, 2016

 640.64 

 596.47 

 150.00 

 200.00 

 203.10 

 423.90 

 450.00 

 450.00 

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -   

 3,114.11 

 3,114.11 
 3,137.98 

             

18 Trade receivables  

 As at 
March 31, 2016

 -   
 9,713.19 

 148.34 
 -   

 (148.34)

 9,713.19 
             



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016 (Contd.)
(All amounts in ` 
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19 Cash and bank balances

 As at 
March 31, 2016

 4.01 

 2,749.09 
 3,969.60 
 6,722.70 

 14.21 
 6,736.91 

 2,095.00 
 38.62 

 2,133.62 
 8,870.53 

              
20 Short-term loans and advances  

 As at 
March 31, 2016

 23.92 
 -   
 -   

 29.23 
 204.71 

 1,008.07 

 144.57 
 -   
 -   

 162.01 
 1,572.51 

 1.33 
 1,573.84 

    
21 Other current assets 

 As at 
March 31, 2016

 88.62 
 54.02 

 1.65 
 3,139.27 

 266.23 
 -   
 -   

 841.39 
 4,391.18 



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016 (Contd.)
(All amounts in ` 

22 Contingent Liabilities  

 As at 
March 31, 2016

 238.23 
 231.20 

23 Capital and Other Commitments  

 As at 
March 31, 2016

 295.24 

24 Revenue from Operations  

 Year ended 
March 31, 2016

 52,526.65 

 143.77 

 -   
 22.81 

 52,693.23 

25 Other income  

 Year ended 
March 31, 2016

 204.21 
 39.64 
 11.55 

 428.07 
 161.26 

 13.45 
 126.92 
 702.81 

 1,687.91 
 50.91 

 1,738.82 

 Year ended 
March 31, 2016

 25,126.14 
 92.81 

 480.14 
 15.38 

 2,161.59 
 27,876.06 

 236.44 
 28,112.50 
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27 Finance costs  

 Year ended 
March 31, 2016

 -   
 -   

 15.56 

 33.79 
 0.45 

 49.80 
 0.51 

 50.31 

28 Depreciation and amortization expenses   

 Year ended 
March 31, 2016

 1,093.32 
 767.58 

 -   

 (262.10)

 1,598.80 
 6.51 

 1,605.31 

29 Other expenses  

 Year ended 
March 31, 2016

 740.57 
 2,145.93 

 374.04 

 408.00 
 11,439.52 

 -   
 170.57 
 379.48 

 1,114.39 
 147.40 

 61.16 
 3,172.18 

 379.96 
 159.42 

 -   
 (227.57)

 380.49 
 84.29 

 -   
 9.58 

 85.36 
 86.47 

 770.63 
 21,881.87 

 878.91 
 22,760.78 
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(All amounts in ` 

30 Exceptional Items, net   

 Year ended 
March 31, 2016

 120.88 

 65.30 

 -   
 118.97 

 -   
 (50.87)
 254.28 

31 Earnings Per Share (EPS)   

 Year ended 
March 31, 2016

 1,374.46 

22,831,685
1,607,892

24,439,577
`

 ` 6.02  `
 ` 5.62  `

`

32 Leases 

 (i) Operating leases  

Lease Payments
 As at 

March 31, 2016

 146.13 
 60.44 

 206.57 

 Year ended  
March 31, 2016 

 379.96 

 As at 
 March 31, 2016 Lease Income

 168.00 
 196.00 
 364.00 

 Year ended 
March 31, 2016 

 161.26 
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 (ii) Finance leases  

 As at 
March 31, 2016

 35.96 
 19.58 

 55.54 
 (7.52)
 48.02 

 17.79 
 30.23 
 48.02 

33 Share in Joint Venture

 March 31, 2016 
40%

 As at 
March 31, 2016

(a) ASSETS
 -   
 -   

 -   
 6.03 

 14.21 
 1.33 

(b) LIABILITIES
 (4,442.80)

 4,463.56 
 0.78 
 0.03 

(c) STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS
 (50.91)
 236.44 

 0.51 
 6.51 

 3,464.74 
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 Year ended 
March 31, 2016

 344.85 

 0.45 
 0.50 
 9.93 

 124.41 
 480.14 

 As at 
March 31, 2016

 3,661.62 

 259.49 
 174.34 

 (166.62)
 (200.91)

 (1,963.71)
 1,764.21 

 3,783.62 
 205.57 

 0.04 
 (200.91)

 (31.17)
 (1,963.71)

 1,793.44 

 1,764.21 
 (1,793.44)

 (29.23)

 (29.23)
 (29.23)

 Year ended 
March 31, 2016

 259.49 
 174.34 

 (205.57)
 (135.45)

 92.81 

100%
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 Year ended 
March 31, 2016

8.00%
8.85%

10.00%
60 years

 Year ended 
March 31, 2016

 200.00 

 March 
31, 2016 

 1,764.21 
 1,793.44 

 29.23 

 (157.05)
 (31.17)

` `

35. Employee Stock Option Scheme

(a) Nature and extent of employee share-based payment plans that existed during the year:

i. Plan IV

 Year ended 
March 31, 2016 

 371,025 

 -   

 (19,162)

 (75,746)

 276,117 

ii. Plan V
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 Year ended 
March 31, 2016 

 308,939 

 -   

 (116,864)

 (48,250)

 143,825 

iii. Plan VI

 Year ended 
March 31, 2016 

 1,315,439 

 353,275 

 (252,576)

 (73,826)

 1,342,312 

iv. Plan VII

 Year ended 
March 31, 2016 

 897,373 

 223,850 

 (62,000)

 (81,850)

 977,373 

 Year ended 
March 31, 2016 

 1,374.46 

 (398.70)

 15.38 

991.14
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 Year ended 
March 31, 2016 

Basic Earning per share (EPS)
22,831,685

`  ` 6.02  `

`  ` 5.69  `

Diluted Earning per share (EPS)
24,439,577

`  ` 5.62  `

`  ` 5.32  `

 Year ended 
March 31, 2016 

 450,602 
` 123.94

Options Outstanding
Weighted Average 
Exercise Price (`)

Weighted Average 
remaining 

Contractual Life 
(years)

As at March 31, 2016
Range of Exercise Price (`)
0 -  150  2,189,302  60.21  6.21 
151-  250  550,325  182.52  8.79 
Total  2,739,627  84.78  6.73 

`

 Year ended 
March 31, 2016 

 577,125 

Discounted price as per the scheme
` 181.82

` 182.65
48.57%

 5.95 
1.38%
7.77%

 Year ended 
March 31, 2016 

 15.38 
 74.66 
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36 Income Taxes       

`
`

` `

  

37 Derivative Financial Instruments      

March 31, 2016

No. of 
Contracts

Amount of 

contracts 
(FC in Lakhs)

Amount of 

contracts 
(` in Lakhs) `

 -    -    -   

 53  138.55  15,060.84 

 As at 
March 31, 2016

 (1,098.31)

 (1,098.31)

 (256.92)

 (841.39)

38 Related Party Disclosures
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 Year ended 
March 31, 2016

 125.46 

 45.97 
 42.81 

 177.35 
 168.18 
 170.80 
 219.67 

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 3.62 
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 2,034.31 
 14.76 

 0.24 

39 Segment reporting       

 a.  Primary geographical segmental reporting on the basis of location of customers :

 Year ended 
March 31, 2016

 50,370.35 
 -   

 2,322.88 
 52,693.23 
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 Year ended 
March 31, 2016

 3,982.86 
 -   

 (239.55)
 3,743.31 

 (3,528.67)
 (50.31)

 1,738.82 
 1,903.15 

 254.28 
 1,648.87 

 

 Other Primary Segmental information :

Segmental Assets  Segmental Liabilities 
 As at 

 March 31, 2016 
 As at 

 March 31, 2016 

 26,011.20  8,710.18 

 -    -   

 4,785.96  11,914.22  1,656.01 

Segmental Assets/Liabilities  30,797.16  10,366.19 

 11,996.74  494.77 

Total Assets/Liabilities   42,793.90  83,168.79  10,860.96 

 Year ended 
March 31, 2016

Capital expenditure incurred

 2,531.74 

 -   

 53.98 

 770.16 

 3,355.88 

Depreciation and amortization

 769.31 

 -   

 72.10 

 763.90 

 1,605.31 

Non-cash expenses other than depreciation and amortization
 (21.14)

 -   
 183.64 
 162.50 
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b.  Information about secondary segments by industry verticals
 Year ended 

March 31, 2016

 -   
 29,150.56 

 9,977.47 
 7,115.00 
 6,450.20 

 52,693.23 

`

`

41 Incorporation of Digility Inc., USA       

42

` `
`

 As at 
March 31, 2016

 -   
 -   
 -   
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 Year ended 
March 31, 2016

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 Year ended 
March 31, 2016

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

` `

Name of Entity

` `

Parent

Subsidiaries

Joint Venture

45

Pradip Kanakia Sudhakar Ram

S. Sandilya 

Dinesh Kalani
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KEY STATISTICS

`

Particulars 2011-12 2012-13
(Nine months)

2013-14 2014-15 2015-16

 52,693 

 3,559 

1,374

` 6.02

`  2.50 

4.6%

3%

3%

 33.57

3%

0.01

 2.7 

 67 

4%

42%

1.9%

 3,150

3,356

 11,985 

 0.28

` 138.85

1.0

23

1298

910

388

174,517

 648

of Mastek Limited into “Majesco Limited” effective April  01, 2014.



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

  Mastek - Business Update

  Business outlook

  Internal control systems and risk management
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Global Economy & IT

IT Services Industry
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Indian Market

Mastek in UK

Mastek in North America 



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Contd.)

ANNUAL REPORT 2015-2016

Financials

` `

` `

Break up of Revenue by regions

Year ended 
March 31, 2016
` in

 Lakhs
% of 

Revenue
`

50,370 95.6
- -

2,323 4.4

Total Operating 
Revenue

52,693 100 1,01,258 100

`
`

`

Break up of Revenue by verticals

2015-16
 (` in Lakhs)

% of 
Revenue `

- -
   29,151 55.40

9,977 19.00
7,115 13.50
6,450 12.30

Total 52,693 100.00

` `

`

`

`

Balance Sheet

Non-current Assets

`
`

`

`

`
` `

`
`

`

`
`

Current Assets

` `

`
`

`
`

`
`

Shareholders’ Funds

`
`

Non-current Liabilities

`
`

Current Liabilities

`
`

Client Wins during the year
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Update on Board of Directors:

Update on De-merger:

People Strength:

Interim Dividend:
`

BUSINESS OUTLOOK 

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND RISK MANAGEMENT 

Internal control systems

Enterprise Risk Management:

Risk Governance Structure:
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Risk Champions:

Strategic risks:

Macro-economic risks:

Competition-led risks:

Dependence on Key Personnel:

Client and account risks:

Contractual, execution and delivery related risks:



FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS (FAQs) 2016

1.  WHEN WAS MASTEK LTD INCORPORATED AND WHEN DID IT HAVE ITS INITIAL PUBLIC OFFER?

` ` `
` ` `

2.  NAME OF THE SUBSIDIARIES OF MASTEK LIMITED AND WHERE ARE THEY LOCATED?

3.  WHAT IS THE CORE BUSINESS OF MASTEK LIMITED?

4.  WHAT IS THE EMPLOYEE STRENGTH OF MASTEK GROUP?

5.  HOW MANY SOFTWARE DEVELOPMENT CENTRES DOES MASTEK HAVE?

6.  HOW MANY MARKETING OFFICES DOES MASTEK HAVE?

7.  WHAT IS THE FISCAL YEAR FOR MASTEK?

8.  WHAT IS THE DIVIDEND TRACK RECORD OF MASTEK LIMITED?

` ` 
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FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS (FAQs) 2016 (Contd.)

` ` 

`

9.  HOW DOES ONE GET THE ANNUAL REPORT AND QUARTERLY RESULTS OF MASTEK?

10.  WHO IS THE REGISTRAR AND SHARE TRANSFER AGENT (RTA)?

11.  HOW DOES ONE TRANSFER HIS/HER SHARES OR CHANGE THE ADDRESS WITH THE TRANSFER AGENT?

12.  WHOM DOES ONE CONTACT IN CASE OF NON-RECEIPT OF DIVIDEND, LOSS OF SHARE CERTIFICATES, ETC?

13.  IS ELECTRONIC CLEARING SERVICE (ECS) FACILITY AVAILABLE FOR PAYMENT OF DIVIDEND?

14.  WHICH ARE THE STOCK EXCHANGES WHERE MASTEK SHARES ARE LISTED?

15.  HOW CAN THE SHARES BE DE-MATERIALIZED AND WHO ARE THE DEPOSITORY PARTICIPANTS (DP)?

16.  HOW DOES ONE INFORM THE COMPANY TO SEND THE ANNUAL REPORT, OR ANY OTHER CORRESPONDENCE TO BE SENT IN 
ELECTRONIC FORM TO SAVE THE TIME AND HAVE SPEEDY COMMUNICATION?

 



FAQs ON DE-MERGER

2. Any update on de-merger event? 

4. Why had the company felt the need to restructure? 

 

10. When did Majesco Limited got listed?

FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS (FAQs) 2016 (Contd.)
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Dear Shareholders,

The Board of Directors has pleasure to forward the following Report for the 
year ended March 31, 2016.

` In Lakhs

Year Ended 
March 31, 

2015
Revenue
Income from IT Services 100,196.28
Other operating revenue 1,062.11
Total Operating Revenue 101,258.39
Other Income 1,711.34
Total Revenue 102,969.73
Expenses 95,695.96
Depreciation and amortization 
expenses

3,733.43

Finance costs 147.10
Exceptional items 1,166.12

2,227.12
Tax expense 454.07

1,773.05

Year Ended 
March 31, 

2015

Revenue

Income from IT services 66,048.24

Other operating revenue 463.73

Other Income 2,305.40

Total Revenue 68,817.37

Expenses 58,769.70

Depreciation and amortization 
expenses

2,702.38

Finance costs 27.43

Exceptional Items – gain / (loss), 
net

494.95

7,812.81

Tax expense 374.06

7,438.75

Previous Year
29,311.97

36,750.72

Adjustment & Pursuant to 
Scheme of Arrangement

-

Dividend (563.94)

(30.37)

Transfer to General Reserves - 180

Balance carried to Balance Sheet 36,037.15

 

operating revenue of ` 52,693 lakhs for the year ended 
March 31, 2016 as compared to ` 101,258 lakhs for the 
year ended March 31, 2015. The Group registered a net 

` 1,374 lakhs in the year ended March 31, 2016 
as compared to ` 1,773 lakhs in the year ended March 31, 
2015.

 

Year ended 
March 31, 2015

` ` in Lakhs % of 
Revenue

UK 52,788.6 52.1

North 
America

- - 40,494.7 40.0

Others 
(India/ Asia 

7,975.0  7.9

Total 
Operating 
Revenue

1,01,258.4 100

  Post demerger, the Insurance Products and Services 

Majesco.

` 50,370 lakhs in revenue 
for the year 2015-16, of which ` 27,785 lakhs (i.e. 55%) 

` 7,117 

  The share of total operating revenue of other regions, i.e. 

revenue of the Group was 4.5%.

`
2014-15

` in Lakhs
% of 

Revenue

Insurance - - 45,716 45.1

Government 29,902 29.6

Financial 
Services

11,297 11.2

Retail 
Services

- -

IT & Other 
Services

14,343 14.0

101,258 100

  During the Year ended March 31, 2016, the Group earned a 
` 1,374 lakhs as compared to ` 1,773 lakhs for the 

2015-16 were on account of the following:

  1. Cost over-run of ` 3,200 lakhs on one customer 
account due to requirement of Onsite Security 
cleared resources

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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  2. Exceptional cost on account of reorganization and 
de-merger related expenses of ` 254 lakhs.

  3. Share of loss from Legal Practice Technologies (LPT) 
JV in UK region of ` 1,071.5 lakhs.

income of ` 37,867 lakhs for the year ended March 31, 
2016, as compared to ` 66,512 lakhs for the year ended 

` 1,337 
lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2016 as compared to 

` 7,439 lakhs for the year ended March 31, 
2015.

  On April 30, 2015, the Hon. High Court of Gujarat and 

(renamed as Majesco Limited – “Majesco”). Post demerger 
Majesco achieved automatically listing with stock exchanges 
and all the shareholders of Mastek as on June 15,2015 were 
allotted shares in Majesco in the same proportion (shares 

Arrangement in terms of clause 11.1.1).

(UK) Limited, which in turn has IndigoBlue Consulting Ltd, UK and 

 During the year under review, Mastek Ltd sold its entire 

AOC-1 is given in .

 According to NASSCOM strategic Review 2016, Indian IT Services 
and BPM industry is expected to grow at 10-12% in FY17 in 
constant currency terms. By 2020, India’s IT-BPM sector is 

technologies. Digital technologies will continue to drive the sector 

 According to Gartner’s latest report, worldwide IT spending is 
forecast to total $3.54 trillion in CY2016, marginal increase of 
0.6% over CY2015 spending of $3.52 trillion; largest U.S. dollar 

mainly impacted due to currency headwinds. By CY2019, spending 

intelligence (BI) and analytics market is forecast to reach $16.9 

 According to Gartner, Software market in India is expected to 

software marketplace is dynamic and ever-changing. The growth 

implementations and new consumption models.

stages of a multiyear shift from IT-led, system-of-record reporting 

and deeper analytical insight.

 According to 451 research report, ‘Software 2016: Analytics, 

experience management. This is happening as the natural result 

amounts of new data. Along with that, new tools, techniques, and 
architectures provide the opportunity to analyze what could not 

opportunity, the report says.

 Data Analytics will surge further ahead in the form of contextual 

of text and advanced analytics with Machine Learning to uncover 

industry goal for the last decade, the report says. Adoption will kick 

it in context with existing structured data.

 Worldwide IT spending is forecast to total $3.54 trillion in 2016, 
marginal increase of 0.6% over CY2015 spending of $3.52 
trillion impacted mainly due to currency volatility. In 2015 U.S. 
multinationals’ faced currency headwinds however, in 2016 experts 
expect to go away these headwinds and they expect an additional 
5% growth.

 Spending in the IT services is expected to return to growth in 
2016, following a decline of 4.5% in 2015. IT services spending is 

is due to accelerating momentum in cloud infrastructure adoption 

growth rate in 2015.

 The Computer Economics study also looked at what areas of IT 
organizations plan to invest money. A net of 46% of IT organizations 
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A net 53% of organizations said they plan to spend more on cloud 
applications and 37% plan to spend more on cloud infrastructure.

scale and procure the infrastructure and software that they need 
when they need it, it also means that the channel is ultimately 

particularly prominent in the UK, with the country spending 33% 

18%.

outlook for UK IT spending over the medium term in the Q1CY2016 
update, with spending growth expected to outperform most 
other developed European markets with a CAGR of 3.4% over 
2016-2019. The stronger economic environment is a key 
differentiator with other Western European markets, while the 

advanced software and services vendors. Market development 

app economy, cloud computing and digitization.

as a standalone company. During this period, the management 

verticals - Government, Retail and Financial Services.

 The key highlight during the year was acquisition of IndigoBlue, 
a leading UK consultancy specialising in Agile programme and 

Agile consulting and programme management expertise with 

these synergistic offerings provide a compelling proposition across 

to-end transformational service/solution delivery to new as well as 

company has successfully completed the acquisition and now it is 
fully integrated with Mastek. The company will continue to invest in 

in large and complex transformation programs which will help its 
customers to leverage digital opportunities in agile manner.

UK election, now it is in place and the UK Government is ready to 

these verticals going forward next year.

company has added new logos this year. A few small pilot programs 
with large Retailers were seen and company expects them to start 
growing over a period of time.

 On Financial Services with insurance exiting, the company had to 

segment within UK.

 From the India geography perspective, the growth momentum 

it might make some acquisitions in this area where it wants to 

focusing on digital solutions, deal momentum is going up and 

 The Board of Directors approved payment of First Interim Dividend 
of `
The Board of Directors also approved payment of Second Interim 
Dividend of ` 1/- per Equity share and was paid on March 29, 
2016. Having declared two Interim Dividends, your Board has not 
recommended payment of Final Dividend for the year ended March 
31, 2016. 

tansferred to General Reserves.

 Details of Loans, Guarantees, Investments covered under 
provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act 2013 are given in 

  Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the 
Act’) and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014, extract of Annual Return is 
Annexed as .

  The Board of Directors met 9 (Nine) times during the 

and the attendance of the Directors thereat are provided in 
the Corporate Governance Report, appearing elsewhere as 
a separate section in this Annual Report.

  During the year, the Company allotted 4,50,602 Equity 
Shares of face value of ` 5/- each for a total nominal value 
of `
who exercised their vested Employee Stock Options. These 
Equity Shares rank pari passu in all respects with the 
existing Equity Shares of the Company.

share capital of your Company stood at ` 11,49,86,370/- 
comprising 2,29,97,274 Equity shares of ` 5/- each.

  Mastek has an Audit Committee that currently comprises of 
three Independent Directors, one Non-Executive and one 
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Executive Promoter Director. The Chairman of the Audit 
Committee is an Independent Director. The Independent 
Directors are accomplished professionals from the corporate 

the meetings on invitation. The Company Secretary is the 
Secretary of the Committee.

  During the year ended March 31, 2016 the Committee 

Mr. S. Sandilya Chairman 5

Mr. Ashank Desai 6

Ms. Priti Rao 6

Mr. Venkatesh Chakravarty
Resigned w.e.f. June 19, 2015

2

Mr. Atul Kanagat

1

Mr. Sudhakar Ram 2

  The other details of the Audit Committee are given in the 
Corporate Governance Report, appearing elsewhere as a 
separate section in this Annual report.

  During the year all the recommendations of the Audit 

  All the Related Party Transactions are entered into 

Directors or Key Managerial Personnel etc., which may have 

  All the Related Party Transactions are presented to the 

which are foreseen and are repetitive in nature. A statement 

specifying the nature, value and terms and conditions of 

link:www.mastek.com/Related-Party-Transactions-Policy. 
Detailed explanation on transactions with related parties 
given in .

 In compliance with the requirement of the Companies Act, 2013 

Blower Policy / Vigil mechanism policy and the same is placed on 

corporate-governance.

 The employees of the company are made aware of the said policy 
at the time of joining the Company.

 Mastek, either directly or through its clients was also recipient of 

  Mastek ranked 71st in the Leader category in the ‘The 

The International Association of Outsourcing Professional 
(IOAP);

  Mastek U.K., named as one of the top 41 fastest growing 
Indian companies in the UK;

 
software testing providers 2014.

that:

make the following statements in terms of Section 134(3)(c) of the 
Companies Act, 2013:

relating to material departures, if any;

and applied consistently and judgments and estimates have 

true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company as 

year ended on that date;

maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for 
safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing 
and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

effectively; and

that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

 At the 32nd Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on July 23, 
2014, M/s. Price Waterhouse, Chartered Accountants, LLP, were 
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appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of 

the third year.

 Further, the report of the Statutory Auditors along with notes to 

the Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory and does not contain any 

 In terms of Section 204 of the Act and Rules made thereunder, 

report of the Secretarial Auditors is enclosed as  to 
this report. The report is self-explanatory and does not contain any 

most vital resource is world-class talent. Mastek Group continually 
undertakes measures to attract and retain such high quality talent.

 As on March 31, 2016 Mastek Group had a total Head count of 
1298. The Directors wish to place on record their appreciation for 

year under review.

 Information as per Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
the rules thereunder forms part of this report. However, as per 
the provisions of Section 136 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 the 
report and accounts, excluding the Statement of Particulars are 

a copy of the Statement of Particulars may write to the Company 

 The other disclosure required under Section 197(12) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rule 5 of the Perquisites 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 
2014 is annexed as  and forms on report of this part.

in the ESOP Scheme and all the ESOP Schemes are in compliance 
with the SEBI Guidelines. The required disclosures are enclosed as 

.

 In terms of the requirement of the Act, the Company has developed 
and implemented the Risk Management Policy and the Audit 
Committee, Governance Committee of the Board quarterly reviews 
the risks and remedial measures taken.

meeting at regular intervals. The various risks are categorized as 
High risk, Medium risk and Low risk and appropriate mitigation 

from time to time.

Independent Directors on the Board of your Company as at March 
31, 2016.

Independent Directors of the Company.

 Dr. Rajendra Sisodia (Independent Director), resigned from the 
Directorship of Mastek Ltd. with effect from April 17, 2015.

 Due to the De-merger of the Insurance Products and Services 

Directorship of Mastek Ltd:

 Dr. Arun Maheshwari, Indepenendent Director - effective June 01, 
2015;

 Mr. Radhakrishnan Sundar, Executive Director - effective June 01, 
2015;

 Mr. Ketan Mehta, Non-Executive Director - effective June 01, 2015; 
and

 Mr. Venkatesh Chakravarty, Independent Director - effective June 
19, 2015.

 The Company has a policy on remuneration of Directors and Senior 

& Remuneration Committee and the Board. The policy covers:

 1. Directors’ appointment and remuneration; and

 2.  Remuneration of Key Managerial Personnel and other 
employees.

 Details on the same are given in the Corporate Governance Report.

going concern status and company’s operations.

 A strong internal control system is pervasive in the Company. The 

commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of its operations. 
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Company has policies and procedures in place for ensuring proper 

the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records and the timely preparation 

 The Company has adopted accounting policies which are in line with 
the Accounting Standards and the Act. These are in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles in India. Changes in 
policies, if required, are made in consultation with the Auditors and 

for certifying adherence to various accounting policies, accounting 
hygiene and accuracy of provisions and other estimates.

Company will adopt  IND AS with effect from April  01, 2017, with 
the comparatives for the periods ending March 31, 2016.

 The implementation of IND AS is a major change process for which 

reappointment.

 The Shareholders at the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 
March 05, 2015 had approved the appointment of Mr. S. Sandilya, 
Ms. Priti Rao and Mr. Atul Kanagat as Independent Directors of the 
company for a term of four (4) years from April 01, 2015 to March 
31, 2019.

 The information relating to remuneration paid to director as 
required under section 197(12) of the Act, is given in the notes to 
accounts.

 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 
2013 the following changes took place in the KMPs during the year 
under review:

 Mr. Farid Kazani, Group CFO and Finance Director’s services were 
transferred to Majesco Limited as a result of the De-merger on 
June 01, 2015. Mr. Jamshed Jussawalla was appointed as Chief 

Company Secretary retired during the year effective from August 
31, 2015 and Mr. Dinesh Kalani was appointed as Company 

 In compliance with Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations, 
the performance evaluation of the Board as a whole and of the 
individual Directors was carried out during the year under review.

 With the help of an Expert, a structured questionnaire was 
prepared after taking into consideration inputs received from the 
Directors, covering various aspects of the Board’s functioning, such 
as adequacy of the composition of the Board and its Committees, 

 A separate exercise was carried out to evaluate the performance 
of individual Directors including the Chairman of the Board, who 

and Outcomes including independence of judgment, safeguarding 
the interest of the Company and its minority shareholders, etc. The 
Directors expressed satisfaction with the evaluation process.

of Section 73 and/or 74 of the Companies Act, 2013.

 Management Discussion and Analysis comprising an overview 

prospects of the Company forms part of this Annual Report.

  Conservation of Energy: As a software Company, energy 
costs constitute a small portion of the total cost and there is 
not much scope for energy conservation.

(i) the steps taken or impact on 
conservation of energy.

Not (ii)
utilizing alternate sources of energy.

(iii) the capital investment on energy 
conservation equipments.

(i) the efforts made towards technology 

Not 

(ii)
improvement, cost reduction, 
product development or import 

(iii) in case of imported technology 
(imported during the last three years 

(a)  the details of technology 
imported;

place, and the reasons thereof;
(iv) the expenditure incurred on Research 

and Development

is as follows
` in Lakhs

Year Ended 
March 31, 2015

Exchange used 28,896.99

Exchange Earned 63,172.14
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 The Company has complied with Corporate Governance 
requirement under the Companies Act, 2013 and as per Listing 
Agreement and SEBI Listing Regulations. A separate section on 

forms an integral part of this report.

 In compliance with the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 the Board of Directors of the Company have already 

committee met four times during the year and a detailed report 
.

Policy. The contents of the policy are as follows:-

 1. Promoting education, enhancing skills of children, and 
development of children and women working in red-light 
areas. We are also involved in special education and 
employment-enhancing vocation skills especially among 

enhancement projects.

 2. Eradicating hunger, poverty and malnutrition, promoting 
preventive health care and sanitation and making safe 

 3. Promoting gender equality and empowering women: 
Activities include setting up homes / hostels for women 
and orphans, old age homes and other such facilities for 
senior citizens, day care centres, and measures to reduce 

groups.

 4. Protection and up gradation of environmental conditions: 

welfare, agro-forestry, conservation of natural resources 
and maintaining the quality of soil, air and water.

 5. Any other projects with the approval of the Board.

  The corpus of the CSR policy includes:

  
years

   Any income arising there from

  

  

   Fund-raising events

  Mastek may pool its resources and CSR spending with other 

qualify as CSR spending.

   Decide CSR projects or programmes or activities to 

  

year.

   Oversee the progress of the initiatives rolled out 
under this policy every quarter.

  
initiatives.

  

   Monitor and review the implementation of the CSR 
policy.

  The Chairperson of the Committee is Ms. Priti Rao, an 

Ram and Mr. Ashank Desai. The Company Secretary is the 
Secretary of the Committee. Dr. Rajendra Sisodia ceased to 

  During the year ended March 31, 2016 the Board approved 
Donations of ` 94.36 Lakhs. Of this, a sum of ` 74.51 Lakhs 
was spent on Projects approved under Section 135 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 on CSR activity and ` 19.85 lakhs 
was towards the salary and other Administrative Expenses 
of Mastek Foundation, relating to CSR activities of the 
Company.

  As per provision of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, 

spent on CSR activities during the year 2015-16 was ̀  94.03 
Lakhs. The amount of `

and of the continuing operations of the company for 2014-
15, since the Company’s Insurance Products and Services 

  The Company has spent ` 85.36 lakhs (including ` 19.85 
lakhs was towards the salary and other Administrative 
Expenses of Mastek Foundation) on various projects 
approved under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013.

  The shortfall is due to the following reasons:

  a) ` 6.00 lakhs donation made to a very well-known 

135, since the relief work was done outside India.

`
home - Suraksha under Aasara Trust  at Neral, 
Maharashtra, since the milestone of the project was 
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 Your Company has transferred a sum of ` 11,41,859/- during 

with section 205C of the Companies Act, 1956. The said amount 
represents unclaimed Dividends which were lying with the company 
for a period of 7 (seven) years from their respective due dates of 
initial payment.

 Pursuant to the provisions of the Investor Education Protection 
Fund (Uploading of information regarding unpaid and unclaimed 
amounts lying with companies) Rules, 2012, the Company has 

and unclaimed amounts lying with the Company, as on the date 
of last AGM (i.e. August 17, 2015), with the Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs.

 Your Company has zero tolerance towards any action on the 

Harassment’ at workplace, and is fully committed to uphold and 
maintain the dignity of every women employee working in the 
Company. The Company’s Policy provides for protection against 

sexual harassment of women at workplace and for prevention and 
redressal of such complaints. During the year, no such cases were 
reported.

 Your Directors place on record their appreciation for employees at 

your Company.

and advisers of the Company for their continued support.

 Your Directors also thank the Central and State Governments, and 
other statutory authorities for their continued support.

Managing Director & Group CEO Non- Executive Chairman and 
Independent Director

Date : April 19, 2016
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IndigoBlue Consulting Ltd. - During the year, the company acquired the IndigoBlue, a leading UK consultancy specializing in Agile programme and project 

some residual work requiring legal completion.

Financial year 2016-17.

Mastek (UK) Limited      

IndigoBlue Consulting Limited (w.e.f May 01, 2015)   

Majesco (Formerly - Majesco Mastek ) (upto March 31, 2015)   

Majesco UK Limited (upto March 31, 2015)   

Majesco Software and Solutions India Private Limited  (upto March 31, 2015) 

Majesco Sdn. Bhd.  (Formerly - Mastek MSC Sdn. Bhd.) (upto March 31, 2015)   

Majesco (Thailand) Co. Ltd. (Formerly - Mastek MSC (Thailand) Co. Ltd.) (upto March 31, 2015)

Majesco Software and Solutions Inc. (Formerly - Majesco Mastek Insurance Software and Solutions Inc.) (upto March 31, 2015)

Majesco Canada Limited (Formerly - MajescoMastek Canada Limited) (upto March 31, 2015)

 

holding company’s reporting period
 

Holding Company which is March 31

Reporting currency  GBP GBP USD

Exchange rate on the last date of the Financial Year in the case of   95.47 95.47  -

Share Capital ` Lakhs 855.37 9.47 -

Reserves & Surplus ` Lakhs 13,059.29 292.36 -

Total Assets ` Lakhs 23,166.66 1,640.55 -

` Lakhs 9,243.19 1,338.72 -

Investments ` Lakhs 6,309.60 NIL -

Turnover ` Lakhs 44,023.47 5,944.76 -

` Lakhs (2,811.73) 38.87 -

Provision for Taxation ` Lakhs - (10.82) -

` Lakhs (2,811.73) 28.05 -

Proposed Dividend  NIL NIL -

% shareholding  100% 100% -
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1.  Latest audited Balance Sheet Date
Mastek (UK) Ltd. The Joint Venture was incorporated on May 14, 2014 under the laws 

company on the year end

 Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint Venture 
Extend of Holding %

Mastek UK Limited.

till March 31, 2016 was ` 4,873.91 lakhs, following the decision that Legal Practice 

Investment was impaired. 

Holding Percentage (40%)

40%

4.  Reason why the associate/joint venture is not 
consolidated  

the parties.

audited Balance Sheet per Accounting Standard 27.

6.  Loss for the period April 01, 2015 to March 31, 2016: (` 4,168.62) lakhs

 i.  Considered in Consolidation ` 1,071.68 lakhs

 ii.  Not Considered in Consolidation ` 1,607.52 lakhs

Other information:

1.  Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations - NIL

April 1, 2014.

 Majesco UK Ltd – It is a provider of Information Technology Services for Life & Annuity Insurers in the UK market.

 Majesco, USA – It is a provider of Consultancy services and  Information Technology Services for Life & Annuity Insurers in the US market.

 Majesco Software & Solutions Inc, USA- It is a provider of technology solutions for Property & Casualty insurers primarily in North America markets.

 Majesco Canada Limited, Canada  – It is a provider of Technology Solutions for Life & Annuity and Property & Casualty Insurers and Financial 
Services in the Canada market.

 Majesco Sdn Bhd. Malaysia – It is  a provider of Information Technology Services for Life & Annuity Insurers and Financial Services providers in the 
Malaysia market.

 Majesco (Thailand) Co. Ltd, Thailand – It is a provider of Information Technology Services for Life & Annuity Insurers in the Thailand market

Annuity Insurers in the Indian Market. 

 Majesco Software & Solutions India Pvt Ltd - It is a provider of Information Technology Services for insurers in the US, Canada, UK, Malaysia, 
Thailand and Singapore Markets. 

Managing Director & Group CEO Non- Executive Chairman and Independent Director

Company Secretary

Date : April 19, 2016
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1. CIN L74140GJ1982PLC005215

2. Registration Date May 14, 1982

3. Name of the Company MASTEK LIMITED

4.

5.
details

6. Whether listed company Yes

7. Name, Address and contact details of Registrar 
& Transfer Agents (RTA)

Sharepro Services (India) Pvt. Ltd. 
Samhita Warehousing Complex, 
13AB, Gala No. 52,
Near Sakinaka Telephone Exchange,
Off Andheri Kurla Road, 

Phone: Tel: 6772 0300
Fax: 28591568
E-mail Id: saritam@shareproservices.com
(upto April 03, 2016)

Karvy Computershare Private Limited
Karvy Selenium, Tower B, 

Financial District, Nanakramguda,
Serilingampally Mandal, 

E-mail: einward.ris@karvy.com
(w.e.f. April 04, 2016)

1. Computer Programming, Consultancy and Related Activities 62011 100%

1 Mastek (UK) Limited Foreign Company 100.00% 2(87)

  a. Individual/ HUF 11,506,660 NIL 11,506,660 51.03 11,506,660 NIL 11,506,660 50.03 NIL
NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

  c.  State Govt. (s) NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
  d.  Bodies Corp NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
  e.  Banks / FI NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
  f.  Any Other…. NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

  a. NRIs Individuals NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

  c. Bodies Corp. NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
  d. Banks / FI NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
  e. Any Other…. NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
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  a. Mutual Funds 401,378 1,200 40,2578 1.79 70,400 1,200 71,600 0.31 1.48
20,033 NIL 20,033 0.09 36,207 NIL 36,207 0.16 0.07

  c.  Central Govt NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
  d.  State Govt (s) NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
  e.  Venture Capital Funds NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
  f. Insurance Companies 112,1532 NIL 112,1532 4.97 112,1532 NIL 112,1532 4.88 0.09
  g. FIIs 287,7852 1,600 287,9452 12.77 2,167,689 1,600 2,169,289 9.43 3.34
  h. Foreign Venture Capital 

Funds
NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

  i. Others (specify) NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

  a. Bodies Corporate
   i.  Indian 1,595,899 2,800 1,598,699 7.09 1,181,030 2,400 1,183,430 5.15 1.94
   ii.  Overseas 200 NIL 200 0.00 NIL 200 200 NIL 0.00

   i. Individual 
shareholders holding 
nominal share capital 
upto ` 2 lakh

375,0611 259,958 4,010,569 17.79 5,460,811 201,495 5,662,306 24.62 6.83

   ii. Individual 
shareholders holding 
nominal share capital 
in excess of ` 2 lakh

631,486 51,944 683,430 3.03 589,006 NIL 589,006 2.56 0.47

  c.  Others NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
   i.  Non Resident 

Individuals
297,836 11,273 309,109 1.37 603,187 13,273 616,460 2.68 1.31

   ii.  Foreign National 14,410 NIL 14,410 0.06 20,685 NIL 20,685 0.09 0.03
   iii.  NBFCs registered 

with RBI
NIL NIL NIL NIL 15,799 NIL 15799 0.07 0.07

   iv. Trust NIL NIL NIL NIL 4100 NIL 4100 0.02 0.02

Sr 

1. Ashank Desai 3,099,552 13.99 NIL 3,099,552 13.82 NIL 0.17

2. Sudhakar Ram 2,791,680 12.60 NIL 2,791,680 12.45 NIL 0.15

3. Ketan Mehta 2,519,100 11.37 NIL 2,519,100 11.23 NIL 0.07

4. Radhakrishnan Sundar 1,445,800 6.52 NIL 1,445,800 6.45 NIL 0.03

5. Rupa Mehta 480,800 2.17 NIL 480,800 2.14 NIL 0.03

6. Usha Sundar 460,000 2.08 NIL 460,000 2.05 NIL 0.01

7. Girija Ram 163,600 0.74 NIL 163,600 0.73 NIL 0.01

8. Padma Desai 155,200 0.70 NIL 155,200 0.69 NIL 0.01

9. Samvitha Ram 103,328 0.47 NIL 103,328 0.46 NIL 0.01

10. Avanthi Desai 81,600 0.37 NIL 81,600 0.36 NIL 0.01

11. Chinmay Ashank Desai 71,600 0.32 NIL 71,600 0.32 NIL NIL
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Sr 

12. Varun Sundar 64,000 0.29 NIL 64,000 0.29 NIL NIL

13. Shankar Sundar 64,000 0.29 NIL 64,000 0.29 NIL NIL

14. Tanay Mehta 6,400 0.00 NIL 6,400 0.00 NIL NIL

during the year due to allotment of shares on exercise of vested ESOP’s.

1. Fidelity Puritan Trust-Fidelity 
Low-Priced Stock Fund

 1,650,000 7.32%

Changes during the year 15/01/2016 Sale  (32,364) 0.29%  1,617,636 7.03%

22/01/2016 Sale  (67,636) 0.30%  1,550,000 6.73%

29/01/2016 Sale  (60,409) 0.26%  1,489,591 6.47%

05/02/2016 Sale  (47,783) 0.21%  1,441,808 6.26%

12/02/2016 Sale  (28,912) 0.12%  1,412,896 6.14%

19/02/2016 Sale  (42,896) 0.19%  1,370,000 5.95%

31/03/2016 Sale  (95,000) 0.41%  1,275,000 5.54%

At the end of the year  1,275,000 5.54%

2. Life Insurance Corporation of 
India P & GS Fund

 589,781 2.62%

Changes during the year - NA - -  589,781 2.62%

At the end of the year  589,781 2.62%

3. Life Insurance Corporation 
of India

 518,435 2.30%

Changes during the year - NA - -  518,435 2.30%

At the end of the year  518,435 2.30%

4. Fidelity Northstar Fund

 400,000 1.77%

Changes during the year 19/02/2016 Sale  (50,000) 0.25%  350,000 1.52%

26/02/2016 Sale  (25,000) 0.11%  325,000 1.41%

At the end of the year  325,000 1.41%

5. Sun Super Pooled 
Superannuation Trust

 210,645 0.93%

Changes during the year 10/04/2015 Sale  (210,645) 0.93% - -

At the end of the year - -

6. DSP Blackrock 
Technology.com Fund

 157,278 0.70%

Changes during the year 10/07/2015 Sale  (76,027) 0.35%  81,251 0.35%

17/07/2015 Sale  (81,251) 0.35% - -

At the end of the year - -
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7. Natixis International 
Funds (Lux) I A/C Natixis 
International Funds (Lux) I - 
IDFC India Equities Fund

 156,202 0.69%

Changes during the year 24/04/2015 Sale  (156,202) 0.69% - -

At the end of the year - -

8. Sundaram Mutual Fund A/C 
Sundaram Smile Fund

 110,000 0.49%

Changes during the year 10/04/2015 Sale  (68,655) 0.31%  41,345 0.18%

17/04/2015 Sale  (41,345) 0.18%  -   -

19/06/2015 Purchase  211,909 0.92%  211,909 0.92%

26/06/2015 Purchase  121,398 0.53%  333,307 1.45%

30/06/2015 Purchase  353,804 1.54%  687,111 2.99%

10/07/2015 Purchase  1,165 0.00%  688,276 2.99%

28/08/2015 Purchase  10,000 0.05%  698,276 3.04%

09/10/2015 Purchase  25,000 0.11%  723,276 3.15%

16/10/2015 Sale  (723,276) 3.15% - -

At the end of the year - -

9.

 106,380 0.47%

Changes during the year 01/05/2015 Sale  (58,438) 0.26% 47,942 0.21%

15/05/2015 Sale  (47,942) 0.21% - -

At the end of the year - -

10. Goldman Sachs (Singapore) 
Pte

 105,941 0.47%

Changes during the year 10/04/2015 Sale  (785) 0.01%  105,156 0.46%

12/06/2015 Purchase  696 0.00%  105,852 0.46%

19/06/2015 Purchase  24,913 0.11%  130,765 0.57%

10/07/2015 Sale  (2,167) 0.01%  128,598 0.56%

17/07/2015 Purchase 653 0.00%  129,251 0.56%

31/07/2015 Purchase 26,281 0.11%  155,532 0.68%

07/08/2015 Sale  (678) 0.00%  154,854 0.67%

14/08/2015 Sale  (31,162) 0.14%  123,692 0.54%

21/08/2015 Sale  (66,693) 0.29%  56,999 0.25%

28/08/2015 Purchase 20,954 0.09%  77,953 0.34%

04/09/2015 Purchase 26,430 0.11%  104,383 0.45%

04/12/2015 Purchase 1,734 0.01%  106,117 0.46%

25/12/2015 Purchase 32,777 0.14%  138,894 0.60%

31/12/2015 Purchase 30,721 0.13%  169,615 0.74%

08/01/2016 Purchase 3,918 0.02%  173,533 0.75%
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15/01/2016 Sale  (40,469) 0.18%  133,064 0.58%

22/01/2016 Sale  (25,363) 0.11%  107,701 0.47%

19/02/2016 Sale  (11,046) 0.05%  96,655 0.42%

26/02/2016 Sale  (17,016) 0.07%  79,639 0.35%

04/03/2016 Sale  (47,907) 0.21%  31,732 0.14%

11/03/2016 Sale  (31,227) 0.14%  505 0.00%

18/03/2016 Purchase 45,205 0.20%  45,710 0.20%

At the end of the year  45,710 0.20%

11. D. Sathyamoorthi

 100,000 0.44%

Changes during the year 05/06/2015 Sale  (11,000) 0.05%  89,000 0.39%

26/06/2015 Sale  (89,000) 0.39% - -

19/02/2016 Purchase  100,000 0.43%  100,000 0.43%

At the end of the year  100,000 0.43%

12. Arun Kumar Maheshwari

 89,584 0.40%

Changes during the year 01/05/2015 Purchase 61,701 0.26%  151,285 0.66%

19/06/2015 Purchase  72,660 0.32%  223,945 0.97%

18/09/2015 Purchase  2,943 0.01%  226,888 0.99%

25/09/2015 Purchase  3,112 0.01%  230,000 1.00%

At the end of the year  230,000 1.00%

13. Shalini Desai

 80,000 0.35%

Changes during the year - NA - -  80,000 0.35%

At the end of the year  80,000 0.35%

14. Merrill Lynch Capital Markets 
Espana S A S V

 13,047 0.06%

Changes during the year 22/05/2015 Sale  (13,047) 0.06% - -

23/10/2015 Purchase  1,427 0.01%  1,427 0.01%

06/11/2015 Sale  (1,427) 0.01% - -

04/03/2016 Purchase 163,000 0.71%  163,000 0.71%

11/03/2016 Purchase 656 0.00%  163,656 0.71%

31/03/2016 Purchase 110,344 0.48%  274,000 1.19%

At the end of the year  274,000 1.19%

15. Premier Investment Fund 
Limited

- -

Changes during the year 19/06/2015 Purchase  56,000 0.24%  56,000 0.24%

26/06/2015 Purchase  17,250 0.08%  73,250 0.32%

30/06/2015 Purchase  106,544 0.46%  179,794 0.78%

10/07/2015 Purchase  19,200 0.09%  198,994 0.87%

17/07/2015 Purchase  33,900 0.14%  232,894 1.01%

30/09/2015 Purchase  1,500 0.01%  234,394 1.02%

16/10/2015 Sale  (1,500) 0.01%  232,894 1.01%

At the end of the year  232,894 1.00%
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16. B. N. Nagamani

- -

Changes during the year 27/11/2015 Purchase  99,990 0.43%  99,990 0.43%

04/12/2015 Purchase  10 0.00%  100,000 0.43%

At the end of the year  100,000 0.43%

17. Farid Lalji Kazani

- -

Changes during the year 15/05/2015 Purchase  35,000 0.15%  35,000 0.15%

05/06/2015 Purchase  124,273 0.54%  159,273 0.69%

12/06/2015 Sale (84,315) 0.36%  74,958 0.33%

26/02/2016 Purchase  39 0.00%  74,997 0.33%

04/03/2016 Purchase  6,461 0.02%  81,458 0.35%

18/03/2016 Purchase  6,250 0.03%  87,708 0.38%

At the end of the year  87,708 0.38%

1. Mr. Sudhakar Ram 2,791,680 12.60 2,791,680 12.14

2. Mr. Radhakrishnan Sundar 
(Resigned as Executive Director w.e.f. June 01, 2015)

1,445,800 6.52 1,445,800 6.29

3. Mr. Ashank Desai 3,099,552 13.75 3,099,552 13.48

4. Mr. Ketan Mehta 
(Resigned as Non-Executive Director w.e.f. June 01, 2015)

2,519,100 11.17 2,519,100 10.95

5. Mr. S. Sandilya 19,500 0.09 26,000 0.11

6. Mr. Atul Kanagat NIL NIL NIL NIL

7. Ms. Priti Rao 7,400 0.03 29,600 0.13

8. Mr. Arun kumar Maheshwari 
(Resigned as an Independent Director 
w.e.f. June 01, 2015)

89,584 0.40 NA NA

9. Dr. Rajendra Sisodia 
(Resigned as an Independent Director 
w.e.f. April 17, 2015)

26,994 0.12 NA NA

10. Mr. Venkatesh Chakravarty
(Resigned as an Independent Director 
w.e.f. June 19, 2015)

NIL NIL NA NA

11. Mr. Farid Kazani 
(Resigned as Group CFO and Finance Director 
w.e.f. May 31, 2015)

35,000 0.16  NA NA

12. Mr. Bhagwant Bhargawe 
(Retired as a Company Secretary 
w.e.f. August 31, 2015)

- - NA NA

13. Jamshed Jussawallla 
(Appointed as an Group CFO and Finance Director
w.e.f. June 01, 2015)

NA NA 485 0.002

14. Dinesh Kalani 
Appointed as a (Company Secretary 

NA NA - -
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` ` ` `

i)  Principal Amount 13,521,892 NIL NIL 13,521,892

NIL NIL NIL NIL

NIL NIL NIL NIL

 13,521,892 NIL NIL  13,521,892

 1,072,651 NIL NIL  1,072,651

- Reduction  5,874,277 NIL NIL  5,874,277

Net Change  8,720,266 NIL NIL  8,720,266

i)  Principal Amount  4,801,626 NIL NIL 4,801,626

NIL NIL NIL NIL

NIL NIL NIL NIL

 4,801,626 NIL NIL  4,801,626

1. Gross salary ` ` `

(a)  Salary as per provisions contained in section 
17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961

11,750,000 400,000 12,150,000

1961
46,017 6,600 52,617

Income-tax Act, 1961.
- - -

2. Stock Option - - -

3. Sweat Equity - - -

4. - Commission

- others, specify

- - -

5. Others, please specify

Provident Fund & Other Fund 750,000 48,000 798,000

Performance Bonus NIL NIL NIL

Total 12,546,017 454,600 13,000,617

Ceiling as per the Act 12,000,000 - -



81

`
`

Fee for Attending Board 
meetings and Audit 
Committee Meetings

830,000 30,000 NIL NIL 730,000 NIL 2,420,000

Commission 900,000 - - - 900,000 - 1,800,000

Others - - - - - - -

`

Fee for Attending Board meetings and Audit 
Committee meetings

830,000 NIL 830,000

Commission - - -

134,499 - 134,499

1. Gross salary ` ` `

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in 
section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 
1961.

1,549,636 1,516,930 3,066,566

tax Act, 1961
6,600 NIL 6,600

17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961.
- - -

2 Stock Option 26,424,140 114,135 26,538,455

3 Sweat Equity - - -

4 Commission

- others, specify…

- - -

5 Others, please specify - - -

60,000 45,870 105,870

Performance Bonus NIL NIL NIL

Total 28,040,376 1,677,115 29,792,491
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1. Gross salary ` ` `

(a)  Salary as per provisions contained in 
section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 
1961.

4,246,715 1,540,490 5,787,205

tax Act, 1961
33,000 NIL 33,000

17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961.
- - -

2. Stock Option - - -

3. Sweat Equity - - -

4. Commission

- others, specify…

- - -

5. Others, please specify - - -

140,882 60,984 201,866

Performance Bonus - - -

Total 4,420,597 1,601,474 6,022,071

There were no penalties, punishments or compounding of offences during the 
year ended March 31, 2016. 
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of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto

  (a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship:

   Mastek Ltd has entered into Contracts with the following companies:

   Mastek (UK) Ltd

   Majesco Ltd

   Majesco Software and Solution India Pvt Ltd (MSSIPL)

   Cashless Technologies India Pvt Ltd

      (2) Leave & License Agreements

  (c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions IT & related services contracts are for a duration of one year and are 
automatically renewed annually.

   Leave & License Agreements are entered into for a period of 11 months to 5 years.

  (d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any:

   - IT & related services with Mastek UK Limited – 16.07.2015

   - IT & related services with Majesco Ltd and MSSIPL – 01.06.2015

   - IT & related services with MSSIPL – 01.06.2015

   - Leave & License Agreement with MSSIPL–

  (f)  Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL

Managing Director & Group CEO Non- Executive Chairman and Independent Director

Date : April 19, 2016
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To, 

Mastek Limited
CIN: L74140GJ1982PLC005215

conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon:

to the reporting made hereinafter: 

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder; 

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 

to Mastek Limited in India; 

 (c)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009; 

 (d)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999/ 

period)

 (f)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations 1993 regarding Companies Act 
dealing with the company.

 a. The Information Technology Act, 2000; 

 c. Policy relating to Software Technology Parks of India and its regulations;

 d. The Trade Marks Act, 1999; 

 e. Indian Stamp Act, 1999;

 g. Registration Act, 1908;

 i. Income Tax Act and other Indirect Tax laws
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 l. Electricity Act, 2003

BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited.

 We further report that 

Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance 
with the provisions of the Act. 

 Adequate notice was given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent in advance and 

participation at the meeting. 

 There are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure 

 We further report that during the year under review, the Company had following major events:

Company) and slump sale of the offshore insurance operations to Majesco Software and Solutions India Private Limited. 

  a) Insurance vertical which is Intellectual property centric, domain intensive and largely caters to the US insurance market, with some 
customers in other countries like Canada, Malaysia, Thailand and UK.

Majesco Ltd in the ratio of 33:67.

 

  The Board of Directors approved payment of two interim dividends during the year and the required formalities were complied with.

Name of Company Secretary in practice / Firm:

Date : April 19, 2016  C P No.:3373
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1. The ratio of the remuneration of each director to 
the median remuneration of the employees of the 

Mr. Sudhakar Ram 21.59X
Mr. Radhakrishnan Sundar
(Resigned as Executive Director w.e.f. June 01, 2015)

NA

Mr. Ashank Desai 0.23*X
Mr. S. Sandilya 1.59X
Mr. Atul Kanagat -
Ms. Priti Rao 1.59X

1. The median remuneration of employees of the Company was 
` 5,81,157.62
2. For this purpose, Sitting Fees paid to the Directors have not 

2. The percentage increase in remuneration of each 

Mr. Sudhakar Ram 5.1%
Mr. Radhakrishnan Sundar
(Resigned as Executive Director w.e.f. June 01, 2015)

NA

Mr. Ashank Desai 42.7%
Mr. Ketan Mehta
(Resigned as Non-Executive Director w.e.f. June 01, 2015)

NA

Mr. S. Sandilya* -
Mr. Atul Kanagat NA
Ms. Priti Rao* -
Mr. Arunkumar Maheshwari
(Resigned as an Independent Director w.e.f. June 01, 2015)

NA

Dr. Rajendra Sisodia
(Resigned as an Independent Director w.e.f. April 17, 2015)

NA

Mr. Venkatesh Chakravarty
(Resigned as an Independent Director w.e.f. June 19, 2015)

NA

Mr. Farid Kazani
(Resigned as Group CFO and Finance Director w.e.f. May 31, 
2015)

NA

Mr. Bhagwant Bhargawe
(Retired as a Company Secretary w.e.f. August 31, 2015)

NA

Jamshed Jussawallla  (Appointed as CFO w.e.f. June 01, 2015) NA

01, 2015)
NA

**Commission of ` 9 lacs is for the year 2015-16 vs. NIL for 2014-15.

remuneration. 

3. The percentage increase in the median remuneration Percentage of increase in the median remuneration of employees in the Financial 
Year March 31, 2016  (12.5%)

4.
company

1102

5.
increase in remuneration and company performance: marking the salaries of the employees with peer companies, achievement of Company 

78% in 2015-16 vis a vis 2014-15.
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6. Comparison of the remuneration of the Key 
Managerial Personnel (KMP) against the performance 
of the company

marks and the achievement of individual and Company Targets vis a vis the Plan. The 

vis a vis 2014-15
7. Variations in the market capitalization of the 

Company, price earnings ratio as at the closing date 

year and percentage increase over decrease in the 
market quotations of the shares of the company 
in comparison to the rate at which the company 

companies;

Market Capitalization of 
the Company

3,29,43,59,500 9,61,84,10,275
48.98%*

Price Earning ratio 24.45 13.42

*There is variation in the Market cap and PE ratio due to De-merger happened during 
the year.
The Company had come out with a Follow-on Offering in 1996. It had issued shares 
of ` 10/- each at a premium of ` 180 per share. Adjusting for Stock-split and Bonus 
Issues, the price works out to ` 23.75 per share. The closing price of the Company 
share as on March 31, 2016 was ` 143.25 on NSE. Thus the percentage increase 
works out to 603.16%.

8. Average percentage increase already made in the 
salaries of employees other than the managerial 

with the percentage increase in the managerial 

there are any exceptional circumstances for increase 
in the managerial remuneration.

Average percentage increase  made in the salaries of the Employees other than the 
Managerial personnel in the Financial Year 2016 was (24.9%) vis a vis increase of 
4.8% in the salaries of Managerial Personnel.

9. Comparison of the each remuneration of the Key 
Managerial Personnel against the performance of the 
company; Mr. Sudhakar Ram 12,546,017 0.32% 9.39%

Mr. Radhakrishnan Sundar
Executive Director upto 
May 31, 2015

NA NA NA

Mr. Bhagwant Bhargawe
Retired as Company 
Secretary w.e.f. August 
31, 2015

NA NA NA

Mr. Farid Kazani
Resigned as a Group CFO 
and Finance Director 
w.e.f. May 31, 2015

NA NA NA

Dinesh Kalani
Appointed as a Company 
Secretary w.e.f. 

NA NA NA

Jamshed Jussawalla
Appointed as CFO w.e.f. 
June 01, 2015

NA NA NA

10.

11. The ratio of the remuneration of the highest paid 
director to that of the employees who are not 

highest paid director during the year.
12.

remuneration policy of the Company
Yes, the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the company

Managing Director & Group CEO Non- Executive Chairman and Independent Director

Date : April 19, 2016
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1 Date of Shareholders’ 
Approval

August 09, 2007 March 20, 2009 July 17, 2013

2
approved under the 
scheme

1,000,000 1,500,000 2,000,000 2,500,000

3 Vesting Requirements
stock options shall happen 
only on completion of 
one year from the date of 
grant. Maximum vesting 
period is four years from 
the date of Grant

stock options shall happen 
only on completion of 
one year from the date of 
grant. Maximum vesting 
period is four years from 
the date of Grant

stock options shall happen 
only on completion of 
one year from the date of 
grant. Maximum vesting 
period is four years from 
the date of Grant

stock options shall happen 
only on completion of 
one year from the date of 
grant. Maximum vesting 
period is four years from 
the date of Grant

4 Exercise Price or Pricing 
Formula

Market Price The exercise price as may 

Compensation Committee 

the face value of the share 
from time to time or may 

The exercise price as may 

Compensation Committee 

the face value of the share 
from time to time or may 

The exercise price as may 

Compensation Committee 

the face value of the share 
from time to time or may 

5 Maximum Term of Options 
Granted

11 years from the date of 
Grant

11 years from the date of 
Grant

11 years from the date of 
Grant

11 years from the date of 
Grant

6 Source of Shares Primary Primary Primary Primary

7 Variation in terms of 
Options

During the year ended 
June 30, 2011, the 
Company has extended 
the vesting period from 
two years to seven 
years. The company has 
entered into the scheme 
of arrrangement in the 

16. Mastek limited got 
split into Mastek Ltd. & 

this arrangement, the 

revised for the options 
outstanding on the date of 
arrangement

The company has 
entered into the scheme 
of arrrangement in the 

16. Mastek limited got 
split into Mastek Ltd. & 

this arrangement, the 

revised for the options 
outstanding on the date of 
arrangement

The company has 
entered into the scheme 
of arrrangement in the 

16. Mastek limited got 
split into Mastek Ltd. & 

this arrangement, the 

revised for the options 
outstanding on the date of 
arrangement

The company has 
entered into the scheme 
of arrrangement in the 

16. Mastek limited got 
split into Mastek Ltd. & 

this arrangement, the 

revised for the options 
outstanding on the date of 
arrangement
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1

For the year 2015-16** 371,025 308,939 1,315,439 897,373 2,892,776

Weighted Average Exercise Price** 288.07 213.89 122.45 170.01

For the year 2014-15* 411,707 673,514 1,892,300 - 2,977,521

Weighted Average Exercise Price* 285.23 249.29 127.30 -

2 Options Granted during the year

April 01, 2015 - March 31, 2016** - - 353,275 223,850 577,125

Weighted Average Exercise Price** - - 188 174.21

April 01, 2014 - March 31, 2015* - - 326,957 1,069,373 1,396,330

Weighted Average Exercise Price* - - 59.81 171.45

3

As on March 31, 2016** 276,117 143,825 456,443 157,219 1,033,604

Weighted Average Exercise Price** 105.36 64.93 45.39 61.71

As on March 31, 2015* 371,025 276,025 358,783 - 1,005,833

Weighted Average Exercise Price* 288.07 224.33 123.59 -

4

April 01, 2015 - March 31, 2016** 19,162 116,864 252,576 62,000 450,602

Weighted Average Exercise Price** 146.37 208.01 89.67 87.83

April 01, 2014 - March 31, 2015* 15,118 91,575 279,299 - 385,992

Weighted Average Exercise Price* 192.68 217.21 118.43 - -

5
result of exercise of options

April 01, 2015 - March 31, 2016** 19,162 116,864 252,576 62,000 450,602

April 01, 2014 - March 31, 2015* 15,118 91,575 279,299 - 385,992

6

April 01, 2015 - March 31, 2016** 75,496 - - - 75,496

Weighted Average Exercise Price** 111 - - - -

April 01, 2014 - March 31, 2015* - - - - -

Weighted Average Exercise Price* - - - - -

7

April 01, 2015 - March 31, 2016** 250 48,250 73,826 81,850 204,176

Weighted Average Exercise Price** 117 215.87 105 89.48 -

April 01, 2014 - March 31, 2015* 25,564 273,000 624,519 172,000 1,095,083

Weighted Average Exercise Price* 298.78 300.11 106.15 179.00 -

8
year 

April 01, 2015 - March 31, 2016 2,646,159 22,344,089 21,624,438 5,445,404 52,060,090

April 01, 2014 - March 31, 2015 2,912,956 19,890,760 33,076,467 - 55,880,183
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9 Options outstanding at the outstanding of the year

As on March 31, 2016** 276,117 143,825 1,342,312 977,373 2,739,627

Weighted Average Exercise Price** 105.36 64.93 80.69 87.49 -

As on March 31, 2015* 371,025 308,939 1,315,439 897,373 2,892,776

Weighted Average Exercise Price* 288.07 213.89 122.45 170.01 -

10
exercise price received

NA NA NA NA NA

(i) Senior managerial personnel

Ravindra K. Kadam  -  -   10,000  - 

Sanjeev Vishnupant Jagtap  -  -   10,000  - 

Jamshed Burjor Jussawalla  -  -     5,000  - 

Sanjay T. Mudnaney  -  -     5,000  - 

Hiren Ramesh Shah  -  -   15,000  - 

R. Venkatraman  -  -   15,000  - 

Prahlad Koti  -  -   20,000  - 

Anant Thakrar  -  -   10,000  - 

Benjamin Charles Davison  -  -   20,000  - 

 -  -     5,000  - 

Andy Hicketts  -  -   10,000  - 

Nigel Anthony M. Heller  -  -   10,000  - 

Anthony Flack  -  -  -     5,000 

Jason Smith  -  -  -   10,000 

 -  -  -   20,000 

William Yoxall  -  -  -   10,000 

(ii) Employees who were granted, during any one year, 
options amounting to 5% or more of the options 
granted during the year

year

(iii)
during any one year, equal or exceeding 1% of the 
issued capital (excluding outstanding warrants and 
conversions) of the Company at the time of grant

NIL

Diluted Earnings Per Share pursuant to issue 
of shares on exercise of options calculated in 
accordance with Accounting Standard (AS) 20

5.47
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Where the company has calculated the employee 
compensation cost using the intrinsic value of the 

compensation cost so computed and the employee 

April 01, 2015 - March 31, 2016 April 01, 2014 - March 31, 2015

The Company has adopted the intrinsic 

Note on Accounting for Employee Share 

of Chartered Accountants of India for 
measuring the cost of stock options 
granted.

compensation cost for employees stock 

value at the date of grant in accordance 
with Black Scholes model.

The Company has adopted the intrinsic 

Note on Accounting for Employee Share 

of Chartered Accountants of India for 
measuring the cost of stock options 
granted.

compensation cost for employees stock 

value at the date of grant in accordance 
with Black Scholes model.

`  In Lacs ` In Lacs

 1,336.70  7,438.75 

Add - Intrinsic Value Cost - 13.39 

Less - Fair Value Cost 398.83 90.18 

937.87 7,361.96 

Earning per share (Basic) as reported 5.85 33.33

Earning per share (Basic) adjusted 5.47 31.75

Earning per share (Diluted) as reported 5.47 31.75

Earning per share (Diluted) adjusted 3.84 31.43

For stock options exercised during the period the weighted average share price on the date of exercise (`)*

April 01,  2015 - March 31, 2016** 205.39 389.96 289.40 217.83

April 01,  2014 - March 31, 2015* 409.39 301.84 260.69 0.00

For stock options outstanding at the end of the 
period, the range of exercise prices and weighted 

exercise period)*

` Weighted Average Contractual Life (years)
5-150 3.49 4.46 6.69 7.72

276,117 143,825 1,010,737 758,623
151-250 - - 8.79 8.79

- - 331,575 218750
251-350 - - - -

- - - -
351-450 - - - -

- - - -

` Weighted Average Contractual Life (years)
5-150 2.50 5.49 7.43 8.65

31,250 123,339 1,215,439 46,373
151-250 - 4.00 8.07 8.65

- 117,600 30,000.00 851,000
251-350 1.73 3.20 9.07 -

339,775 48,000 70,000.00 -
351-450 - 4.41 - -

- 20,000 - -
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Weighted average exercise price of Options granted 
during the year whose

(a) Exercise price equals market price Nil Nil Nil Nil

Nil Nil 188.00 174.21

(c) Exercise price is less than market price Nil Nil Nil Nil

Weighted average fair value of Options granted 
during the year  whose

(a) Exercise price equals market price Nil Nil Nil Nil

Nil Nil 94.78 85.93

(c) Exercise price is less than market price Nil Nil Nil Nil

Weighted average exercise price of Options granted 
during the year whose

(a) Exercise price equals market price Nil Nil Nil Nil

Nil Nil 261.00 179.00

(c) Exercise price is less than market price Nil Nil 5.00 5.00

Weighted average fair value of Options granted 
during the year  whose

(a) Exercise price equals market price Nil Nil Nil Nil

Nil Nil 128.89 82.76

(c) Exercise price is less than market price Nil Nil 151.72 150.38

Method and Assumptions used to estimate the fair value of options granted during the year

Scholes Option Pricing model. The assumptions 
used in the model are as follows

Weighted Average 
Assumptions

Weighted Average 
Assumptions

Weighted Average 
Assumptions

Weighted Average 
Assumptions

Stock Price (`) Nil Nil 187.05 173.56

Volatility Nil Nil 48.37% 48.89%

Risk free Rate Nil Nil 7.90% 7.56%

Exercise Price (`) Nil Nil 188.00 174.21

Time To Maturity (In Years) Nil Nil 6.00 5.87

Dividend yield Nil Nil 1.34% 1.44%

Weighted Average 
Assumptions

Weighted Average 
Assumptions

Weighted Average 
Assumptions

Weighted Average 
Assumptions

Stock Price (`) Nil Nil 197.08 178.35

Volatility Nil Nil 47.75% 47.81%

Risk free Rate Nil Nil 8.69% 8.75%

Exercise Price (`) Nil Nil 59.81 171.45

Time To Maturity (In Years) Nil Nil 6.00 6.00

Dividend yield Nil Nil 2.34% 2.52%
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353,275

Stock Price (`) 187.05

Volatility 48.37%

Risk free Rate 7.90%

Exercise Price (`) 188.00

Time To Maturity (in years) 600.27%

Dividend yield 1.34%

212,350 11,500

Stock Price (`) 173.35 177.50

Volatility 48.72% 52.15%

Risk free Rate 7.56% 7.51%

Exercise Price (`) 174.00 178.00

Time To Maturity (in years) 600.27% 350.62%

Dividend yield 1.44% 1.41%

Managing Director & Group CEO Non- Executive Chairman and Independent Director

Company Secretary

Date : April 19, 2016
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link to the CSR policy and projects or programmes.

2. The Composition of the CSR Committee:

 a. Ms. Priti Rao (Independent Director)

 c. Mr. Sudhakar Ram (Managing Director & Group CEO)

` 4701.72 Lakhs

` 94.03 Lakhs

 During the year ended March 31, 2016 the Board approved Donations of ` 94.36 Lakhs. Of this, a sum of ` 74.51 Lakhs was spent on Projects 
approved under Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013 on CSR activity and ` 19.85 lakhs was towards the salary and other Administrative 
Expenses of Mastek Foundation, relating to CSR activities of the Company. 

the year 2015-16 was ` 94.03 Lakhs. The amount of `

April 01, 2014. The Company has spent ` 85.36 lakhs (including ̀  19.85 lakhs was towards the salary and other Administrative Expenses of Mastek 
Foundation) on various projects approved under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Sr 

` ` `

1.
and one learning centres for 600 migrant 
children, Supporting learning centres for 
slum dwelling children, Supporting 90 
children residing in Ashalaya orphanage; 
Supporting 55 children  in residential home.

Education

Kharghar-Navi 

Maharashtra

13.45 13.45 13.45

2.
to 6000 patients, awareness generation 
for health workers, farmers, and villagers 
on health and sanitation, Supporting the 
Thalassemia   Prevention program,  Kitchen 
gardening projects for 170 families at the 
foothills of  Assam.

Health 
Care and 
Eradicating  
Malnutrition

Melgahat 
Amravati District, 
Wada District 
Maharashtra, 

Assam. 

15.73 15.73 15.73

3.
open shelter home for 19  girls.

Women 
Empowerment

Neral Raigad 
district.

20.00 17.00 17.00

4. Providing speciality surgeries to street Animal welfare Thane, 
Maharashtra,  

5.13 5.13 5.13

5. Disaster Nepal 6.00 6.00 6.00
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Sr 

` ` `

6. Supporting training and education for 

supporting training of physically differently 

Special 
Education

Badlapur and 
Kolhapur

7.70 7.70 7.70

7. Supporting vocational  training programme 

training of orthopedically handicapped 
students

Vocational 
training

6.50 6.50 6.50

Total 71.51

 *  Donations are given to Mastek Foundation, who gets the project implemented through the following agencies: 

Maharashtra, Kherwadi Social Welfare Agency Maharashtra, Help Youth Trust Chennai, The Action Northeast Trust Assam, Plant and Animal Society, 

shall provide the reasons for not spending the amount in its Board report.

 The shortfall is due to the following reasons:

 a) `

`

Policy of the Company.

Chairperson

Date : April 19, 2016
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97 ANNUAL REPORT 2015-2016

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF MASTEK LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF Mastek Limited

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

of Mastek Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance 

Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary 

information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial 
Statements
2. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters 

stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with 

the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including 

read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and 
Accounting Standard 30, Financial Instruments: Recognition and 
Measurement issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 

standard referred to in Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of 
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting 
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable 
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of 

for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the 

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

4. We have taken into account the provisions of the Act and the Rules 
made thereunder including the accounting standards and matters 
which are required to be included in the audit report.

5. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on 

applicable authoritative pronouncements issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and 
pronouncements require that we comply with ethical requirements 
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 

material misstatement.

6. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence 

statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 

to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 

a true and fair view, in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the 
Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation 

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 

Opinion
8. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according 

statements give the information required by the Act in the manner 
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
9. As required by ‘the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016’, 

issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section 
(11) of section 143 of the Act (hereinafter referred to as the 
“Order”), and on the basis of such checks of the books and records 
of the Company as we considered appropriate and according to the 

Order.

10. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

 (a) We have sought and obtained all the information and 

were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

 (b)  In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law 
have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from 

the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the books of account.

Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

 (e) On the basis of the written representations received from 
the directors as on March 31, 2016 taken on record by the 

on March 31, 2016 from being appointed as a director in 
terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our 

 (g) With respect to the other matters to be included in 
the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion 
and to the best of our knowledge and belief and according 

  i. The Company has disclosed the impact, if any, 
of pending litigations as at March 31, 2016 on 

statements – Refer Notes 21 and 34;

  ii. The Company has made provision as at March 
31, 2016, as required under the applicable law or 
accounting standards, for material foreseeable 
losses, if any, on long-term contracts including 
derivative contracts – Refer Note 7;

  iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, 
required to be transferred, to the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund by the Company during the 
year ended March 31, 2016.

Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

Pradip Kanakia
Mumbai Partner
April 19, 2016   Membership Number 39985
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and 

considering the essential components of internal control stated 
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 

company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention 
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 

Auditors’ Responsibility

audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing 
deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act to the 

by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that 
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 

and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all 
material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence 

effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including 
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 

reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the 

procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in 

dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable 
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 

of the company are being made only in accordance with 
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and 
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely 
detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the 

statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting

management override of controls, material misstatements due to 
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections 

reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 

because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance 
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an 

operating effectively as at March 31, 2016, based on the internal 

considering the essential components of internal control stated 
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India.

Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016
Chartered Accountants

Pradip Kanakia
Mumbai  Partner
April 19, 2016     Membership Number 39985
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 ANNEXURE B TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF MASTEK LIMITED

as of and for the year ended March 31, 2016.

i.  (a) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full 
particulars, including quantitative details and situation, of 

 (c) The title deeds of immovable properties, as disclosed in Note 

are held in the name of the Company.

ii.  The Company is in the business of rendering services, and 
consequently, does not hold any inventory. Therefore, the 
provisions of Clause 3(ii) of the said Order are not applicable to the 
Company.

iii.  The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, 

covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act. 
Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(iii), (iii)(a), (iii)(b) and (iii)(c) 
of the said Order are not applicable to the Company.

iv.  The Company has not granted any loans or made any investments, 
or provided any guarantees or security to the parties covered under 
Section 185 and 186. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(iv) of 
the said Order are not applicable to the Company.

v. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within 
the meaning of Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules 

of cost records under sub- section (1) of Section 148 of the Act for 
any of the products of the Company.

the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed 

though there has been a slight delay in a few cases, and 
is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including 

dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities.

which have not been deposited on account of any dispute. 

Stamp duty as at March 31, 2016 which have not been 
deposited on account of a dispute are as follows:

Name of the statute Nature of dues Amount in ` Period to which 
the amount 

relates

Forum where the dispute is 
pending

The Maharashtra Value Demand of VAT on provision 
of software services 
including interest

152.34 (including 
interest of 57.14)

F.Y. 09-10
(Appeals), Mumbai

1956
Demand of CST on provision 
of software services 
including interest

21.43 (including interest 
of 8.04)

F. Y. 09-10
(Appeals), Mumbai

The Maharashtra Value Demand of VAT on provision 
of software services 
including interest

9.73 (including interest 
of 6.13)

F.Y. 06-07
(Appeals), Mumbai

1956
Demand of CST on provision 
of software services 
including interest

54.73 (including interest 
of 30.82)

F. Y. 06-07
(Appeals), Mumbai

The Gujarat Stamp Act, 
1958

Demand of Stamp Duty on 
Demerger

173.40 F.Y. 14-15 Chief Controlling Revenue 
Authority, Gujarat

viii. As the Company does not have any loans or borrowings from any 

debentures as at the balance sheet date, the provisions of Clause 
3(viii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

offer, further public offer (including debt instruments) and term 

not applicable to the Company.

the Company, carried out in accordance with the generally accepted 
auditing practices in India, and according to the information and 

or employees, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we 
been informed of any such case by the Management.

in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the 
provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

are not applicable to the Company.

in compliance with the provisions of Sections 177 and 188 of 

the Act. The details of such related party transactions have been 

under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during 

of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

with its directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, the 

Company.

of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, the provisions 

Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

Pradip Kanakia
Mumbai   Partner
April 19, 2016     Membership Number 39985
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 As at  As at

Note March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Shareholders’ funds

Share capital 3  1,149.86  1,127.33

Reserves and surplus 4  18,639.24  42,655.58

 19,789.10  43,782.91

Non-current liabilities

5  17.79  85.66

Other long-term liabilities 6  97.07  -

7  493.06  1,206.12

Current liabilities

Trade payables 8  382.26  604.30

Other current liabilities 9  3,221.86  4,675.56

Short-term provisions 10  550.62  1,062.44

Total  24,551.76  51,416.99

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Tangible assets 11 (i)  4,252.66  6,141.71

Intangible assets 11 (ii)  343.20  785.54

Capital work-in-progress  13.70  131.10

Non-current investments 12  215.81  15,227.45

13  1,453.12  1,926.43

14  4,407.51  4,840.09

Other non-current assets 15  256.92  309.58

Current assets

Current investments 16  3,114.11  5,121.20

Trade receivables 17  5,225.00  7,464.04

Cash and bank balances 18  3,543.19  4,978.89

Short-term loans and advances 19  378.10  1,106.04

Other current assets 20  1,348.44  3,384.92

Total  24,551.76  51,416.99

2

Contingent liabilities, capital and other commitments 21, 22

In terms of our report of even date

Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016
For and on behalf of the Board

Pradip Kanakia
Partner
Membership Number: 39985

Sudhakar Ram
Managing Director &  Group CEO

S. Sandilya

Mumbai, April 19, 2016 Jamshed Jussawalla

Dinesh Kalani
Company Secretary

Mumbai, April 19, 2016

BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2016
(All amounts in ` Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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 Year ended  Year ended

Note March 31, 2016  March 31, 2015

Revenue from operations 23  37,866.77  66,511.97

Other income 24  1,647.49  2,305.40

Total Revenue  39,514.26  68,817.37

25  21,495.74  37,684.24

Finance costs 26  23.68  27.43

27  1,488.51  2,702.38

28  14,137.99  21,085.46

Total Expenses  37,145.92  61,499.51

 2,368.34  7,317.86

29  300.20  (494.95)

 2,068.14  7,812.81

 2,068.14  5,905.95

 655.31  1,340.94

 95.82  (86.69)

 (19.56)  (1,527.60)

 1,336.57  6,179.30

44  -    1,906.86

 -    647.41

 -    1,259.45

 1,336.57  7,438.75

Earnings per equity share 30

 Basic (Face value of ` 5 each)  ` 5.85  ` 33.33

 Diluted (Face value of ` 5 each)  ` 5.47  ` 31.75

2

In terms of our report of even date

Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016
For and on behalf of the Board

Pradip Kanakia
Partner
Membership Number: 39985

Sudhakar Ram
Managing Director & Group CEO

S. Sandilya

Mumbai, April 19, 2016 Jamshed Jussawalla

Dinesh Kalani
Company Secretary

Mumbai, April 19, 2016

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016
(All amounts in ` Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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In terms of our report of even date

Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016
For and on behalf of the Board

Pradip Kanakia
Partner
Membership Number: 39985

Sudhakar Ram
Managing Director & Group CEO

S. Sandilya

Mumbai, April 19, 2016 Jamshed Jussawalla

Dinesh Kalani
Company Secretary

Mumbai, April 19, 2016

 Year ended  Year ended
March 31, 2016  March 31, 2015

 2,368.34  7,317.86
Adjustments for :

Interest income  (212.80)  (537.57)
Reversal of accrued revenue  86.47  79.83

 -    13.39
 15.56  21.63

Depreciation and amortization  1,750.61  2,702.38
(Reversal) / Provision for doubtful debts and loans and advances, net  (206.42)  220.30
Bad debts written off  380.49  10.79
Provision / (Reversal) of cost overrun on contracts, net  9.58  (1.92)
Dividend from subsidiary  (239.59)  (820.88)

 (13.45)  (14.85)
 (428.07)  (789.18)

Rental income  (161.26)  (44.32)
 3,349.46  8,157.46

Increase in trade receivables  (210.70)  (4,326.35)
Decrease / (Increase) in loans and advances and other current and non current assets  2,076.95  (2,394.20)
(Decrease) in trade payables, other liabilities and provisions  (801.78)  (223.88)

Cash generated from operations  4,413.93  1,213.03
 (146.28)  280.11
 4,267.65  1,493.14
 (120.88)  (199.59)
 (184.27)  (344.45)

Net cash generated from operating activities  3,962.50  949.10

Proceeds from sale of tangible assets  78.70  60.88
Purchase of tangible and intangible assets, net of capital work-in-progress capitalised  (1,188.43)  (1,985.46)
Interest received  350.20  583.03
Dividend from subsidiary  239.59  820.88
Investment in subsidiaries  -    (3,029.79)
Rental income  161.26  44.32
Realisation / (Investment) of bank deposits having original maturity over three months  1,755.00  (3,850.00)
Sale proceeds of current investments, net  2,435.16  3,807.98

 3,831.48  (3,548.16)
Proceeds from sale of investments in subsidiaries  180.49  2,482.41

Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities  4,011.97  (1,065.75)

Proceeds from issue of shares under the employee stock option schemes  552.07  558.80
 (57.02)  (45.74)

 (920.39)  (973.90)
 (15.56)  (21.63)

 (440.90)  (482.47)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents during the year  7,533.57  (599.12)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  1,087.52  1,686.64
Cash and cash equivalents transferred pursuant to a scheme of arrangement (Refer note 44)  (7,211.52)  -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  1,409.57  1,087.52

Notes :
1.

issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
2.

under which certain assets and liabilities of the Company were transferred to the demerged company (Refer note 44).
3. Cash and cash equivalents - Refer notes 2.17 and note 18
4. Figures in brackets indicate cash outgo.
5.

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016
(All amounts in ` Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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1 General information :

ertically-focused enterprise technology solutions.

 The Company’s offering portfolio includes business and technology services comprising IT Consulting, Application Development, Systems 
Integration, Application Management Outsourcing, Testing, Data Warehousing and Business Intelligence, Application Security, CRM services and 

development centres at Mumbai, Pune, Chennai and Mahape.

 2.1 Basis of preparation

cost convention on accrual basis. Pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014, till the standards of accounting or any addendum thereto are prescribed by Central Government in consultation and recommendation 

under Section 211(3C) [Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, as amended] and other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013.

in the Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of services and the time between the acquisition of assets / inputs for 
processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Group has ascertained its normal operating cycle as 12 months for the 

 2.2 Use of estimates

makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the date 

those estimates.

 2.3 Tangible assets and depreciation

  Tangible assets are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Direct costs are 

  Depreciation on tangible assets is provided on the straight line method, on a pro rata basis, over the estimated useful lives of assets which 

not undergone a change on account of transition to the Companies Act, 2013.

  Assets     
  Buildings    25 - 30 years
  Computers    2 years
  Plant and equipment   5 years

  Vehicles    5 years

 2.4 Intangible assets and amortization

  Intangible assets are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Intangible 
assets are amortized on a straight line method over their estimated useful lives as follows:

  Assets     
  Goodwill     3 years
  Computer software   1 - 5 years

Company.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016
(All amounts in ` Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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 2.5 Impairment of assets

  At each Balance Sheet date, the Company assesses whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication 

or many have decreased.

 2.6 Investments

  Investments that are readily realisable and are intended to be held for not more than one year from the date on which such investments 

carried at cost or fair value, whichever is lower. Non-current investments are carried at cost. However, provision for other than temporary 
decline in value is made to recognise a decline, other than temporary, in the value of non-current investments, such reduction being 
determined and made for each investment individually. 

  Investment property: Investment in buildings that are not intended to be occupied substantially for use by, or in the operations of, the 

accumulated impairment losses, if any. Refer note 2.3 for depreciation rate used for buildings.

 2.7 Foreign currency transactions and translation

translated at the rate prevailing on the Balance Sheet date whereas non-monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the rate prevailing 
on the date of the transaction. Gains and losses resulting from the settlement of foreign currency monetary items and from the translation 

where the transaction is settled during the reporting period, and b) the same foreign currency amount translated at the latter of the date 

 2.8 Derivative instruments and hedge accounting

  The use of hedging instruments is governed by the policies of the Company which are approved by its Board of Directors. 

  Hedging instruments are initially measured at fair value, and are remeasured at subsequent reporting dates. Changes in the fair value of 

accounting. At that time for forecasted transactions, any cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument recognised in shareholders’ 

 

insurance, labour welfare fund and superannuation fund in India which are administered through Government of India and/

 

actuary. The actuarial valuation method used by independent actuary for measuring the liability is the projected unit credit 
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encashment vests equivalent to salary payable for number of days of accumulated leave balance subject to an upper limit as 

date, carried out by an independent actuary. The actuarial valuation method used by independent actuary for measuring the 

as paid annual leave and performance incentives.

to settle the obligations.

 2.10 Revenue recognition

  The Company derives revenues primarily from information technology services. Revenue is recognised in accordance with the terms of the 
contracts with customers as the service is performed by the proportionate completion method and when it is reasonably certain that the 
ultimate collection will be made. Revenues on time and material contracts are recognised when services are rendered and related costs are 

contract costs incurred for work performed up to the reporting date bear to the estimated total contract costs. The cumulative impact of 

estimated losses on such contracts are made during the period in which a loss becomes probable and can be reasonably estimated. When 

uncertainty and the amount of revenue originally recorded is not adjusted.

  Revenues from maintenance contracts are recognised on a straight line basis over the period of the contract. 

rewards of ownership are transferred to the buyer and the ultimate collection is reasonably certain.

 2.11 Other income

  Dividend income from subsidiaries and on other investments is recognised when the right to receive payment is established. Interest 
income is recognised on time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the applicable rate of interest. Rental income 
is recognised on a straight line basis over the term of the lease as per the terms of the base contract.

 2.12 Leases

capitalised at the lower of the fair value at the inception of the lease and the present value of minimum lease payments and a liability is 
created for an equivalent amount. Such assets are disclosed as leased assets under tangible assets and are depreciated in accordance with 

the lease term. Assets given under operating leases are capitalised in the Balance Sheet under tangible assets and are depreciated as per 

 2.13 Earnings per share

weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed by adjusting the number 
of shares used for basic EPS with the weighted average number of shares that could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive 
potential equity shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the year, unless they have been issued 
at a later date. The diluted potential equity shares have been adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the shares been actually issued at 
fair value i.e. average market value of outstanding shares. The number of shares and potentially dilutive shares are adjusted for share splits 
and bonus shares, as appropriate. In calculating diluted earnings per share, the effects of anti dilutive potential equity shares are ignored. 
Potential equity shares are anti-dilutive when there conversion to equity shares would increase earnings per share or decrease loss per 
share.



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016 (Contd.)
(All amounts in ` Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

106

 2.14 Income Taxes

considered appropriate.

intention to settle the asset and liability on a net basis. 

 2.15 Accounting for Employee Stock Options

1999 are accounted as per the treatment prescribed by the Guidance Note on Employee Share-based Payments issued by the Institute of 

lapsed portion and a debit to share options outstanding account equal to the un-amortised portion.

 2.16 Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. Provisions are reviewed regularly and are adjusted where necessary 

recognized as a separate asset, only when such reimbursement is virtually certain.

 2.17 Cash and Cash Equivalents

  Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, demand deposits with banks and other short term highly liquid investments with original 
maturities of three months or less.

3 Share capital  As at 
March 31, 2016

 As at 
March 31, 2015

Authorised:

40,000,000 (March 31, 2015: 40,000,000) equity shares of ` 5/- each  2,000.00  2,000.00 

2,000,000 (March 31, 2015: 2,000,000) preference shares of ` 100/- each  2,000.00  2,000.00 

Total  4,000.00  4,000.00 

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up :

22,997,274 (March 31, 2015 : 22,546,672) equity shares of ` 5/- each fully paid  1,149.86  1,127.33 

Total  1,149.86  1,127.33 

(a) Reconciliation of the number of shares As at March 31, 2016 As at March 31, 2015

 No. of shares  Amount  No. of shares  Amount 

 Equity Shares

 Balance as at the beginning of the year  22,546,672  1,127.33  22,160,680  1,108.03 

stock option plans [Refer note 32 (c)]
 450,602  22.53  385,992  19.30 

 Balance as at the end of the year  22,997,274  1,149.86  22,546,672  1,127.33 
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 (b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares       

  The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of ` 5 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. 
The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, 

Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

(c) Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company

As at March 31, 2016 As at March 31, 2015

No. of shares % of holding No. of shares % of holding

 Equity Shares of ` 5 each held by:

 Ashank Desai                                                   3,099,552 13.48%  3,099,552 13.75%

 Sudhakar Ram                                                   2,791,680 12.14%  2,791,680 12.38%

 2,519,100 10.95%  2,519,100 11.17%

 1,275,000 5.54%  1,650,000 7.32%

 Radhakrishnan Sundar                                           1,445,800 6.29%  1,445,800 6.41%

 (d)  Shares reserved for issue under options 

 As at 
March 31, 2016

 As at 
March 31, 2015

Number of shares to be issued under the Employee Stock Option Plans  2,739,627  2,892,776 

  [Refer note 32(a) for details of shares to be issued under the Employee Stock Option Scheme.]

 (e)  Shares bought back (during 5 years immediately preceding March 31, 2016)

March 
31, 2016

March 
31, 2015

March 
31, 2014

March 
31, 2013

June 
30, 2012

Equity Shares bought back  -    -    2,484,007  2,388,000  -   

4. Reserves and surplus

 As at 
March 31, 2016

 As at 
March 31, 2015

Capital reserve

Balance as at the beginning of the year  106.07  106.07 

 (106.07)  -   

Balance as at the end of the year  -    106.07 

Capital redemption reserve account

Balance as at the beginning of the year  1,538.87  1,538.87 

Balance as at the end of the year  1,538.87  1,538.87 

Securities premium account

Balance as at the beginning of the year  545.16  5.66 

 529.54  539.50 

under the employee stock option plans
 6.40  -   

Balance as at the end of the year  1,081.10  545.16 
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 As at 
March 31, 2016

 As at 
March 31, 2015

Employee stock options outstanding account

Balance as at the beginning of the year  131.75  -   

Addition on account of employee stock option plans  33.38  131.75 

 (84.07)  -   

employee stock option plans
 (6.40)  -   

Balance as at the end of the year [Refer note 32(f)]  74.66  131.75 

General reserve

Balance as at the beginning of the year  2,415.67  2,235.67 

 (2,415.67)  -   

 -    180.00 

Balance as at the end of the year  -    2,415.67 

Hedging reserve account

Balance as at the beginning of the year  1,880.91  31.20 

 (594.64)  1,849.71 

 (187.96)  -   

Balance as at the end of the year (Refer note 35)  1,098.31  1,880.91 

Balance as at the beginning of the year  36,037.15  29,311.97 

 (21,879.69)  -   

 1,336.57  7,438.75 

 Interim dividend ` 2.50/- per share (Previous year ` 1.50/- per share)  (577.07)  (336.64)

` 1/- per share)  -    (227.30)

 (70.66)  30.37 

 Transfer to general reserve during the year  -    (180.00)

Balance as at the end of the year  14,846.30  36,037.15 

Total  18,639.24  42,655.58 

` 117.48 (previous year ` 73.20) on interim 
` 46.82 (previous year `

Act, 1961 by the Company on dividend received from a foreign subsidiary during the year.

5. Long-term borrowings

 As at 
March 31, 2016

 As at 
March 31, 2015

Secured :

 17.79  85.66 

(a) Nature of security and terms of repayment for secured borrowings 

Nature of Security Terms of Repayment

Finance lease obligations are secured by 
hypothecation of assets underlying the 
leases.

Monthly payment of Equated monthly 
instalments beginning from the month 
subsequent to taking the lease.
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6. Other long-term liabilities

 As at 
March 31, 2016

 As at 
March 31, 2015

Security and other deposits  97.07  -   

7. Long-term provisions

 As at 
March 31, 2016

 As at 
March 31, 2015

 Provision for leave encashment [Refer note 31(c)]  467.71  1,190.36 

Other provisions

 25.35  15.76 

Total  493.06  1,206.12 

8. Trade payables

 As at 
March 31, 2016

 As at 
March 31, 2015

Trade payables  (Refer note 38)  382.26  604.30 

9. Other current liabilities

 As at 
March 31, 2016

 As at 
March 31, 2015

 30.23  49.56 

 286.06  232.86 

 38.62  41.37 

Security and other deposits  0.48  1.58 

Other payables

 669.88  1,501.23 

 1,779.47  2,194.46 

Capital creditors  24.59  149.83 

 392.53  504.67 

Total  3,221.86  4,675.56 

 (a) There is no amount due for payment to Investor Education and Protection Fund under Section 205C of the Companies Act, 1956 as at the 

10. Short-term provisions

 As at 
March 31, 2016

 As at 
March 31, 2015

Provision for leave encashment [Refer note 31(c)]  550.62  789.78 

Others

` 1.00/- per share) on equity shares of 
face value of ` 5/- each

 -    225.47 

 -    47.19 

Total  550.62  1,062.44 
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12. Non-current investments

 As at 
March 31, 2016

 As at 
March 31, 2015

(A) Investment property (at cost less accumulated depreciation)

Gross block

Opening  389.41  389.41 

 (387.62)  -   

Closing  1.79  389.41 

Opening  148.57  134.65 

Depreciation for the year  -    13.92 

 (146.78)  -   

Closing  1.79  148.57 

Net block  -    240.84 

(B) Trade investments

(Refer notes 42 and 44)
 -    14,590.26 

(net of provision for other than temporary decline in value  ` 542.44 in the previous year)  -    175.54 

200,000 (Previous year - 200,000) Equity Shares of £ 1 each, fully paid up  215.81  215.81 

 -    5.00 

Nil (Previous year - 50,000) Equity Shares of ` 10 each, fully paid up

Total  215.81  14,986.61 

Total ( A + B )  215.81  15,227.45 

Aggregate amount of investment property  -    240.84 

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments  215.81  14,986.61 

Aggregate provision for other than temporary decline in value of unquoted investments  -    (542.44)

13. Deferred tax assets

 As at 
March 31, 2016

 As at 
March 31, 2015

Depreciation  886.87  1,053.29 

Provision for gratuity and leave encashment  352.42  631.58 

Provision for doubtful debts and advances  51.34  134.62 

Other timing differences  162.49  106.94 

Total  1,453.12  1,926.43 
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14. Long-term loans and advances

 As at 
March 31, 2016

 As at 
March 31, 2015

Capital advances  71.51  25.48 

Security deposits  108.71  139.62 

 2.25  12.94 

Other loans and advances

 1,729.87  1,961.68 

MAT credit entitlement [Refer note 34(a)]  2,436.59  2,694.26 

Advances to employees  0.78  6.11 

Other advances  57.80  -   

Total  4,407.51  4,840.09 

15. Other non-current assets

 As at 
March 31, 2016

 As at 
March 31, 2015

Mark-to-market gains receivable on outstanding derivative contracts (Refer note 35)  256.92  309.58 

16. Current investments

 As at 
March 31, 2016

 As at 
March 31, 2015

At cost or market value, whichever is less:
Investment in Mutual Funds (quoted):

 640.64 
(37,027 units, Previous year - Nil units)

 596.47 
(246,814 units, Previous year - Nil units)
ICICI Prudential Money Market Fund - Regular - Growth  150.00 
(71,787 units, Previous year - Nil units)

 200.00 
(8,064 units, Previous year - Nil units)
Franklin  India TMA - Super IP - Growth  203.10 
(9,282 units, Previous year - Nil units)

 423.90 
(1,764,200 units, Previous year - Nil units)

 450.00 
(2,186,228 units, Previous year - Nil units)

 450.00 
(2,988,941 units, Previous year - Nil units)
HDFC Cash Management Fund - Savings Plan - Growth  -    450.00 
(Nil units, Previous year - 4,500,000 units)

 -    500.00 
(Nil units, Previous year - 5,000,000 units)

 -    1,301.20 
(Nil units, Previous year - 13,011,960 units)

 -    370.00 
(Nil units, Previous year - 3,700,000 units)
HDFC FMP 376D May 2014 (1) - Series 31 - Regular - Growth  -    500.00 
(Nil units, Previous year - 5,000,000 units)
ICICI Prudential FMP series 74 - (368 days) Plan Y Regular Plan Cumulative  -    500.00 
(Nil units, Previous year - 5,000,000 units)
HDFC FMP 370D April 2014 (1) - Series 31 - Regular - Growth  -    1,500.00 
(Nil units, Previous year - 15,000,000 units)

Total  3,114.11  5,121.20 

Aggregate amount of quoted investments  3,114.11  5,121.20 

Market value of quoted investments  3,137.98  5,453.71 
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17. Trade receivables

 As at 
March 31, 2016

 As at 
March 31, 2015

 -    58.70 

Others  5,225.00  7,405.34 

 148.34  345.46 

Others  -    50.60 

 (148.34)  (396.06)

Total  5,225.00  7,464.04 

18. Cash and bank balances

 As at 
March 31, 2016

 As at 
March 31, 2015

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand  3.49  2.00 

Bank balances

In current accounts  428.31  400.07 

 977.77  685.45 

 1,409.57  1,087.52 

Other bank balances

 2,095.00  3,850.00 

 38.62  41.37 

 2,133.62  3,891.37 

Total  3,543.19  4,978.89 

19. Short-term loans and advances

 As at 
March 31, 2016

 As at 
March 31, 2015

Security deposits  14.38  19.45 

 29.23  122.00 

 91.44  771.75 

 55.50  150.90 

Advances to suppliers

Considered good  144.57  2.65 

Considered doubtful  -    7.26 

 -    (7.26)

Advances to employees  42.98  39.29 

Total  378.10  1,106.04 

20. Other current assets

 As at 
March 31, 2016

 As at 
March 31, 2015

 88.62  157.33 

 54.02  122.71 

Margin money deposit  1.65  1.65 

Accrued revenue  225.59  814.18 

 137.17  717.72 

Mark-to-market gains receivable on outstanding derivative contracts (Refer note 35)  841.39  1,571.33 

Total  1,348.44  3,384.92 
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21. Contingent liabilities

 As at 
March 31, 2016

 As at 
March 31, 2015

Corporate performance guarantees given by the Company on behalf of the following subsidiaries:

(a)  -    7,354.88 

(b)  -    1,562.50 

(c)  2,500.30  8,386.12 

Corporate guarantees given by the Company on behalf of the following subsidiary:

(a)  -    1,875.00 

Standby letter of credit given by the Company on behalf of following subsidiary:

(a)  -    918.75 

Claims against Company not acknowledged as debts

(a)  238.23  173.77 

(b) Stamp Duty matter  231.20  -   

default event or resolution of respective proceedings. 

22. Capital and other commitments

 As at 
March 31, 2016

 As at 
March 31, 2015

Capital commitments

 295.24  84.87 

23. Revenue from operations

 Year ended  
March 31, 2016 

 Year ended  
March 31, 2015 

Information technology services  37,843.96  66,048.24 

Other operating revenue

 -    43.21 

Secondment fees  -    335.22 

Resale of software and hardware  -    49.85 

Doubtful debts recovered  22.81  35.45 

Total  37,866.77  66,511.97 

24. Other income

 Year ended  
March 31, 2016 

 Year ended  
March 31, 2015 

Interest income

 161.61  212.98 

 39.64  310.58 

On others  11.55  14.01 

Dividend income from subsidiary  239.59  820.88 

 13.45  14.85 

 428.07  789.18 

Rental income [Refer note 33(i)]  161.26  44.32 

Net gain on foreign currency transactions and translation  128.00  -   

Miscellaneous income  464.32  98.60 

Total  1,647.49  2,305.40 
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25.

 Year ended  
March 31, 2016 

 Year ended  
March 31, 2015 

Salaries, wages and performance incentives  20,711.60  35,336.74 

Gratuity [Refer note 31(b)(iv)]  92.81  773.07 

Contribution to provident and other funds  [Refer note 31(a)]  396.39  995.18 

 -    13.39 

 294.94  565.86 

Total  21,495.74  37,684.24 

26. Finance costs

 Year ended  
March 31, 2016 

 Year ended  
March 31, 2015 

 15.56  21.63 

Bank charges  7.67  5.80 

 0.45  -   

Total  23.68  27.43 

27. Depreciation and amortization expenses

 Year ended  
March 31, 2016 

 Year ended  
March 31, 2015 

Depreciation on tangible assets  1,052.26  1,593.87 

Amortization on intangible assets  698.35  1,094.59 

Depreciation on investment property  -    13.92 

 (262.10)

Total  1,488.51  2,702.38 

28. Other expenses

 Year ended  
March 31, 2016 

 Year ended  
March 31, 2015 

Hire charges  84.29  249.92 

 105.28  250.00 

Travelling and conveyance  1,549.39  2,069.37 

Communication charges  175.95  278.39 

Electricity  401.25  736.80 

Consultancy and sub-contracting charges  9,002.92  13,868.18 

Purchase of hardware and software  -    343.75 

 113.74  307.44 

Repairs to buildings  314.94  453.10 

Repairs : others  818.92  964.58 

Insurance  69.47  95.47 

Printing and stationery  35.95  73.17 

Professional fees (Refer note (a) below)  665.98  481.80 

Rent [Refer note 33(i)]  213.38  127.40 

Advertisement and publicity  80.05  171.24 

 85.36  84.94 

Net loss on foreign currency transactions and translation  -    47.44 
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28. Other expenses (contd.)

 Year ended  
March 31, 2016 

 Year ended  
March 31, 2015 

(Reversal) / Provision for doubtful debts and loans and advances, net  (206.42)  220.30 

Bad debt written off  380.49  10.79 

Provision / (Reversal) for cost overrun on contracts, net  9.58  (1.92)

Reversal of accrued revenue  86.47  79.83 

 151.00  173.47 

Total  14,137.99  21,085.46 

(a)  Professional fees include payment to auditors :

 Year ended  
March 31, 2016 

 Year ended  
March 31, 2015 

i. As auditor

Statutory audit  25.00  46.00 

 15.00  24.00 

Other services  8.30  9.50 

ii.  3.02  4.40 

(b)  

29. Exceptional Items, net

 Year ended  
March 31, 2016 

 Year ended  
March 31, 2015 

 (4.95)  (1,038.99)

 120.88  199.59 

Professional fees  65.30  270.29 

Salaries, wages and performance incentives  -    65.00 

Others  118.97  9.16 

 300.20  (494.95)

30. Earnings Per Share (EPS)

 Year ended  
March 31, 2016 

 Year ended  
March 31, 2015 

The components of basic and diluted earnings per share for total operations are as follows:

(a)  1,336.57  7,438.75 

(b) Weighted average number of outstanding equity shares

Considered for basic EPS 22,831,685 22,320,332

Add : Effect of dilutive potential equity shares arising from outstanding stock options 1,607,892 1,106,757

Considered for diluted EPS 24,439,577 23,427,089

(c) Earnings per share in `

Basic  ` 5.85  ` 33.33 

Diluted  ` 5.47  ` 31.75 

(Face value per share ` 5/- each)
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31.

 Year ended  
March 31, 2016 

 Year ended  
March 31, 2015 

(a)

year:

Contribution to provident fund  344.85  906.50 

 0.45  5.26 

 0.50  1.37 

Superannuation contribution  9.93  34.93 

Contribution plans (branch outside India)  40.66  47.12 

Total (Refer note 25)  396.39  995.18 

(b)

As per the independent actuarial valuation carried out as at March 31, 2016

 As at 
March 31, 2016

 As at 
March 31, 2015

(i)

 3,661.62  2,883.96 

Service cost  259.49  383.95 

Interest cost  174.34  292.96 

Actuarial (gain) / loss  (166.62)  337.41 

 (200.91)  (236.66)

Transferred pursuant to a scheme of arrangement (Refer note 44)  (1,963.71)  -   

 1,764.21  3,661.62 

(ii) Change in fair value of assets:

Fair value of plan assets - opening  3,783.62  2,156.78 

 205.57  211.10 

Employer’s contribution  0.04  1,622.25 

Transferred pursuant to a scheme of arrangement (Refer note 44)  (1,963.71)  -   

 (200.91)  (236.66)

Actuarial gain  (31.17)  30.15 

Fair value of plan assets - closing  1,793.44  3,783.62 

(iii) Amount recognized in the Balance Sheet

Present value of obligations  1,764.21  3,661.62 

 (1,793.44)  (3,783.62)

Net assets recognized  (29.23)  (122.00)

Recognised under:

Short-term loans and advances (Refer note 19)  (29.23)  (122.00)

Total  (29.23)  (122.00)
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 Year ended  
March 31, 2016 

 Year ended  
March 31, 2015 

(iv) Net gratuity cost for the year

Service cost  259.49  383.95 

Interest cost  174.34  292.96 

 (205.57)  (211.10)

Net actuarial (gain) / loss recognized in the current year  (135.45)  307.26 

Net gratuity cost (Refer note 25)  92.81  773.07 

(v) Asset information

100% 100%

(vi) Assumptions used in accounting for the gratuity plan:

Discount rate (p.a.) 8.00% 7.95%

Return on Plan Assets (p.a.) 8.85% 8.85%

Salary escalation rate (p.a.) 10.00% 10.00%

Retirement age 60 years 60 years

The estimates of salary escalation, considered in actuarial valuation, takes into account 

in the employment market.

(vii)

 Year ended  
March 31, 2016 

 Year ended  
March 31, 2015 

Gratuity  200.00  600.00 

(viii) Amounts recognised in current year and previous four years:

March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015  March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013 June 30, 2012

 1,764.21  3,661.62  2,883.96  2,968.23  2,493.54 

Plan assets  1,793.44  3,783.62  2,156.78  1,302.88  876.95 

 29.23  122.00  (727.18)  (1,665.35)  (1,616.59)

 On plan liabilities  (157.05)  (166.77)  (145.51)  (9.25)  (143.20)

 On plan assets  (31.17)  30.15  66.76  2.74  (18.40)

         As at        
March 31, 2016

       As at        
 March 31, 2015

(c)

Opening balance  1,980.14  1,812.96 

Charge during the year  546.99  955.08 

Transferred pursuant to a scheme of arrangement (Refer note 44)  (872.92)  -   

Amount paid during the year  (635.89)  (787.90)

term provisions (Refer note 10)]
 1,018.32  1,980.14 
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32. Employee Stock Option Scheme

(a) Nature and extent of employee share-based payment plans that existed during the year:

i. Plan IV

"The Shareholders of the Company through Postal Ballot on August 9, 2007 approved the allocation of 1,000,000 stock options to the 
eligible employees of the Company and its subsidiaries.

The Company subsequently established a new scheme in 2007 for granting 1,000,000 stock options to the employees referred to above, 

scheme is governed by the Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Guidelines issued in 1999 by SEBI and as 

the vesting period. No options have been granted under the scheme at below market price and consequently, there is no compensation 
cost in the current year. "

(No of Options)

 Year ended 
March 31, 2016 

 Year ended
 March 31, 2015 

Opening Balance  371,025  411,707 

Granted during the year  -    -   

 (19,162)  (15,118)

Cancelled during the year  (75,746)  (25,564)

 276,117  371,025 

ii. Plan V

The Company introduced a new scheme in 2008 for granting 1,500,000 stock options to the employees, each option representing one 

and such price may be the face value of the share from time to time or may be the Market Price or any price as may be decided by the 
Committee and will be governed by the guidelines issued by SEBI. The scheme is governed by the Employee Stock Option Scheme and 

(No of Options)

 Year ended 
March 31, 2016 

 Year ended
 March 31, 2015 

Opening Balance  308,939  673,514 

Granted during the year  -    -   

 (116,864)  (91,575)

Cancelled during the year  (48,250)  (273,000)

 143,825  308,939 

iii. Plan VI

The Company introduced a new scheme in 2010 for granting 2,000,000 stock options to the employees, each option representing one 

share from time to time or may be the Market Price or any price as may be decided by the Committee and will be governed by the 
guidelines issued by SEBI. The scheme is governed by the Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Guidelines 

be recognized and amortized on a straight line basis over the vesting period. 



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016 (Contd.)
(All amounts in ` Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

120

(No of Options)

 Year ended 
March 31, 2016 

 Year ended
 March 31, 2015 

Opening Balance  1,315,439  1,892,300 

Granted during the year  353,275  326,957 

 (252,576)  (279,299)

Cancelled during the year  (73,826)  (624,519)

 1,342,312  1,315,439 

iv. Plan VII

The Company introduced a new scheme in 2013 for granting 2,500,000 stock options to its employees, employees of its subsidiaries and 

may be determined by the Committee and such price may be the face value of the share from time to time or may be the Market Price 
or any price as may be decided by the Committee and will be governed by the guidelines issued by SEBI. The scheme is governed by 
the Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Guidelines issued in 1999 by SEBI and as amended from time to time. 

the vesting period. 

(No of Options)

 Year ended 
March 31, 2016 

 Year ended
 March 31, 2015 

Opening Balance  897,373  -   

Granted during the year  223,850  1,069,373 

 (62,000)  -   

Cancelled during the year  (81,850)  (172,000)

 977,373  897,373 

(b) The Company has adopted the intrinsic value method as permitted by the SEBI Guidance Note on Accounting for Employee Share 
Based Payment issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India for measuring the cost of stock options granted.

recognised based on the fair value at the date of grant in accordance with Black Scholes model.

 Year ended 
March 31, 2016 

 Year ended
 March 31, 2015 

 1,336.57  7,438.75 

 (398.70)  (90.18)

 -    13.39 

 937.87  7,361.96 

Basic Earning per share (EPS)

Number of shares 22,831,685 22,320,332

Basic EPS as reported (`)  ` 5.85  ` 33.33 

Proforma Basic EPS (`)  ` 4.11  ` 32.98 

Diluted Earning per share (EPS)

Number of shares 24,439,577 23,427,089

Diluted EPS as reported (`)  ` 5.47  ` 31.75 

Proforma Diluted EPS (`)  ` 3.84  ` 31.43 
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(c)

 Year ended 
March 31, 2016 

 Year ended
 March 31, 2015 

 450,602  385,992 

`) 123.94  144.77 

(d)

Options Outstanding
Weighted Average 
Exercise Price (`)

Weighted Average 
remaining 

Contractual Life 
(years)

As at March 31, 2016

Range of Exercise Price (`)

0 -  150  2,189,302  60.21  6.21 

151-  250  550,325  182.52  8.79 

Total  2,739,627  84.78  6.73 

As at March 31, 2015

`)

0 -  150  1,416,401  111.51  7.19 

151-  250  998,600  186.23  8.09 

250 -  350  457,775  295.24  3.01 

Above  350  20,000  376.00  4.41 

Total  2,892,776  168.21  6.82 

(e) Information on stock options granted during the year :

 Year ended 
March 31, 2016 

 Year ended
 March 31, 2015 

No. of options granted during the year  577,125  1,396,330 

Option Pricing model used
Discounted price as per the scheme

Weighted average share price (`) 181.82 182.74

`) 182.65 145.31

48.57% 47.80%

 5.95  6.00 

Dividend yield (%) 1.38% 2.48%

Risk free interest rate (%) 7.77% 8.74%

The risk free interest rates are determined based on the zero-coupon yield curve for government securities. The volatility is determined 

on the average dividend yields for preceding seven years.

(f)

 Year ended 
March 31, 2016 

 Year ended
 March 31, 2015 

 -    13.39 

Employee stock options outstanding account (Refer note 4)  74.66  131.75 
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33. Leases

(i) Operating leases

         As at        
March 31, 2016

       As at        
 March 31, 2015

Lease Payments

(a) Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases (in respect of 
properties):

Due within one year  55.79  28.18 

Due later than 1 year but not later than 5 years  58.52  16.44 

Total minimum lease payments  114.31  44.62 

 Year ended 
March 31, 2016 

 Year ended
 March 31, 2015 

(b)  213.38  127.40 

(c)

The Company has given refundable interest free security deposits under the lease 
agreements.

All agreements contain provision for renewal at the option of either party.

All agreements provide for restriction on sub lease.

         As at        
March 31, 2016

       As at        
 March 31, 2015

Lease Income

(a) Future minimum lease income under non-cancellable operating leases (in respect of 
properties):

Due within one year  168.00  -   

Due later than 1 year but not later than 5 years  196.00  -   

Total minimum lease payments  364.00  -   

 Year ended 
March 31, 2016 

 Year ended
 March 31, 2015 

(b)  161.26  44.32 

(c)

The Company has taken refundable interest free security deposits under the lease 
agreements.

(ii) Finance leases

         As at        
March 31, 2016

       As at        
 March 31, 2015

Due within one year  35.96  66.42 

Due later than 1 year but not later than 5 years  19.58  96.62 

Total minimum lease payments  55.54  163.04 

 (7.52)  (27.82)

Present value of net minimum lease payments  48.02  135.22 

Disclosed under:

 17.79  85.66 

Other current liabilities (Refer note 9)  30.23  49.56 

 48.02  135.22 
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34. Income Taxes

` 2,436.59 
(Previous year `

` 2,835.05 (including interest of ` 853.09) primarily on account of 
transfer pricing issues for the assessment years 2006-07 to 2011-12. For the assessment year 2006-07 and assessment year 2007-

  
Considering the facts, materiality and favourable order of the second appellate authority for assessment years 2006-07 and 2007-08 and 

35. Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company, in accordance with its risk management policies and procedures, enters into foreign currency forward contracts to hedge against 

trading or speculative purposes. The counter party is generally a bank. These contracts are for a period between one day and two years. The 

 As at 
 March 31, 2016 

 As at  
March 31, 2015 

Foreign Currency (FC) No. of 
Contracts

Amount of 
Forward 
contracts 

(FC in Lakhs)

Amount of 
Forward 
contracts 

(` in Lakhs)

No. of 
Contracts

Amount of 
Forward 
contracts 

Amount of 
Forward 
contracts 

(`

a  -    -    -   50  229.80  15,460.96 

b GBP 53  138.55  15,060.84 52  158.40  17,066.17 

Mark-to-Market (gains) / losses As at 
March 31, 2016

 As at 
March 31, 2015 

Mark-to-Market losses provided for  -    -   

Mark-to-Market gains reported in hedging reserve account (Refer note 4)  (1,098.31)  (1,880.91)

Mark-to-Market gains, net  (1,098.31)  (1,880.91)

 (256.92)  (309.58)

 (841.39)  (1,571.33)

36. Related Party Disclosures

Digility Inc. (w.e.f Nov 17, 2015)

Majesco Sdn. Bhd. (up to March 31, 2015) +

Majesco Software and Solutions Inc. (up to March 31, 2015) +
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36. Related Party Disclosures (contd.)

+ Demerged

C.  Other related parties with whom the Company had transactions during the year

Sudhakar Ram
Jamshed Jussawalla (from June 1, 2015)
Hiren Shah (from April 1, 2015)
Vinay Rajadhyaksha (up to August 13, 2014)
Stefan Van Overtveldt  (up to April 30, 2014)

Disclosure of transactions between the Company and related parties and the status of outstanding balances as on March 31, 2016, including 
names of the related parties comprising more than 10% of the total transactions / balances of the same type, are given below:

c The Company has entered into transactions with the following related parties:

 Year ended 
March 31, 2016 

 Year ended 
March 31, 2015 

i. Information Technology Services 

 34,719.30  43,093.75 

Majesco Software and Solutions Inc.  -    15,481.99 

Others  -    2,828.08 

ii. Other Operating Revenue - Secondment fees

 -    7.53 

Majesco Software and Solutions Inc.  -    138.86 

 -    77.98 

Majesco Sdn. Bhd.  -    65.59 

Others  -    52.79 

iii. Dividend from subsidiary

 239.59  820.88 

iv. Other income - Miscellaneous income

 -    12.71 

 -    1.80 

Others  -    0.28 

v.

 15.38  71.23 

Majesco Software and Solutions Inc.  -    40.29 

 -    6.84 
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 As at 
March 31, 2016 

 As at 
March 31, 2015 

vi. Other income - Rental Income

 0.24  -   

vii.

 1,763.68  1,177.71 

Majesco Software and Solutions Inc.  -    167.45 

 -    133.06 

Others  -    48.48 

viii. Total remuneration to key management personnel 

Sudhakar Ram  125.46  119.40 

Radhakrishnan Sundar  -    27.28 

Jamshed Jussawalla  45.97  -   

Vinay Rajadhyakhsha  -    212.59 

Stefan Van Overtveldt  -    227.05 

 -    178.89 

 -    112.91 

Hiren Shah  42.81  -   

Vinay Rajadhyakhsha  -    108.00 

 -    68.40 

 -    46.15 

Hiren Shah  3.62  -   

(b) Balances :

 As at 
March 31, 2016 

 As at
March 31, 2015 

i. Trade Receivables

 4,347.03  3,944.65 

Majesco Software and Solutions Inc.  -    1,264.21 

 -    638.74 

Others  -    201.59 

ii.

 (142.61)  682.41 

Majesco Software and Solutions Inc.  -    30.12 

Others  -    1.36 

iii. Corporate guarantees issued / Standby letter of credit given on behalf of subsidiaries

 -    2,793.75 

iv. Purchase of Equity shares in subsidiaries

 -    3,024.79 

 -    5.00 

v. Proceeds from sale of shares in subsidiaries

 -    439.47 

 -    2,042.94 
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37 . Segment reporting

38. Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

available with the Company regarding the status of registration of such vendors under the said Act, as per the intimation received from them on 
requests made by the company. There are no overdue principal amounts / interest payable amounts for delayed payments to such vendors at the 
Balance Sheet date. There are no delays in payment made to such suppliers during the year or for any earlier years and accordingly there is no 
interest paid or outstanding interest in this regard in respect of payments made during the year or on balance brought forward from previous year. 

39. Other disclosures

a. The Company is engaged in the development of computer software and other software related services. Considering the nature of business, 
certain details required under the revised schedule VI are not applicable, to the Company.

b. Value of Imports on C.I.F. basis

 Year ended 
March 31, 2016 

 Year ended
March 31, 2015 

Capital goods  258.16  742.69 

c.

 Year ended 
March 31, 2016 

 Year ended
March 31, 2015 

Salaries, wages and performance incentives  12,141.28  12,276.78 

Travelling and conveyance  855.53  938.43 

Consultancy charges  8,491.19  12,974.92 

Professional fees  62.93  23.21 

Advertisement and publicity  0.03  3.91 

Communication charges  51.37  56.12 

Electricity  13.67  6.20 

Insurance  7.60  8.96 

Printing & stationery  11.36  16.89 

 36.27  63.88 

 64.07  101.40 

Rent  151.69  66.45 

Repairs to buildings  73.05  66.67 

Repairs : others  411.06  107.83 

Purchase of hardware and software  -    298.49 

Bank charges  1.18  0.17 

Directors sitting fees  -    1.00 

 60.54  967.41 

 31.24  175.58 

d.

 Year ended 
March 31, 2016 

 Year ended 
March 31, 2015 

Income from information technology services  35,245.48  61,998.01 

Other operating revenue - secondment fees  -    335.22 

Dividend from subsidiaries  239.59  820.88 

Others  5.68  18.03 
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 During the previous year, the Company had purchased 10,000 equity shares (including 6 equity shares purchased jointly with other shareholders) 
of face value of ` ` 1. Further, the Company had subscribed to 40,000 additional equity 

` 10/- each for a total consideration of `
March 31, 2015 amounted to 50,000 equity shares of ` 10/- each for a total consideration of ` 5 [Refer note 12(b)]. Pursuant to the Scheme of 

41. Sale of Investment in Majesco Canada Limited, Canada (formerly MajescoMastek Canada Limited, Canada)

` 439.47. This sale resulted in a gain of ` 439.47, as the carrying value of MCAN 
in the books of Mastek was reduced to nil, considering the provision for other than temporary decline in value made in earlier year. The Gain had 

42. Purchase of Investment in Majesco, USA (formerly MajescoMastek, USA)

of `

43. Sale of Investment in Majesco Sdn. Bhd., Malaysia (formerly Mastek MSC Sdn. Bhd., Malaysia)

 During the previous year, the Company sold its entire holding of 11,262,000 equity shares of Majesco Sdn. Bhd., Malaysia ("MSC") (a wholly owned 
` 2,042.94. This sale resulted in a gain of ` 599.52 to the 

44. Pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement (the “Scheme”) under Sections 391 to 394 read with Sections 100 to 103 and other applicable provisions 

or “Mastek”), in its meeting held on September 15, 2014, had approved the demerger of the Insurance Products and Services business of the 

insurance operations business transfer was November 1, 2014. The Company obtained the necessary approval for the scheme under Clause 24 (f) 

is currently listed.

as a discontinuing operation with effect from the proposed appointed date of the scheme i.e April 1, 2014.

 The demerger has resulted in transfer of the assets, liabilities, Employee stock options outstanding account and Hedging reserve account relevant 

the above net assets aggregating to ` 24,401.43 have been debited to: Capital reserve ` 106.07, to General Reserve ` 2,415.67 and to Surplus in 
` 21,879.69, (Refer note 4).

  As at 
March 31, 2016 

 As at 
March 31, 2015 

Total assets  -    27,127.16 

Total liabilities  -    1,987.83 

Net assets  -    25,139.33 

 Year ended 
March 31, 2016 

 Year ended 
March 31, 2015 

Total revenue  -    23,247.60 

 -    21,340.74 

 -    1,906.86 

 -    647.41 

 -    1,259.45 



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016 (Contd.)
(All amounts in ` Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

128

 Year ended 
March 31, 2016 

 Year ended 
March 31, 2015 

Operating activities  -    (904.93)

Investing activities  -    6,893.31 

Financing activities  -    (14.27)

 -    5,974.11 

 During the year, the Company sold its entire holding of 2,850,000 equity shares of MAP (a wholly owned subsidiary) to Majesco Sdn Bhd, Malaysia 
for a total consideration of ` 180.49. This sale resulted in a gain of ` 4.95 after considering the provision for other than temporary decline in value 

46.

In terms of our report of even date

Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016
For and on behalf of the Board

Pradip Kanakia
Partner
Membership Number: 39985

Mumbai, April 19, 2016

Sudhakar Ram
Managing Director & Group CEO

S. Sandilya

Jamshed Jussawalla

Dinesh Kalani
Company Secretary

Mumbai, April 19, 2016
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INFORMATION RELATING TO SUBSIDIARIES AS AT MARCH 31, 2016

Name of Subsidiary Companies  Mastek UK 
Limited

IndigoBlue 
Consulting Ltd.

Digidity 
Inc. 

Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from holding company’s 
reporting period.

Reporting periods of all the Subsidiaries are the same as 
of the Holding Company which is March 31.

Reporting currency  GBP GBP

subsidiaries
  95.47 95.47 -

Share Capital ` 855.37 9.47 -

Reserves & Surplus ` 13059.29 292.36 -

Total Assets ` 23166.66 1640.55 -

` 9243.19 1338.72 -

Investments ` 6309.60 -

Turnover ` 44023.47 5944.76 -

` (2811.73) 38.87 -

` - (10.82) -

` (2811.73) 28.05 -

Proposed Dividend  -

% shareholding  100% 100% 100%

Note : 

For and on behalf of the Board

Sudhakar Ram
Managing Director & Group CEO       

S. Sandilya

Independent Director

Jamshed Jussawalla Dinesh Kalani
Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 19, 2016

STATEMENT PURSUANT SECTION 129(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 RELATING TO 
SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES.
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Mastek’s philosophy on Corporate Governance is embedded in the rich legacy of ethical governance practices, most of which were implemented before 
they were mandatorily prescribed by Government under the Companies Act, 2013.

Mastek always believes that sound Corporate Governance is critical for enhancing long-term shareholder value and retaining investor trust.

A Corporation is a congregation of various stakeholders, namely, customers, employees, investors, vendor partners, Government and society. A corporation 
should be fair and transparent to its stakeholders in all its transactions. This has become imperative in today’s globalized business world where corporations 
need to access global pools of capital, need to attract and retain the best human capital from various parts of the world, need to partner with vendors 
on mega collaborations and need to live in harmony with the community. Unless a corporation embraces and demonstrates ethical conduct, it will not be 
able to succeed.

“Corporate Governance is beyond the realm of law. It stems from the culture and mindset of management, and cannot be regulated by legislation alone. 

number of stakeholders. It is about openness, integrity and accountability. What legislation can and should do, is to lay down a common framework – the 
“form” to ensure standards. The “substance” will ultimately determine the credibility and integrity of the process. Substance is inexorably linked to the 
mind set and ethical standards of management.”

Mastek has always strived to go beyond the statutory and regulatory requirements of Corporate Governance. Our endeavor is to follow good governance 
both in letter as well as in spirit.

I. Company’s Philosophy

 Corporate Governance is a set of systems and practices to ensure that the affairs of the Company are being managed in a way which ensures 
accountability, transparency, fairness in all its transactions with all its stakeholders in the widest sense. The Company’s philosophy of Corporate 
Governance, that of timely disclosures, transparent accounting policies and a strong and Independent Board, goes a long way in preserving 
Shareholders’ interest, while maximizing long-term shareholder value.

 Corporate Governance practised at the Company is not restricted to Board of Directors. It is an approach to Sustainable Development..

 Governance Structure

 Mastek’s Governance structure broadly comprises of the Board of Directors and the Committees of the Board at the apex level and the Management 
structure at the operational level. This layered structure brings about a harmonious blend in governance as the Board sets the overall corporate 
objectives and gives direction and freedom to the Management to achieve these corporate objectives within a given framework, thereby bringing 

II. Board of Directors

 (i) Size and Composition of the Board

  The Board of the Directors of the Company has a combination of Executive, Non-Executive and Independent Directors with varied 

  The Chairman of the Board is a Non-Executive Independent Director. The Composition of the Board of Directors is in conformity with the 
requirement of Regulation 17 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015 
(Listing Regulations).

 (ii) Managing Director & Group CEO

  The Managing Director & Group CEO is in overall control & responsible for day to day working of the Company. He gives strategic directions, 
lays down policy guidelines and ensures implementation of the decisions taken by the Board of Directors and its various Committees.

 (iii) Number of Board Meetings

 (iv) Directors’ Attendance and Directorships held

Name of Director Category of 
Director ship

No. of 
Board 

Meetings 
attended

Attendance 
at last AGM 

on August 17, 
2015

No. of other 
Directorship held 
in Indian public 

Limited Companies 
(including Mastek) *

No. of 
Committees 

Memberships 
(including 
Mastek)

No. of 
Committees 

Chairmanship 
(including 
Mastek)

Mr. S. Sandilya Non- Executive 
Chairman and 
Independent 
Director

7 Yes 5 2

Mr. Sudhakar Ram Managing Director 
& Group CEO 
(Promoter)

Yes 1 2 --

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 2015-16 
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Name of Director Category of 
Director ship

No. of 
Board 

Meetings 
attended

Attendance 
at last AGM 

on August 17, 
2015

No. of other 
Directorship held 
in Indian public 

Limited Companies 
(including Mastek) *

No. of 
Committees 

Memberships 
(including 
Mastek)

No. of 
Committees 

Chairmanship 
(including 
Mastek)

Mr. Ashank Desai Non-Executive 
Director 
(Promoter)

Yes 2 3 --

Dr. RajendraSisodia 
(Resigned as an 
Independent Director 
w.e.f. April 17, 2015)

Non- Executive 
Director 
(Independent)

-- -- -- -- --

Mr. Radhakrishnan 
Sundar (Resigned as an 
Executive Director w.e.f. 

Executive Director 
(Promoter)

2 -- -- -- --

Mr. Ketan Mehta 
(Resigned as 
Non-Executive Director 
w.e.f. 

Non-Executive 
Director 
(Promoter)

1 -- -- -- --

Ms. Priti Rao Non- Executive 
Director 
(Independent)

7 No 1 1 --

Mr. Atul Kanagat Non-Executive 
Director 
(Independent)

5 No 1 2 --

Dr. Arun Maheshwari 
(Resigned as an 
Independent Director 
w.e.f. 

Non-Executive 
Director 
(Independent)

1 -- -- -- --

Mr. Venkatesh 
Chakravarty (Resigned 
as an Independent 
Director w.e.f.

Non-Executive 
Director 
(Independent)

3 -- -- -- --

  Board Diversity:

  Pursuant to SEBI Regulations, the Nomination & Remuneration Committee has formalized a policy on Board Diversity to ensure diversity 
of experience, knowledge, perspective, background, gender, age and culture. The policy is posted on the Company’s website and can be 
accessed on web link www.mastek.com/investors/corporate_governance.

  Notes:

  1.

Companies.

  2.
General Meeting and explanatory statement, attached thereto.

  3. The Committees considered for the purpose of calculation of membership and/or chairmanship as discussed above are those as 

  4.

requirements stipulated in Regulation 25(1) of the Listing Regulations.

  5. None of the Directors is related to any of the director except Mr. Ashank Desai and Mr. Sudhakar Ram as Promoter Directors.

  6. The weblink of familarization programme imparted is provided under Corporate governance section at www.mastek.com/investors/
corporate_governance.

  (v) Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management

   The Company has prescribed a code of conduct for Directors and Senior Management of the Company. The said code has been 
posted on the Company’s website - www.mastek.com/investors/corporate_governance
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 1. Mr. S. Sandilya: (DIN 00037542)

  Non- Executive Chairman and Independent Director

  Mr. Sandilya is a Commerce Graduate from Chennai 
University and holds MBA from the Indian Institute 

professional experience. Mr. Sandilya is presently Chairman, 

including Information Technology, Strategic Planning, 
Manufacturing and General Management. He was the 
Group Chairman and Chief Executive for six years before 
becoming a non-executive Chairman, the post he continues 
to hold. Additionally, 

  Mr. Sandilya is Director of Tube Investments of India 
Limited, Rane Brake Lining Limited, GMR Infrastructure 
Limited, Director of Lean Management Institute of India, 
Member of the Board of Lean Global Network USA, Past 
President of Society of Indian Automobile Manufacturers 
and President of International Motorcycle Manufacturers 

 2.  Mr. Sudhakar Ram: (DIN 00101473)

  Managing Director & Group CEO

  Mr. Sudhakar Ram is a commerce graduate and a gold 
medalist from Chennai University. He did his PGDM from 
the Indian Institute of Management, Kolkata, with a silver 

Business Leader of the Year” Award in December 2007. He 
is a co-founder of Mastek Limited.

Company.

 3. Mr. Ashank Desai: (DIN 00017767)

  Non-Executive Director

  Mr. AshankDesai, is B.E. from Mumbai University and in 
graduating year, held the second rank in the University. 
He holds a M. Tech Degree from the Indian Institute of 
Technology, Mumbai. He also holds Post Graduate Diploma 
in Business Management (PGDBM) granted by the IIM 

with Godrej and Boyce before founding the Company. He 
is a founder member and ex-chairman of NASSCOM and 
is also actively associated with several government bodies 
and trade associations.

Company.

 Ms. Priti Rao: (DIN 03352049)

  Non-Executive Director (Independent)

  Ms. Rao is a postgraduate in Computer Science from Indian 
Institute of Technology (IIT), Mumbai.

continents, Ms. Rao has held very senior positions with 
global teams for best of breed IT companies. She has had 
long innings with Infosys as a senior executive heading the 
Pune development center and heading their infrastructure 
services business and with Dell as vice president for global 
operations. She runs her own venture, Pumpkin Patch 
Daycare to cater to needs of young parents, who need a 
trusted place to keep their children and be able to focus 

on their careers. India lacks such world class infrastructure 
for a crèche, where love, safety, care are most important 
aspects.

  Ms. Priti Rao is widely recognized as an accomplished 
business leader and was conferred with the prestigious 
“IT woman of the year award” for 2002 by the Computer 
Society of India.

 5. Mr. Atul Kanagat: (DIN 06452489)

  Non-Executive Director (Independent)

  Mr. AtulKanagat is a B.Tech in Mechanical Engineering from 
Indian Institute of Technology, Mumbai and a MBA from 
Harvard Business School, Boston, Massachusetts.

  Mr. Kanagat initially joined Hindustan Lever Ltd., the Indian 
subsidiary of Unilever. He spent two years as Management 
Trainee doing assignments in multiple functions of the 
company. He then spent a year as Materials Manager for 
Hindustan Lever Ltd’s Calcutta Manufacturing complex.

joined McKinsey & Company in Chicago. He was elected 

of the Boards of the following institutions:

  During the period 2010 to 2011, Mr. Kanagat worked for 
Harman International as Vice President- Strategy & Mergers 
& Acquisition.

  Mr. Kanagat does not hold any shares in the Company.

III. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD :

 MANDATORY COMMITTEES:

 1. Audit Committee

  (i) Terms of Reference

   The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are 
as follows:

credible.

   (b) Recommend the appointment and 

fees/ Remuneration and other terms of 
appointment and also grant approval for 
payments for services other than those 

Act, 2013.

   (c) Review and monitor Auditors’ independence 
and performance and effectiveness of the 
Audit process.
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statements with the management before 
submission to the Board along with Report of 
Auditors thereon, focusing primarily on:

and practices.

on the exercise of judgment by 
management.

report.

audit.

standards.

and legal requirements concerning 

i.e., Approval or any subsequent 

transactions of the Company.

   (e) Review with the management, external and 
internal auditors the adequacy of internal 
control systems.

   (g) Review with the management the quarterly 

the Board for approval.

investigations by the internal auditors into 
matters where there is suspected fraud, 
irregularity, or failure of internal control 
systems of a material nature and report the 
matter to the Board.

   (i) Discuss with external auditors before the 
audit commences about the nature and 
scope of audit and have post-audit discussion 
to ascertain any area of concern.

Control and Risk Management Systems/
policies.

   (k) Look into the reasons for substantial defaults 
in payment to depositors, debenture holders, 
shareholders (in the case of non-payment of 
declared dividends) and creditors.

   (l) Review the functioning of the Whistle-Blower 
mechanism.

    The minutes of the Audit Committee are 
circulated to the Board of Directors. The 
Chairman of the Audit Committee apprises 
the Board on the recommendations made by 

fresh plans for the internal audit. It discusses 
the areas covered by the internal audit and 

recommends the scope of audit for the 
current year. The Committee reviews the 
performance of the internal and external 
auditors and advises the Board on the 
re-appointment of internal and statutory 
auditors.

    The Independent Directors of the Company 
had one separate meeting with Price 
Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP - 
Statutory Auditors of the Company. They 
also met separately with Internal Auditors 
once during the year.

  (ii) Composition

   Mastek has an Audit Committee that currently 
comprises of three Independent directors, a 
Non-Executive Director (Non-Independent) 
and the Managing Director & Group CEO (Non-

Audit Committee members also. The Independent 
Directors are accomplished professionals from 

the Company attends the meetings on invitation. 
The Company Secretary is the Secretary of the 
Committee.

members at the meetings is stated below:

Name of Member Status No. of 
Meetings 
attended

Mr. S. Sandilya Chairman 5
Mr. Ashank Desai Member
Ms. Priti Rao Member
Mr.Venkatesh Chakravarty Member 2

Mr. Atul Kanagat
(Inducted as Member on 
October 15, 2015)

Member 1

Mr.Sudhakar Ram
(Inducted as Member on 
October 15, 2015)

Member 2

  The meetings are attended by Internal Auditors and 
Statutory Auditors. The Committee’s observations are 
followed up with the respective departments and the 
follow-up actions are reported to the Committee at the 
subsequent committee meetings. The Committee, along 
with the statutory auditors, reviews the quarterly, half-
yearly and annual results at the Audit Committee meetings 
before recommending them to the Board of Directors.

 2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

  (i) Terms of Reference

become Director, or who may be appointed 
in senior management of the Company.

nomination process for the above positions 
and oversee the implementation thereof.

terms of remuneration for Directors, Senior 
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Management, Key Managerial personnel & 
other senior employees of the organization.

candidates and conduct evaluation of 
candidates in accordance with a process 

recommendation for the nomination to the 
Board or for the senior management of the 
Company and their removal, if any.

conditions of the Employees Stock Option 
Plan, governed by the guidelines issued by 

time to time.

to the employees of the Company under the 

the employees of the Company.

of the Directors and KMP’s to the Board.

and independence of a director and 
recommend to the Board a policy, relating 
to the remuneration for the directors, key 
managerial personnel and other employees.

paid to Managing Director & Group CEO.

attending Board as well as Committee 
Meetings.

    (a) the level and composition of 
remuneration is reasonable and 

motivate directors of the quality 
required to run the company 
successfully;

    (b) relationship of remuneration 
to performance is clear and 
meets appropriate performance 
benchmarks; and

    (c)  remuneration to directors, key 
managerial personnel and senior 
management involves a balance 

performance objectives appropriate 
to the working of the company and 
its goals.

  (ii) Composition

   The Chairman of the Committee is Mr. Atul Kanagat. 
The other members are Mr. S. Sandilya and 
Mr. Ashank Desai. All are Non-Executive Directors. 

at the meetings is stated below:

Name of Member Status No. of 
Meetings 
attended

Mr. Atul Kanagat Chairman 5

Mr. S. Sandilya Member

Mr. Ketan Mehta

2015)
Member 2

Dr. Rajendra Sisodia

(Member upto April 17, 
2015)

Member NA

Mr. Ashank Desai

(Inducted as Member since Member 2

  (iii)  Independent Directors' Meeting

   During the year under review, the Independent 
Directors met on October 15, 2015 inter alia:

Non-Executive Directors.

between Management & Board to enable 
the Board to perform duties effectively & 
reasonably.

whole.

Director & Group CEO of Company taking 
into account the views of Non-Executive 
Directors.

  (iv)  Performance Evaluation

   In compliance with Companies Act, 2013 and Listing 
Regulations, the performance evaluation of the 
Board as a whole and of the Individual Directors was 
carried out during the year under review.

   With the help of an Expert, a structured questionnaire 
was prepared after taking into consideration inputs 
received from the Directors, covering various aspects 
of the Board’s functioning such as adequacy of the 
composition of the Board and its Committees, Board 

duties, obligations and governance.

   A separate exercise was carried out to evaluate the 
performance of individual Directors including the 
Chairman of the Board, who were evaluated on 
parameters of contribution to Board Processes and 
Outcomes  including   independence of  judgment, 
safeguarding the interest of the Company and its 
minority shareholders, etc. The Directors expressed 
satisfaction with the evaluation process.

 3. Stakeholders Relationship Committee

  (i) Terms of Reference

   
Equity Shareholders of the Company.

   
Stock options by Employees under various 
ESOP Schemes, subject to completion of all 
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necessary formalities.

transmission, remat, duplicate share 

  (ii) Composition

   The Chairman of the Committee is Mr. S. Sandilya. 
Other members are Mr. Ashank Desai, Mr. Sudhakar 
Ram, and Mr. Atul Kanagat. The Company Secretary 
is the Secretary of the Committee. The Committee 

The attendance of the members at the meetings is 
stated below:

Name of Member Status No. of 
Meetings 
attended

Mr. Venkatesh Chakravarty Chairman 2

2015)

Mr. Radhakrishnan Sundar Member 2

2015)

Dr. Arun Maheshwari Member 1

2015)

Dr. Rajendra Sisodia Member NA

(Member upto April 17, 
2015)

Mr. S. Sandilya Chairman 3

(Inducted as Member since 

Mr. Ashank Desai Member 7

(Inducted as Member since 

Mr. Atul Kanagat Member 3

(Inducted as Member since 

Mr. Sudhakar Ram Member

(Inducted as Member since 

   The details of investors’ complaints received and 

under:

No. of 
Investors’ 
Complaints 

received 
during the 

year 2015-16

No. of 
Investors’ 
Complaints 

resolved 
during the 

year 2015-16

No. of 
Investors’ 
Complaints 
pending as 

on March 31, 
2016
NIL

   There were no pending transfers/grievances as on 

  Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CSR)

  The Company has constituted CSR Committee as required 
under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013.

  (i) Terms of reference

Corporate Social Responsibility Policy which 
shall indicate the activities to be undertaken 

of the Companies Act, 2013.

be incurred on the activities.

Policy of the Company from time to time.

  (ii) Composition

   The Chairperson of the Committee is Ms. Priti Rao. 
The other members are Mr. Sudhakar Ram and 
Mr. Ashank Desai. The Company Secretary is the 
Secretary of the Committee.

The attendance of the members at the meeting is 
stated below:

Name of the Member Status No. of 
Meetings 
attended

Ms. Priti Rao Chairperson

Dr. Rajendra Sisodia Members NA

(Member upto April 17, 
2015)

Mr. Sudhakar Ram Members

Mr. Ashank Desai Members

 NON-MANDATORY COMMITTEES:

 5.  Governance Committee

  (i) Terms of reference

of Directors a set of corporate governance 
principles applicable to the Company, to 
review these principles periodically and to 
monitor compliance with those principles.

relating to corporate governance and to 
review current policies and practices and 
recommend improvements.

of Directors.

for Board members.

  (ii) Composition

   The Chairman of the Committee is Mr. Ashank Desai. 
The other members are Mr. Sudhakar Ram and 

   Ms. Priti Rao. The Company Secretary is the 
Secretary of the Committee.
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The attendance of the members at the meetings is 
stated below:

Name of Member Status No. of 
Meetings 
attended

Mr. Ashank Desai Chairman
Mr. Ketan Mehta Member 1

01, 2015)
Ms. Priti Rao Member
Mr. Radhakrishnan 
Sundar

Member 1

01, 2015)
Mr. Sudhakar Ram Member 3
(Inducted as Member 

IV.  REMMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

A. POLICY FOR SELECTION AND APPOINTMENT OF 
DIRECTORS AND THEIR REMUNERATION

 The Nomination and Remuneration (N&R) Committee has a policy 
which deals with the manner of selection of Board of Directors and 
Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and their remuneration.

 1. Pecuniary Relationship or Transactions with Non-
Executive Directors.

  Mr. Ashank Desai, Non- Executive Director was provided 
perquisites aggregating to `

This was approved by the Shareholders in the 33rd Annual 
General Meeting of the Company held on August 17, 2015.

  During the year, there were no pecuniary relationships or 
transactions between the Company and any of its Non-
Executive/ Independent Directors apart from commission / 
exercise of stock options granted prior to April 01, 2015.

 2. Criteria of selection of Non-Executive Directors

to bring in objectivity and independence during 
Board deliberations around the Company’s Strategic 
approach, performance and risk management. They 

probity and corporate governance.

the expectations of their role as Non-Executive 
Independent Directors, to the satisfaction of the 
Board.

are not to involve themselves in situations which 

of the Company. It is accepted and acknowledged 
that they may have business interests, other than 
those of the Company. As a pre-condition to their 
appointment as Independent Directors, they shall be 

in writing in the prescribed format, at the time of 
their appointment.

letter with clear guidelines on their roles, duties and 
responsibilities as Independent Directors. The key 
elements in which every Independent Director will be 
expected to contribute are : Strategy, Performance, 
Risk, People, Reporting and Compliance.

 3. Remuneration Policy for the Key Managerial 
Personnel (KMPs)

  In determining the remuneration of KMPs, the N & R 
Committee shall ensure / consider the following:

Company shall consider industry benchmarks and 
the competence of the persons and ensure that 
the level and composition of the remuneration is 

motivate them.

benchmarked with industry salary trends and 

as variable pay. The variable pay will be linked to 
business performance parameters, as separately 
outlined in a Variable Pay Plan document.

 Remuneration of Directors

Company shall consider industry benchmarks and 
the competence of the persons and ensure that 
the level and composition of the remuneration is 

motivate them.

`
was ` 20,000/-) per meeting of the Board and 

`
was ` 10,000/-) per meeting, if the Director is also a 
member of the Audit Committee.

remuneration by way of Commission based on the 

Company, as may be approved by the Board and the 
Shareholders, from time to time.

  The Board of Directors decides and approves the 
remuneration of Non-Executive Directors.

  Details of Remuneration of Non-Executive Directors for the 

Name Perquisites
(`)

Sitting 
Fees (`)

Commission 
(`)

Total
(`)

Mr. Ashank Desai NIL

Ms. Priti Rao NIL 730,000/-

Dr. Rajendra 
Sisodia

NIL NIL NIL NIL

(Director upto 
April 17, 2015)

Mr. Venkatesh 
Chakravarty 
(Director upto 

NIL 30,000/- NIL 30,000/-

Mr. S. Sandilya NIL 1,730,000/-
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Name Perquisites
(`)

Sitting 
Fees (`)

Commission 
(`)

Total
(`)

Mr. Atul Kanagat NIL NIL NIL NIL
Dr. Arun 
Maheshwari

NIL NIL NIL NIL

(Director upto 

Mr. Ketan Mehta NIL NIL NIL NIL
(Director upto 

Total

 5.       Criteria for payment of remuneration by way of 
commission to Non- Executive Directors:-

Non- Executive Directors of the Company may also be 
entitled to commission and the same will be paid as per the 
following remuneration structure:

meetings attended.

The total remuneration paid to all Non- Executive Directors will have an 

in the above calculation) 

Number of options/equity shares held by Independent Directors as on 

Name of 
Director

No. of Options 
granted

No. of Options 
exercised

No. of Equity 
Shares held

Ms. Priti Rao

Mr. S. Sandilya

Mr. Atul Kanagat - -

* Note: 

Name of Director No. of Equity Shares held
Mr. Sudhakar Ram

Mr. Ashank Desai

Note: No Stock Option were granted to Mr. Sudhakar Ram and 
Mr. Ashank Desai. 

 Terms of Appointment & Remuneration to 
Mr. Sudhakar Ram, Managing Director & Group CEO:

 Mr. Sudhakar Ram was appointed as the Managing Director and 
Group CEO of the Company for a period of 3 years with effect from 

 Subsequently, the Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the 
Board and the Board of Directors of the Company, at their respective 

Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on March 05, 2015 have 

Ram as Managing Director & Group CEO of Mastek Limited for the 

terms and conditions and remuneration as under:

 Basic Salary:

 ` 
per month, with an option of annual increment as may be decided 

by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee and Board of 
Directors of the Company, from time to time.

 Bonus:

 Based on the performance as may be evaluated by the Board of 
the Directors/ Nomination & Remuneration Committee, from time 
to time up to a maximum of `  30 lakhs per annum.

 

House Rent Allowance to Mr. Sudhakar Ram.

 Special Allowance:

 ` 
Hundred only) per month.

 Car Facility:

 Car facility with driver to be used for the business of the Company.

 Club Fees

 Telephone:

of the Company.

 Provident Fund Contribution:

 Company’s contribution towards provident fund as per rules of the 

 Gratuity:

 As per rules of the Company.

 Perquisites:

 As may be permitted as per the policy of the Company or by 
the Board of Directors and/or the Nomination & Remuneration 
Committee of the Board of Directors.

be evaluated as per Income-tax Rules, wherever applicable. In the 
absence of any such Rules, perquisites shall be evaluated on actual 
basis.

 Provision of car and telephone for use of the Company’s business 
and telephone at the Managing Director & Group CEO’s residence 
will not be considered as perquisites.

or perquisites of the Managing Director and Group CEO shall be 
subject to the limits prescribed under Schedule V to the Companies 
Act, 2013.

7. Induction/Training of The Board Members:

 Every new Independent Director of the Board needs to attend an 
Orientation Program organized by the Company. Presentations are 
made by Managing Director & Group CEO and Senior Management 
team, providing an overview of strategy, operations and functions 
of the Company. An opportunity is provided to the Directors to 
interact with senior leadership of the Company and help them to 
get ground level information on the Company’s services offering, 

accessed at www.mastek.com/investors/corporate_governance. 
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V. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

 (i) Particulars of Annual General Meetings held during 
the last three years:

Financial 
Year Year

Date Time Location

August 17, 
2015

11.00 A.M Ahmedabad Management 
Association, H.T. Parekh 
Hall, Ahmedabad

11.00 A.M Ahmedabad Management 
Association, H.T. Parekh 
Hall, Ahmedabad

2012-13
2013

11.00 A.M. Ahmedabad Management 
Association, H.T. Parekh 
Hall, Ahmedabad

 (ii) Special Resolution passed in 3 previous Annual 
General Meetings:

Annual General Meeting Special Resolution
Thirty Third Annual General 
Meeting held on August 17, 
2015

/ Perquisites to Mr. Ashank 
Desai.

Thirty Second Annual General 
passed in this Annual 
General Meeting.

Non-Executive Directors.

Plan-ESOP Plan VII- to 
Employees of the Company.

Plan-ESOP Plan VII- to 
Employees of the Subsidiary 
Companies.

Plan-ESOP Plan VII- to 

of the company and its 
subsidiaries, stock options, 
which may be equal to or 

capital of the company.

 All the resolutions as set out in the notices were passed 
unanimously/by requisite majority by the members of the company.

 (iii) Details of Resolution passed through Postal ballot, 
the person who conducted the postal ballot exercise 
and details of the voting pattern:

  During the year under review, no resolution has been 
passed through the exercise of postal ballot.

 (iv) As on date, the Company does not have any proposal to 
pass any special resolution by way of postal ballot.

VI. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

quarterly unaudited results along with the press releases 
are made available on the website of the Company (www.
mastek.com/investors/announcement). Other information 
relating to shareholding patterns, compliance with the 
requirements of corporate governance etc. are posted on 
BSE/NSE website and on Mastek’s website in the investors 
section.

with the analysts after the quarterly results are displayed 
on the Company’s website.

  The Company has disclosed and complied with all the 
mandatory requirements as stipulated in Listing Regulations. 
The details of these compliances have been given above in 
the relevant sections of this report.

 Communication With The Members/ Shareholders

audited annual results are announced within two months 

of the Listing Regulations with the Stock Exchanges. The 

of BSE Limited (BSE) and The National Stock Exchange of 
India Limited (NSE) where the Company’s securities are 
listed, immediately after these are approved by the Board. 
The results are thereafter given by way of a Press Release 
to various news agencies/ analysts and are published within 
forty- eight hours in leading English and Gujarati/Marathi 

part of the Annual Report which is sent to the Members well 
in advance of the Annual General Meeting.

NSE all price sensitive matters or such other matters, which 
in its opinion are material and of relevance to the members 
and subsequently issues a Press Release in regard to the 
same.

yearly and the annual results and the press releases of the 
Company are also placed on the Company’s website: www.
mastek.com/investors/annual reports, can be downloaded.

compliances and all other corporate communication to 
the Stock Exchanges viz. BSE Limited and National Stock 

electronically with NSE through NSE’s NEAPS portal.

the Company’s website gives information on unclaimed 
dividends, quarterly compliance reports/communications 
with the Stock Exchange and other relevant information of 
interest to the investors/public.

VII. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION.

1. ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING:

- Date and Time : July 25, 2016 at 11.00 a.m.
- Venue : Ahmedabad Management Association, 

H.T. Parekh Hall, AMA Complex, ATRA, Dr. 
Vikram Sarabhai Marg, 

2. FINANCIAL YEAR AND CALENDAR:

- Financial reporting for the quarters ending –

March 31, 2017 around April 22, 2017

3. BOOK CLOSURE DATE:
 (both days inclusive)
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4. DIVIDEND PAYMENT DATE: NOT APPLICABLE
5. STOCK CODE:

Name of Exchange Script Code Reuters Bloomberg
BSE Limited MAST.BO MAST@IN

National Stock Exchange 
of India Limited

MASTEK MAST.NS NMAST@IN

ISIN

6. LISTING FEES PAID: The Company has paid annual listing 
fees for the year 2016-2017 of the Stock Exchanges where 
the Company’s shares are listed.

7. CAPITAL STRUCTURE:

Authorized Capital  Equity ` 200,000,000/-
Preference ` 200,000,000/-

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up 
Capital

Equity `

8. DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDING

Distribution of shareholding as on March 31, 2016
Range no. of 
shares

Shareholders 
Number

% Value ` %

1- 500 22,355
501-1000 1,222
1001-5000 7.75
5001-10000 3.35
10001 and 
above
Total 24,655 100.00 114,986,370 100.00

Distribution of shareholding as on March 31, 2015
Range no. of 
shares

Shareholders 
Number

% Value ` %

1- 500 7.17
501-1000 1,012 3.50
1001-5000
5001-10000 0.51 3.31
10001 and 
above

120

Total 20,270 100.00 112,733,360 100.00

9. MONTHLY VOLUMES AND PRICES: 2015-16

Month and 
year

BSE Limited National Stock Exchange 
of India Limited

High 
(`)

Low 
(`)

Volume High 
(`)

Low 
(`)

Volume

April 2015
May 2015

133.3
177.5 177

August 2015 225 225
September 
2015

151.3 175.35 151.3

October 2015
November 
2015

205.2 205

December 
2015

211.55

201

112

Note : Post demerger, all shareholders of Mastek Ltd. were allotted one 
share of Majesco Ltd. for every one share of Mastek Ltd. held by them as 

10. MASTEK SHARE PRICE PERFORMANCE VERSUS NSE’s S&P 
CNX 500

Relative Price Performance Mastek v/s NSE’s S&P CNX 500
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Note: Daily Closing Prices on the NSE have been considered for the 
comparison in above chart.
Source: www.nseindia.com 

11. SHARE TRANSFER SYSTEM / DIVIDEND AND OTHER 
RELATED MATTERS

 i. Share transfers

  Share transfers in physical form are processed and the 

transfer provided the transfer documents lodged with the 
Company are complete in all respects.

 ii. Nomination facility for shareholding

  As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, 
facility for making nomination is available for Members in 
respect of shares held by them. Members holding shares 
in physical form may obtain nomination form, from the 
Share Department of the Company or download the same 
from the Company’s website. Members holding shares 
in dematerialized form should contact their Depository 
Participants (DP) in this regard.

 iii. Permanent Account Number (PAN)

  Members who hold shares in physical form are advised 
that SEBI has made it mandatory that a copy of the PAN 
card of the transferee/s, members, surviving joint holders / 
legal heirs be furnished to the Company while obtaining the 
services of transfer, transposition, transmission and issue of 

 iv. Unclaimed Dividend

  Pursuant to provisions of Section 205C of the Companies 

remained unclaimed and unpaid for a period of seven 
years from the date of transfer of such amount to unpaid 
dividend account is required to be transferred to Investors 

Central Government.

  Accordingly the unclaimed dividend amount of ̀

during the year.

to be transferred to Investors Education and Protection 

members who have not encashed the dividend warrant are 
requested to take steps to encash the same. Please note 
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respect of such amounts after the date of transfer.

 v. Pending Investor Grievances

  Any Member / Investor whose grievance has not been 
resolved satisfactorily, may kindly write to the Company 

the earlier correspondence.

 vi. Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit

  As required by the Securities & Exchange Board of India 
(SEBI) quarterly audit of the Company’s share capital is 
being carried out by Practising Company Secretary with 
a view to reconcile the total Share capital admitted with 
National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central 
Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and held in 
physical form, with the issued and listed capital. The 

to BSE Limited and The National Stock Exchange of India 
Limited and is also placed before the Board of Directors.

12. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN 

2016 2015

Sr. 
No.

Category No. of 
Shares

% of 
Holding

No. of 
Shares

% of 
Holding

1 Indian Promoters 50.03 51.03

2 0.31

3
Banks 20,033

Insurance Companies 1,121,532 1,121,532

5 12.77

Bodies Corporate 5.15

7 Individuals Holding 
Nominal Capital Upto 
` 1 Lakh 22.11

Individuals Holding 
Nominal Capital More 
Than ` 1 Lakh 3.03

NRIs 2.77

10 0.07 - -

Total 100.00 100.00

 DETAILS OF SHARES HELD IN PHYSICAL & ELECTRONIC 
MODE

Date Status of Shares - Physical versus 
Electronic mode

Physical Electronic Total

March 31, 2015

13. SHAREHOLDERS WITH MORE THAN 1% HOLDING AS ON 
MARCH 31, 2016

Sr. 
No

Name of the 
shareholder

No. of 
shares

Shares as 
percentage 
of total no. 
of shares

1. 1,275,000

2. Life Insurance Corporation 

3. Life Insurance Corporation 
Of India

2.25

325,000

5. Merrill Lynch Capital 
Markets Espana S.A. S.V.

Limited
1.01

14. INFORMATION FOR SHAREHOLDERS ON THE INTERNET:

 The Company actively communicates it’s strategy and the 

Executives of the Company along with M/s. Christensen Investor 
Relations (I) Private Limited  - our Investor advisor regularly 
meet the analysts. The Press release, Analysts’ conference calls 
are organized by M/s. Christensen Investor Relations (I) Private 
Limited - our Investor advisor. Decisions in such meetings are 
always limited to information that is already in the public domain. 
Please access the homepage at http://www.mastek.com and 
register yourself for regular updates.

15. OUTSTANDING GDRS/ADRS/WARRANTS OR ANY 
CONVERTIBLE INSTRUMENTS:

 There are no outstanding GDRs/ADRs/warrants except the stock 
options granted to the employees/Directors of the Company and 
its subsidiaries. The options after vesting, when exercised, shall 
increase the equity share capital.

16. OFF-SHORE DEVELOPMENT CENTERS:

 The Company has Off-Shore Software Development Centers at 
SEEPZ, Mumbai, Millennium Business Park, Mahape, Pune and 
Chennai. The full address of the company’s centres is available on 
the back cover of the page.

17. COMPLIANCE OFFICER OF THE COMPANY/ADDRESS FOR 
CORRESPONDENCE:

Name Dinesh Kalani, Company Secretary

Address for 
correspondence

E mail investor_grivences@mastek.com

18.  COMMODITY PRICE RISK OR FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK 
AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES:

 Please refer to the Management Discussion and Analysis Report for 
the same. 

19.    INVESTOR INFORMATION

A. COMPANY OVERVIEW:

operations providing enterprise solutions to businesses and 
governments worldwide. The Company architects, designs, 
develops, integrates and maintains strategic applications that 
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create a tangible business impact at customers’ end. The Company 

verticals. Mastek has substantial experience in all these verticals.

 Mastek is having its operations in UK and India. The Company was 
promoted by Mr. Ashank Desai, Mr. Ketan Mehta and 

 Mr. Radhakrishnan Sundar and Mr. Sudhakar Ram joined the 

raised `
` 720 lakhs 

in gross aggregate proceeds.

B. EQUITY HISTORY: Number of shares

Prior to Initial Public Offer ` 10/ each

Initial Public Offer in ` 10/- each

Issued under Employees’ ` 10/- each

Second Public Offer in ` 10/- each

2000
` 10/- each

Adjusted the above in view 
of Sub-Division of shares of 
` 10/- each into two shares 
of ` 5/- each in 2001.

` 5/- each

Buy-Back of shares in 2003- ` 5/- each

` 5/- each

Issued under Employees’ 
Stock Option Plans from 

`5/- each

Shares Bought Back from `5/- each

` 5/- each

Issued under Employees 
Stock Option Plans in 2010-
11

7,250 shares of ` 5/- each

Issued under Employees 
Stock Options plan in 2011-
12

75,000 shares of ` 5/- each

Shares Bought Back & 
Extinguished from November 

` 5/- each

Issued under Employees 
Stock Options plan in 2013-

`5/- each

Shares Bought Back & ` 5/- each

Issued under Employees 

2015

` 5/- each

Issued under Employees 
Stock Options plan in 2015-

` 5/- each

C. THE COMPANY’S EQUITY SHARES ARE LISTED ON THE 
FOLLOWING STOCK EXCHANGES:

 National Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited

 (i) The Company has changed its Registrar and Share 
Transfer Agent from Sharepro Services (India) Pvt. 
Ltd. to Karvy Computershare Private Limited w.e.f. 
April 04, 2016. All inquiries relating to the shareholder 
records, share transfers, transmission of shares, change of 

etc. should be addressed to:
  The Registrar and Share Transfer Agent:
  Karvy Computershare Private Limited
  Karvy Selenium, Tower B, 
  Plot No. 31-32, Gachibowli,

  Serilingampally Mandal, Hyderabad – 500032.

  E-mail: einward.ris@karvy.com

 (ii) Share Transfer System: The Company processes shares 
sent for transfer, transmission etc. every month. Transfers/
transmissions which are complete in all respects are 
registered and returned within 15 days of lodgment.

a Company Secretary in Practice for due compliance of 
share transfer formalities as per the requirement of Clause 

of RTA as per the requirement of regulation 7(3) of 
Listing Regulations. The Company has obtained quarterly 

Company as per the requirement of the SEBI (Depositories 

been submitted to the Stock Exchanges and the National 
Securities Depository Limited / Central Depository Services 
(India) Limited. The Company has also carried out 
Secretarial Audits for the Reconciliation of Share Capital as 
required under the Listing Guidelines every quarter and the 
quarterly secretarial audit reports issued by an independent 

the Stock Exchanges.

 (iii) Bank Details for Electronic Shareholdings:
  While opening accounts with Depository Participants (DP), 

you may have given your Bank Account details, which will 
be used by the Company for printing on dividend warrants 
for remittance of dividend. SEBI vide its circular no. DCC/

that all companies should mandatorily use ECS facility 
wherever available. In the absence of availability of ECS 
facility, companies may use warrants for distributing the 

dated November 13, 2001, SEBI has advised companies to 
mandatorily print the Bank Account details furnished by the 
Depositories on the dividend warrants. This ensures that 
dividend warrants, even if lost or stolen cannot be used 
for any purpose other than for depositing the money in the 

safety for the investors. Members are requested to furnish 
their Bank Account details to their DPs, if not already 
informed.

 (iv) Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), Govt. of India has issued 
circular No. 17/2011 dated April 21, 2011 and circular No. 

Accordingly, Company sent a communication to all the 
members requesting them to give their E-mail I.D’s to their 
Depository Participants (DPs), so that Annual report and 
other communications can be sent electronically to all the 
members.
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  Members, who have so far not informed the E-mail I.D’s to 
their DP’s, are requested to do the same in the interest of 
environment.

VIII. OTHER DISCLOSURES 
 1.  Related Party Transactions

under the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 23 of the Listing 

of business and on an arm’s length pricing basis and do not attract 

statement in summary form of transactions with Related Parties in 
ordinary course of business and arm’s length basis is periodically 
placed before the Audit committee for review and recommendation 
to the Board for their approval. As required under Regulation 
23(1) of the Listing Regulation, the Company has formulated a 
policy on dealing with Related Party Transactions. The Policy is 
available on the website of the Company viz. http://www.mastek.
com /images/pdf/related-party-transaction- policy.pdf  None of the 

of the Company. All the transactions are in the ordinary course of 

Company at large and are carried out on an arm’s length or fair 
value basis.

 The Board has approved a policy for related party transactions 
which has been uploaded on the Company’s website viz 

 www.mastek.com/images/pdf/related-party-transactions-policy.

 2. Subsidiary Companies

 The Company has a policy on Material Subsidiary and same is 
placed on the website of the Company at  www.mastek.com/ 
investors/corporate Governance/investors/corporate_governance.

are tabled at the Audit Committee and Board Meetings and same 
are placed on the website of the Company viz http://www.mastek.

 The copies of the Minutes of the Board Meetings of Subsidiary 
Companies are individually given to all the Directors and are tabled 
at the subsequent Board Meetings.

 3. Strictures and Penalties

 No strictures or penalties have been imposed on the Company by 
the Stock Exchanges or by the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (SEBI) or by any statutory authority on any matters related 
to capital markets during the last three years.

 4. Compliance with Accounting Standards

of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 

Instruments: Recognition and Measurement issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India to the extent it does not 
contradict any other accounting standard referred to in Section 
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of Companies 

 5. Internal Control System

 The Company has a formal system of internal control testing 
which examines both the design effectiveness and operational 

information and all statutory / regulatory compliances. The 
Company’s business processes are on SAP platform and has a 

discipline and accountability.

 6. Code of Conduct

 The Board of Directors has approved a Code of Conduct which is 
applicable to the Members of the Board and all senior employees. 
The Code has been posted on the Company’s website www.
mastek.com/investors/corporate_governance.

 The Code lays down the standard of conduct which is expected 
to be followed by the Directors and the designated employees in 
their business dealings and in particular on matters relating to 
integrity in the work place, in business practices and in dealing 
with stakeholders. The Code gives guidance through examples on 
the expected behaviour from an employee in a given situation and 
the reporting structure.

 All the Board Members and the Senior Management Personnel have 

 7. Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy

 In staying true to our values of Strength, Performance and Passion 
and in line with our vision of being one of the most respected 
companies in India, the Company is committed to the high 
standards of Corporate Governance and stakeholder responsibility.

 The Company has a Whistle Blower Policy to deal with instances 
of fraud and mismanagement, if any. The Policy ensures that strict 

also that no discrimination will be meted out to any person for 
a genuinely raised concern. Pursuant thereto, a dedicated hotline 

and any Whistle Blower’s complaint can be registered. Calls to the 
Hotline during work hours will be directed by the Operator to any 
of the Ombudspersons or Compliance Committee members, as 
desired by the caller.

 Complainants can also raise their concern through e-mails to 
the Ombudspersons or Compliance Committee members or 
Chairperson of Audit Committee (if the complaint is against a 
Director or by a Director). If, for any reason, the Complainant does 
not wish to write to any of these entities, he/she can write to 
whistleblower@mastek.com. Emails addressed to this ID will be 
received by the Company Secretary, who will appropriately direct it 
to any of the Ombudspersons or Compliance Committee member/s 
or Chairperson of the Audit Committee, after ascertaining the 
nature and identity sensitivity of the concern raised.

 8.Prevention of Insider Trading 

 The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for Prevention 
of Insider Trading in accordance with the requirements of SEBI 
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations 2015 with a view to 
regulate trading in securities by the Directors and designated 
employees of the Company. The Code requires pre-clearance 
for dealing in the Company’s shares and prohibits the purchase 
or sale of Company shares by the Directors and the designated 
employees while in possession of unpublished price sensitive 
information in relation to the Company and during the period when 
the Trading Window is closed. The Company Secretary issues a 
mail to all Directors, Senior Management Personnel and employees 
in possession of price sensitive information about trading window 
closure. The said code is placed at the website of the Company viz 
www.mastek.com/investors/corporate-governance.

compliance with the Code.



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 2015-16 (Contd.)

IX. COMPLIANCES WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS AS SPECIFIED IN SEBI (LODR) (LISTING 
REGULATIONS)

 The Company is in compliance with all mandatory requirements under Listing Regulation. Generally, there were no instances of non-compliance 
on any matter related to the capital markets.

X. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS FORMS PART OF THE ANNUAL REPORT. INVESTOR INFORMATION DETAILS ARE ALSO 
PROVIDED SEPARATELY IN THE ANNUAL REPORT.

XI. COMPLIANCE WITH NON-MANDATORY / DISCRETIONARY PROVISIONS

 Among the adoption of Non-Mandatory/Discretionary Provisions as per Part E of Schedule II to the Listing Regulations, the Company has complied 
with the following:

 1 - The Board -
use, if required by him, during his visit to the Company for attending meetings.

 2 - Shareholders Rights -

are made available on the website of the Company (www.mastek.com/investors/quarterly/results). Other information relating to shareholding 
patterns, compliance with the requirements of corporate governance etc. are posted on BSE/NSE website and on Mastek’s website in the investors 

 

 4 - Separate posts of Chairman and CEO –

 The position of Chairman and CEO is bifurcated in the Company. The Board is headed by an Independent non-Executive Chairman. Managing 
Director and Group CEO is another position.

 5 - Reporting of Internal Auditor - The Internal Auditor reports directly to the Audit Committee and attends the Audit Committee meetings 
and interacts directly with the Audit Committee members.

and forms part of the Annual Report.

DECLARATION REGARDING COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT OF THE COMPANY BY THE BOARD MEMBERS AND SENIOR 
MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL 

To the Members of Mastek Limited

is available at www.mastek.com.

Place: Mumbai   Sudhakar Ram
 Managing Director & Group CEO
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (CEO) AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER (CFO) CERTIFICATION

Company”)  to the best of our knowledge and belief, certify that :

our knowledge and belief, we state that:

 a) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that might be 
misleading;

 b) these statements together present, a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting 
standards, laws and regulations.

2) We further state that to the best of our knowledge and belief, there are no transactions entered into by the Company during the year 
which are fraudulent, illegal or which violate the Company’s code of conduct.

adopted by the Company.

5) We have indicated, based on our most recent evaluation, wherever applicable, to the Auditors and the Audit Committee:

Yours faithfully,

Sudhakar Ram
Managing Director & Group CEO

Jamshed Jussawala

Place : Mumbai

CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Members

Mastek Limited,

The compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. My examination was limited to the procedure and 
implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an 

In my opinion, and to the best of my information and according to the explanations given to me, I certify that the Company has complied with the 
conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above mentioned Listing Agreement/Listing Regulations, as applicable.

Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

V. Sundaram & Co.

         V. Sundaram
Place: Mumbai    Practising Company Secretary



CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

About Mastek Foundation:

Inspiring our employees to contribute back to the community by, 
sensitizing them to the issues and needs of the community and engaging 
them with the community through volunteering and giving opportunities. 

activities: Engage, Build and Give.
Engage:-
Mastek envisions engaging employees with the communities and also to 
encourage them to contribute to the society. This year has been quite 
active in terms of employee engagement. Here’s a glimpse of the activities 
of the entire year:
1. Inspired 2015 (A soulful evening to save a life)

 Inspired 2015 was an annual fundraising event of Mastek 

year. It was a musical event, where Playback singer- Sanjeevani 
Bhelande performed and paid a tribute to the legend of Indian 
cinema- Gulzar.

2. Blood Donation Camp

The blood donation camp was 
held in three locations, Mahape, 
Pune and Seepz. Total no. of 
blood donors for this year was 

and Pune 37 employees donated 
blood.

3. Engagement with Kotak Education Trust
 Employees of Mastek got together to provide a full day orientation 

program to students from Kotak Education Trust on how does an 
IT company operate. Here are a few glimpses.

4. Tree plantation drive
 Employees joined together to build bands for storing water for the 

saplings/plants for dry season plants in the twin hills of Bhawle, 
Bhiwandi. This activity was done in partnership with NGO- Hariyali.

5. Engaging to evaluate

Employees got together 

organizations. The evaluation 

partnership with the non-

 

 How the process went:-

Criteria of NGO evaluation

   Budget-size

  

   Geographical location

  

   Other funders/donors

6. Social Innovation lab workshop with NGO

This workshop was to 
understanding NGO’s IT needs. 
This was the Initial step to 
Project Deep Blue. Employees 
especially Business Analyst were 
engaged to analyse the IT needs.

7. Providing NGOs a marketplace

market place for NGOs, letting 
them put-up stalls at Mastek's 

were set up for the occasion of 
Rakhi and Diwali. Total 7 NGOs 
had put up stalls. Total sale 
was above `

8. Mastek Foundation Run, 2015

2015 was an annual fundraising 
activity. It was held on November 
01, 2015 at Kharghar. Total 

of increase in participation from 
last year and it was recognized 
by Raigad Athletes Association.

9. Diwali celebration with Ashasadan

Girls from Ashasadan – a 
shelter home at Sandhurst 
Road were invited to join 
our employees for Diwali 
celebration on November 

with gifts, food for the girls. 
A two hour programme was 
scheduled for the girls.

10. Employees’ involvement in recycling

The activity of recycling of old shoes was 

The activity was collecting old shoes from 
employees. The collection drive was conducted 
by Morrison’s team in Mastek and by a senior 
executive from Majesco, Total collection: 

pairs, Kids' shoes: 70 pairs.
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11. Session on animal Abuse

Awareness session on animal 
abuse was conducted on April 
15, 2015 by NGO Thane SPCA. 
This initiative and coordination 
of session was undertaken by 
Internal Champions. 12 animal 
lovers attended the session.

12. Participation in Mumbai Marathon

Mastek employees are 
participating in SCMM for the 
past 10 consecutive years. 
The theme for this year was 
to Save Water. Kherwadi 
Social Welfare Association 
was our partner NGO.

 Build

 ITransformation

 Transforming NGOs through Information Technology:

lives both direct and indirectly. The sole objective of this initiative is 

society by their innovative and committed actions get hampered 
by their inability to build a state-of-art Information Technology 
Solution. The major reasons for such obstruction are, the inability 
to access the technology and monetary issues. It might seem that 

If they lack in something then it is the perception and awareness. 
NGOs lack the foresight of the vast advantage IT is going to bring 
in their activity.

difference to the following organizations:-

 - Kherwadi Social Welfare Association (Yuva Parivartan)

 - TARA Livelihood Academy

 - Sneha

 - MESCO.

 1. Progress with Magic Bus

a. Complex operations 
documented

b. Getting into the 
testing Phase of 
Products launch.

completion

 2. Progress at KSWA
  a. Live release of the MIS System

  b. Live of mailing server

 3. Progress with TARA Livelihood Academy
  a. Training for Tara Livelihood Academy:-

testing phase.

2015.

 4. Progress with Sneha

  Started with a mentorship activity with Sneha with the 
objective to build IT capabilities for long run sustainability. 
The completion of system review resulted in Sneha having 
better understanding on the features and limitation of the 

results achieved for Sneha:-

Recommendation report provided, Sneha was able 
to bag `

Power BI and Tableau for BI implementation.

 5. Progress with Mission for Vision:-

  a. Rollout of the CommCare based system within 1 
months’ time.

is not available.

  c. Real time Management Information available to 
measure impact.

 6. New Addition (MESCO)

Sales force was 
implemented for 
the community, 
which helped in 
management of over 
10K Donors.
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EDUCATION:-

Partnering with Touching Lives Welfare Trust:-

Education, Empowerment and Enlightenment of children living in the 
slums of Mumbai.

Mastek supported project: Supporting 17 children from our Transit 
Program. The objective of project is to set up quality resource centres 
(generally termed as Learning Centre & Community Centre) that allow 
children to recover, discover and do what they realize for themselves and 
for the world.

Impact: Improvement in English, Maths and Academic performance. 
Enhancement of communication and inter-personal skills and development 
of personality Development, Wellness and wholeness, Self-Esteem and 

Partnering with Aarambh, Navi Mumbai

Aarambh provides education, health care and skills training to children, 
women and youth of migrant communities in the slums of Navi Mumbai. 
It works through six slum-based community centers in Navi Mumbai and 

Mastek supported project: - Education – Our Path to Progress. Project 
Objective is to empower the marginalized communities to access their 
rights to education and health.

Impact:-

schools. 11 Child labour were removed from work and enrolled into 
schools.

to take in many more children. Provide regular health care services 
for children of the community

they did not drop out due to inability to cope with studies

Partnering with Rays of Hope, Navi Mumbai

Project “ASHALAYA” (House of HOPE) Children’s Home is an action plan. 
These are in small units of a family based environment, where the children 

provided with shelter and other facilities.

Mastek supported project:- “Ashalaya” Children Home. The objective 
of the project is to attain Child Welfare by providing them their basic 
necessities and help them to pursue their education!

Impact: -

1.  All the basic necessities are met for a safer & caring home for 
children.

2.  Reducing percentage of health issues, children look healthy.

3. Improvement in educational/cognitive area.

Partnering with SOS Childrens’ Village

SOS Children’s Villages of India is an independent, non-governmental, 
social development organisation that provides family-based care for 
parentless or abandoned children in India. The organization is over 50 
years old in India and it advocates the concerns, rights and needs of 
children in need of care and protection.

Mastek supported project:- Providing education, healthy environment 
for healthy growth of children.

VOCATIONAL TRAINING:-

Partnering with Helpers of Handicapped, Kolhapur Helpers of Handicapped 
was formed by Naseema Hurzuk, who herself became a victim of paraplegia 

Mastek supported project: Sponsorship of 12 disabled students, for 
their education, corrective surgery, etc.

Impact:-

1. The physically challenged students would become healthier due to 
accommodation in a healthier environment and attention to their 
nutritious diet and medical needs. Their mobility would increase 
due to corrective surgeries and provision of appliances like calipers 
and wheel chairs, walkers, crutches, etc.

2. The physically challenged students would overcome their inferiority 
complex by studying in an integrated school / college. This will 

which is largely able bodied.

3. The physically challenged students would get school and college 
education. This will enable them to handle their own affairs and to 
get suitable employment, thereby becoming productive members 
of the society.

Partnering with Sangopita, Badlapur

Sangopita is a registered NGO working for the children with multiple 
disabilities, including cerebral palsy, autism and other physical disabilities. 
It offers full-time residential care.

Mastek supported project: - Sponsoring the 7 teacher’/trainers’ salary 

differently abled children in their routine work and try to make them self-
depend and to give them right to live a life with dignity.

Impact:-

2.  Give a satisfactory result to the parents

3.  Spread awareness of our cause

Partnering with Help Youth Trust

organization – established in the year 
2010, Millions of youth in India in the 

locomotors disability (ortho handicapped). 
The disability may range from polio 
affected legs; amputate hands / legs or 
even spinal affecting mobility.

Mastek supported project: - Mobile phone repair training. The 
objective of the program is to impart training on mobile phone repair to 
ortho disabled youth to make them improve their Livelihoods.

Impact

1. 50 Students enrolled

2. 50 Students Undertook training

PREVENTIVE HEALTH CARE AND ERADICATING MALNUTRITION

Partnering with Mahan Trust, Melghat Amravati district Mahan Trust 



ANNUAL REPORT 2015-2016

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (Contd.)

Maharashtra. The NGO was started by Dr. Ashish Satav and his wife 
Dr. Kavita Satav to meet health and nutrition needs of the tribal population 

Mastek supported project: MAHAN Mahatma Gandhi Tribal Hospital. The 
objective project is:-

1. To improve health status of poor tribals of Melghat.

2. To reduce deaths of tribals.

3. To reduce malnutrition.

5. Provide Emergency medical care to serious patients, etc.

Impact

2. 3000 patients treated for blindness and other diseases.

3. More than 150 malnourished children were treated.

Partnering with Prasad Chikitsa, Wada District

Prasad Chikitsa’s initiatives include programmes of sustainable community 
and village development, healthcare, education and nutrition among 
children, women empowerment etc. It operates in the villages of 

Mastek supported project: Awareness through AV aid. Objective of the 
project is to empower the community with the knowledge to resolve social, 
cultural and medical issues.

Impact:-

1.  Increase in knowledge of the community on the issues

2.  Increase in utilization of the services

3.  Decrease in disease related morbidity and mortality

Partnering with Think Foundation, Mumbai

patients, prevention of thalassemia, ensuring availability of blood and its 
components to all patients.

Mastek supported project: Supporting the Thalassemia Prevention 
programme and organizing blood donation drives at Mastek.

Impact:

Partnering with Action Northeast Trust

in Rowmari in Lower Assam. It works directly in over 250 villages for 
furthering the pace of development in the areas mainly falling under 
Chirang District of Bodoland in Lower Assam (around 170 km from 
Guwahati, the capital of Assam).

Mastek supported project:- Improving Nutrition and Income in 

improve nutritional status and also provide supplementary income to 170 

on the Bhutan border of Chirang District.

Impact:-

1. Activity 1: Promoting 120 Kitchen Gardens

ANIMAL WELFARE:-

Partnering with SPCA Thane

Thane SPCA runs the only animal hospital in the district. It aims to provide 
equal treatment for all species.

Mastek supported project-: Providing specialty surgery to street 
animals.

Impact:

Partnering with P.A.W.S

on bike till starting own animal hospital at Murbad.

Mastek supported project: - 
Providing of ambulance for treatment 
of street animals.

Impact:-
the ambulance

WOMEN EMPOWERMENT

Partnering with Aasara

of children to have a home, family support and basic quality of life. Aasara 
strives to provide these rights to street children until they are reunited with 
their families or re-integrated in society.

Mastek supported project: Supporting the establishment of Suraksha, 

Impact:

PROJECT DEEP BLUE – A Mastek Initiative

change-makers and forward-thinkers who challenge 
the status quo. In this spirit, the Deep Blue Project 
is created to encourage/develop these qualities 

willingness to dive into the problem, the determination 
to get to the bottom of the issue and the drive to 

intellectual thoughts.

Project Deep Blue is for passionate youngsters who have the willingness 
to use technology to create a difference. Deep blue provides this platform 
to create an impact to better life.

Institute of Engineering and Information Technology.

Project Deep Blue Program

the Screening for submission 
formalities
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Mentoring across grade from 5 to 12.

Colleges Total no. of 
teams

13

Datta Meghe College of Engineering 11

1

NMIMS Mukesh Patel School of Technology 
Management and Engineering, Mumbai

3

Vivekanand Education Society’s College of Arts, 
Science & Commerce

3

11

Information Technology

Sardar Patel Institute of Technology 1

Grand Total

Blue had the following objectives:-

within the students

through innovation

to build their mentorship and 
leadership skills Progress on 
Project Deep Blue

 Screening of the Contestants

 Grand Finale
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Moving away from traditional appraisal process to a peer feedback process

a feedback session. This is unlike the past approach having a manager single handedly assess every individual’s performance.

One of the core principles – While every Mastekeer is expected to be an A performer, we also expect every Mastekeer to stretch 
outside their comfort zone and play to their true potential. Mastekeers, who manage to achieve new levels of performance, 

Strengthening our Culture of Recognition

Every Mastekeer is valuable and we, at Mastek believe that performance needs to be appreciated and encouraged. The rewards 
and recognition program at Mastek had been largely administered in a top down fashion, with individuals and teams being 
recognized quarterly or annually.

but also with the teams at the lowest possible level. The teams felt more empowered to choose the rewarding individuals from 

Mastekeers United, an in-house sports team worked on various sports extravaganzas amidst high adrenaline with enthusiastic 
participation and outstanding feedback through the year which executed a successful hat-trick cricket tournament (named Mastek 

of engagement and energy.

have been Diwali Celebrations, Children's Day, Christmas, Navratri & Women's Day celebrations- to name a few.

Compensation being an important element in the overall engagement of every employee, HR has ensured that the annual global 

Strengthened the awareness of Whistle Blower Mechanism within our Code of Business Conduct & Ethics Policy. Ensured that all 
new joinees into Mastek completed the online test and that creates the awareness amongst employees with respect to the policy 

wherever required, are incorporated.
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Learning & Development@Mastek

Centers of Excellence. Continuous inputs and recommendations from business and involvement of Mastekeers in initiatives like 
“You Decide Your Training Calendar” enabled us coming up with lots of relevant offerings like Life Ray, SSIS, CRM, Mobility,  just 
to name a few.  A range of approaches including formal training, in-house seminars, knowledge sharing, on the job learning, 
conferences and workshops were organized towards building Technological and Domain skills.

To list a few of the capability building updates this year

 -  Roll out various workshops on Mobile App Development to give an experience of developing cross platform mobile 
app to Mastekeers at all levels.

 -          Microsoft Cloud Tech Day to give a good glimpse around power of Azure Cloud to Mastekeers.

 -          Multi Skill Talent Classroom Hands on Program at UK.

 -          Enhanced participations by Mastekeers in various industry events like World Testing Conference, Agile World, Hack-a 
thon, Digithon to name a few.

 -         Various training programs and events were organized to raise further awareness around Agility as a way of life 
and to make agile behavior happen on the ground. This year we also hosted Agile Meet-UP jointly with ISEC (India 

Agile Coaches from Industry. There was an overwhelming response from Agile enthusiasts of 12+ IT and Non IT 
organizations.

participants through variety of fun activities and exercise’s.

All of this has been successful in instilling and enhancing skills and inculcating the desire to learn more. We are now poised to 
move into a future where we will continue to strive to build a culture of empowered teams and learning organization.
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Sustainability Initiatives

Environment Management System

Health & Safety

Sustainability Reporting

A long term Sustainability Roadmap has been prepared by which Mastek plans to report voluntarily the initiatives in sustainability 

for the preparation of this sustainability report. After identifying the gaps, the new policies and procedures will be implemented 

Reduction in Power Consumption

Energy costs account for a major portion of the total facility expenses. Over the last few years, we have taken several measures 

switching on and off of the air conditioning system, etc. have resulted in savings in energy consumption.
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MASTEK LIMITED PROXY FORM

Email: investor_grievances@mastek.com; Website: www.mastek.com; Phone: Fax: 

Name of the member (s) :

Registered Address :

E-mail id :

:

I / We being the members(s) holding ........................... shares of the above named Company hereby appoint:

(1) Name: ............................................... Address: ............................................ Email Id: .............................................

Signature: ............................................. or failing him;

(2) Name: ............................................... Address: ............................................ Email Id: .............................................

Signature: ............................................. or failing him;

(3) Name: ............................................... Address: ............................................ Email Id: .............................................

Signature: ............................................. 

to be held on Monday, July 25, 2016 at 11.00 a.m at Ahmedabad Management Association, H.T. Parekh Hall, AMA Complex, 

indicated below:

Resolution No. Resolutions Vote/s given
Ordinary Business: Against

1.
2. ` 2.50 per share as 

3. Re-Appointment of Mr. Ashank Desai, who retires by rotation and being eligible, 
offers himself for re-appointment.

Special Business: Special Resolution
5. Adoption of new set of Articles of Association in lieu of existing Articles of Association 

due to changes necessitated by Companies Act, 2013

Signature of Proxy Holder(s)   

Notes: 
1. 

less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting. 

3. It is optional to put number of votes in the appropriate column against the Resolutions indicated in the Box, so that the Proxy should 

manner as he/she thinks appropriate. Please note that the total number of votes given cannot exceed the number of shares held for each 
and every resolution. 

 
` 1/-  

Revenue  
Stamp

Signature of shareholder........... ...........
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